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450 Fifth Street, N.W. P14 7008

Washington, D.C. 20549
Washington, DC

Re: Submission Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii) -~ 02 SU P P L

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Boart Longyear Limited
(the “Company”) hereby furnishes to the Securities and Exchange Commission copies of the following
announcements: (1) Notice of Substantial Holder — Form 603, submitted on April 1, 2008; (2) 2007
Annual Report, submitted on April 1, 2008; and (3) Notice of Annual General Meeting, submitted on
April 1, 2008. This announcement was submitted by the Company to the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission and distributed by the Company to its security holders on the dates referenced
above.

Please acknowledge receipt of the enclosed materials by file-stamping an enclosed copy of this letter and

returning it to the undersigned in the envelope provided. If you have any questions regarding this
submission, please contact the undersigned at (801) 954-2492.

Very truly .yours, PHOCE.SSED

APR 18 2008

MSON
Fabrizio Rasetti ;&%NCIAL

Senior Vice President and General Counsel
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Form 603

Corporations Act 2001
Section 671B

Notice of initial substantial holder

To Boart Longyear Limited (BLY)
ACN/ARSN 123052728
1. Details of substantial holder

Name Barclays Group lodged by Barclays Global Investors Australia Limited
ABN 33 001 804 566 (Barclays Global Investors Australia Limited)

The holder became a substantial holder on 25 March 2008.
2. Details of voting power
The total number of votes attached to all the voting shares in the company or voting interests in the scheme

that the substantial holder an associate had a relevant interest on the date the substantial holder became a
substantial holder are as follows:

Class of securities Number of securitles Person's votes Voting power
Ordinary 79,992,182 79,992,182 5.35%

3. Details of relevant interests

The nature of the relevant interest the substantial holder had in the following voting securities on the date the
substantial holder became a substantial holder are as follows:

Helder of relevantinterest - /| Nature-ofyelevantinterest. ‘Glags - and-_.nymber-- of
e ‘ w0 SRS securities . 7 - -
Barclays Group Fund Manager — see Anngxure A Ordinary 79,992,182

4, Details of present registered holders

The persons registered as holder of the securities referred to in paragraph 3 above are as follows:

Holder of Registerad holder of securities -+~ ‘Class- and: .number of
relevantintarest | - - ¢+ R secufitids™
Barclays Group JP Morgan & other custodians — see Annexure A Ordinary 79,992,182

5. Consideration

The consideration paid for each relevant interest referred to in paragraph 3 above, and acquired in the four
months prior to the day that the substantial holder became a substantial holder is as follows:

| Helder  of - felevant Datejof acquisition- - - -Qonsige(glbn : :B!ags and- number of
interest ' Ci - .| Gash/Non-cash | socuAfles <
Barclays Group Past 4 months Avg price $2.00 Ordinary 79,992,182

6. Addresses

The addresses of persons named in this form are as follows:

Name - Address - -
Barclays Global Investors Australia Limited Level 43, 225 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000

Signature

31 March 2008
Director!/ Secretary Date
Barclays Global Investors Australia

Barclays Global Investors Australia Form 603 page 10of 2



This is “Annexure A” of 1 page referred to in Form 603 Notice of
initial substantial holder

Tha list of Barclays entities and their respective holdings are as follows:

Relevant Interest in Boart Longyear Limited (BLY) held by members of the Barclays Group.
|
|
|

.57 EOMPAN SO et e
Boart Longyear Limited Barclays Global Investors Japan Ltd 2,144,916 0.14
Boart Longyear Limited _|Barclays Global Investors Ltd 3,415,056 0.23
Boart Longyear Limited __[Barclays Global Investors Ltd 5,210,832 0.35
Boart Longyear Limited  |Barclays Life Assurance Co Ltd 396,946 0.03
Boarl Longyear Limited  |Barclays Global Investors, N.A. 13,529,892 0.90
Boart Longyear Limited __|Barclays Global Fund Advisors 5898744 | 039
Boart Longyear Limited Barclays Capital Inc 0 R
Boart Longyear Limited _{Barclays Capital Securities Ltd 6,281,088 | 0.42
Boart Longyear Limited Barclays Global Investors Canada Ltd 121,303 0.01
Boart Longyear Limited  |[Barclays Global Investors Australia Ltd 42,093 405 2.88

79,992,182 5.35

The JP Morgan Chase Bank Inc. and various other custodians (Custodians) hold shares in BLY as custodian
and for which the Barclays Group are either:

« the responsible entity or trustee of pooled investment products such as registered managed
investment schemes (Funds); or

« the investment manager of Portfolios held for a number of institutiona! investors. The institutional
investors are generally superannuation funds regulated under the Superannualion Industry

Supervision Act 1993,

The holding of shares in BLY was acquired as parl of the wide portfolio of Australian shares and units
acquired for the Funds and the Portfolios.

The members of the Barclays Group and the Custodians may hold relevant interests due to the capacity of
these entities to dispose of the shares in BLY.

Each investor in a Fund owns an undivided interest in the Fund’s assets, no client directly owns any asset of

the Fund. The unitholding of each Fund varies from time to time as clients enter and withdraw from the Funds.

The various institutional investors with portfolios delegate the management of the portfolios to the members of

the Barclays Group.

Director / Secretary
Barclays Global Investors Australia

Barclays Global Investors Australia

31 March 2008
Date

Form 603 page20f2
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WELCOME TO BOART LONGYEAR

Boart Longyear has a rich legacy of mare than 100

years of providing driiling services and products to our
custorners around the world in the mining, environmental,
infrastructure and energy industries.

Bean Longyear listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange on 5 Aprii 2007.
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For additional CGpiES of 1§ Annué! Report, please
visit the Investor, Relalioris page of our website at
www boarﬂongyga'r com:-,
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*Qur pro forma EBITDA exceeded our
prospectus forecast....we see growth in
demand for our services and products
continuing strongly in 2008 and beyond.”

ALETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
GRAHAM BRADLEY

Dear Investors,

I am pleased to present the Company’s first annual result since our
ASX listing on 5 Aprit 2007,

Qur 2007 net profit after tax (NPAT) on a statutory basis was US$81
million. This exceeded our prospectus forecast (US$78 million) by
nearly 4 percent.

Because of the significant restructuring undertaken by the Company
and its predecessor group in the course of 2006 and early 2007, the
Company’s underlying performance is best judged by considering our
results on a pro forma basis compared to our prospectus forecast. |
am, therefore, pleased to report that cur pro forma eamings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) for 2007
were US$336 million. This exceeded our prospectus forecast
(US$320 million) by 5 percent. This result was achieved from pro
forma revenues of US$1,571 million which exceeded our prospectus
forecast (US$1,461 million) by US$110 million, or 8 percent. Both
our Driling Services division and our Products division contributed to
this above-prospectus result.

Boart Longyear ended the year with a strong cash position. Net dabt
was US$569 million compared to US$642 million in April 2007 at the
time of listing.

The Company has declared a dividend of 1.5 US cents per share,
This dividend is consistent with the stated policy set out in our
prospectus of distributing between 30 to 40 percent of net eamings.
The dividend will be paid on 18 April 2008.

Our 2007 results were delivered in a climate of strong growth in
demand for the Company’s services and products, as mineral
resources enjoyed continuing strong demand on a worldwide

basis. Accordingly, the Company continued during 2007 to invest

in expanded production capacity, to add new drill rigs to our
worldwide fleet and to make selective acquisitions. In early 2007
we completed the purchase of Grimwood Davies and KWL Drill

Rig Enginesring in Western Australia, and Connors Drilling in Chile
and Argentina, acquisitions which have performed at or above

plan. On 31 December, we also acquired Patagonia Drill Mining
Services' operations in Argentina, Chile, Uruguay and Paraguay.
These acquisitions added drilling services capability —making us

the largest drilling services contractor in Australia and substantially
expanding our footprint in South America—aleng with adding product
capability and expertise. Since 1 January 2008, we have completed
our acquisition of Britton Bros. Diamond Drilling, located in westen
Canada and Mexico. We have also sold our non-core mining capital
equipment business in South Africa.

In addition, in 2007 the Company has added 130 new drill rigs to
our global fleet through acquisitions and capital investment, bringing



our total in rigs to more than 1,100. We have also expanded our
manufacturing operations in Wuxi, China, as well as Wroclaw, Poland,
and invested additional capital in existing manufacturing facilities.

There have been no changes to the composition of the Board since
the Company was listed last April. | would like to thank my Board
colleagues for their considerable contribution in both preparing

the Company for its initial public offering and in overseeing the
establishment of corporate governance, remuneration, health,
environment and safety, risk management and other important policies
and procedures necessary to ensure that as a listed company, Boart
Longyear's governance, structures and practices meet the highest
standards.

Boart Longyear’s Initial Public Offering took
place on 5 April 2007.

1 would also like to thank our chief executive, Paul Brunner, and

his executive team for their energy and dedication during the past
year. We thank, in particular, our former Chief Financial Officer, Ron
Sellwood, who retired in October after three years with the Company.

Looking ahead, while we see continued volatility in global debt and
equity markets, we expect that this will not fundamentally affect the
continuing strong demand for mineral resources, energy and water
resources, which, in turn, will drive continued growth in the Company's
revenues. We see growth in demand for our services and products
continuing strongly in 2008.

Woe believe we are well-positioned to serve this demand with high-
quality products and reliable and safe contract drilling services. With
our moderate debt levels, high interest cover and strong cash flows,
Boart Longyear is well-positioned to continue to take advantage of
market conditions by further investment in organic growth and selective
acquisitions in the year ahead. We expect, therefore, continued
double-digit percentage growth in the Company’s revenues and X
financial results in 2008. coring rod.

I look forward to working with my Board colleagues, our executive
leadership team and our 9000 people around the world to realise this
aspiration in the year ahead.

M——j _

-
GRAHAM BRADLEY =Sl :
Left to right: Chairman Graham Bradley,
CHAIRMAN Employee Scoit Knigg, and Director Peter

St. George tour a US arll site.




“We are the exploration drilling

industry's global leader and are

clearly difierentiated through our

position as the only maijor integrated
products and services provider. This
integration provides a built-in continuous
improvement and innovation loop leading
to a stream of new product salutions and
value-adding ideas.”

ALETTER FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR
PAUL BRUNNER

We are pleased to announce to our Shareholders that in Boart
Longyear’s first year of operation as a listed company we posted
record revenues and profits exceeding the commitments we made
in our JPO prospectus.

QOur success was driven by strong demand for minerals in China
and elsewhere in the developing world, in conjunction with a
commitment from Boart Longyear's employees at all levels to meet
the challenges set out in our operating plan. Underpinning our
performance in our Drilling Services division were the addition of
drilt rigs and the crews to man those rigs, and from our Products
division, the completion of substantial capacity increases while
restructuring some underperforming parts of our operation. We
also successfully integrated three acquisitions made early in

the year and closed on a fourth acquisition at year’s end. The
Company is well-positioned to extend our success into 2008 by
building on this sound platform.

QOur outlook for growth from all business segments remains strong
and there is no evidence that credit issues in the United States will
spill over into the demand for mineral exploration. The constrained
supply for commeodities such as copper, gold, nickel and zinc is
sustaining prices well above historical averages and the point at
which mining companies are willing to invest in their exploration
programmas. Exploration is a segment of the mining industry that
has seen 30 years of under-investment. Success to date has not
yielded the new deposits or increases in metal reserves necessary
to close the supply gap for key metals. In addition, the increasing
complexity of new deposits, the politics in the jurisdictions being
explored and the logistics of operating a mine in remote and under-
developed locations should extend the life of this exploration cycle.

It is our view that the macro-economic conditions in which

the mining and the mineral exploration drilling industries find
themselves will sustain exploration and mine development well

into the future. Boart Longyear's platform for growth and success
in this environment will be built on our points of competitive
difference. We are the exploration drilling industry’s global leader
and are clearly differentiated through our position as the only major
integrated products and services provider. This integration provides
a built-in continuous improvement and innovation loop leading to

a stream of new product solutions and value-adding ideas. As
evidence of this, in 2007 we introduced the Stage3 Diamond Bit, the
V-Wall Rod and the Quick Descent Core Barrel, all products which
contain patented technologies and significantly enhance drilling
productivity.

Further differentiating the Company are nearly 120 years of proven
performance, reliability, and innovation unmatched in the industry.
Boart Longyear truly is advantaged by our differences. The strength
of the Boart Longyear brand forms a solid base for extending valued



customer relationships by using our global reach to provide exceptional
customer service anywhere in the world. It also:

*  Gives us a first mover's advantage on entering new markets and
looking at acquisition opportunities;

»  Allows us to leverage our scale into even our smallest operation,
from our purchasing power to our training programmes; and

+  Ensures our govemance programmes are robust, from our ethics
and good citizenship to our environment, health and safety efforts.

As an organisation, | am proudest of how our people remained focused
on operational excellence through a period of strong growth and
significant change. We have delivered on our promises to the financial
community, but, as important, we met the challenges of safeguarding
our people in the field. Key-among our efforts is our focus on safety,
such that today, we maintain among the industry’s lowest Loss Time
Injury (LTI rates and continue to review every LTI at the highest level in
of Company management.

It is Boart Longyear’s global leadership in both drilling services and
drilling products, coupled with our world-class product innovation,
strong corporate values and commitment to the safety and training of
our people around the world that will enable us to continue to provide
high-quality, reliable products and services to our customers to meet
their growing needs. | am confident that our integrated business
model and strong financial position will assure Boart Longyear's future
success and that our differences will continue to create value for our
investors and customers.

Mwu

PAUL BRUNNER
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Qur primary Corporats Value of "Safety First”
is a commitment to each of our over 9000
employees around the world.

> hr| + : .
{n 2007, the Company launched new glebal
training Initiatives focused on retention,
laadership and safety.

Managing Director Brunner visits a sonic
drilling project in Europe.



OUR INTEGRATED
DRILLING
SOLUTIONS

Drilling Products

Expleraticn Crilling
Teals and Egupment

Riock Craling Tacts and Equprment B

Diamond core drilling

Rotary drilling

Hotary air blast drilling

Dual tube reverse circulation drilling
Sonic drilling

Auger drifling

Parcussive drilling

Probe drilling

DBILLING PRODUCTS;
Coring
Diamond bits
Drill rods and casing
in-the-Hole tools
Percussive
Percussive bits
Drilling tools
Tapered and threaded rods
Pneumatic and hydraulic drills
Environmental and geotechnical
Geotechnical drilling tools
Overburden diilling tools
Jet grouting tools
Drilling rigs
Surface coring rigs
Underground coring rigs
Longhole percussive drill rigs
Reversae circulation drill rigs
Geotechnical.and construction rigs

OPERATIONS REWEW

R A L l'—:-“-\ L
BT -{JA-“ S m, fgmq.‘ ..

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Boart Longyear has been a leading provider of drilling services and products to
the global minerals industry for well over a century.

We operate an integrated business delivering high-quality drilling services and
products to customers globally.

DRILLING SERVICES

Our Drilling Services division operates in more than 35 countries across North
America, South America, Asia and the Pgcific rim, Europe and Sub-Saharan
Africa. We have an international network of more than 50 zone locations that
maintain and mobilise equipment close to key geographic markets.

Our competitive strengths include:

»  Global reach and longstanding relationships with a global customer base;
= Access to equipment and consumables to enhance drilling productivity;

*  Full suite of drilling services technologies; and

«  Industry-leading safety and training programmes.

MINING AND MINERALS

We are the global leader for minerals exploration, supporting mining customers
in the exploration, development and production of gold, copper, diamonds,
platinum, uranium, and other metals and minerals. The rock core chips and
samples we extract provide mining companies with critical information over the
life of a mining project, from exploration through the development, production
and closure of the mine.

ENVIRONMENTAL & INFRASTRUCTURE

Our Environmental & Infrastructure drilling business continues to expand its
presence and capabilities to serve customers in the following industries:

= Environmental: drilling to support site investigation and remediation of
contamination for both soil and groundwater;



+  Water: drilling in support of groundwater exploration and development,
including the construction of water wells and servicing existing wel! and
pumping systems;

»  Geotechnical: subsurface investigative drilling for new construction and the
repair and remediation of existing infrastructure systems; and

+  Geo-construction: drilling for a variety of civil engineering and infrastructure
construction projects.

ENERGY

Woe assist customers in the exploration and production of non-conventional
energy sources, such as oil sands, il shale and coal bed methane, by providing
earth and rock core samples for analysis and by installing gas well casings and
coal bed methane wells.

Due to growing hydrocarbon consumption and uncertainty surrounding the
supply of existing resources in the Middle East and other energy-producing
states, major oil and gas companies and utilities are seeking to develop these
alternative energy sources.

DRILLING PRODUCTS

Our Products division develops, manufactures and sells coring tools, drilling
capital equipment and percussive tools. These products are used in industries
such as minerals, environmental, infrastructure, construction, stone and energy.

Coring tools developed, manufactured and distributed by Boart Longyear
include diamond coring bits, drill rods and wireline core extraction systems.
The Products division also manufacturers drilling tools and accessories for the
construction drilling and geotechnical markets globally. Many of our products
use patented technologies.

Woe are a recognised leader in the supply of drilling products to minerals drilling
services providers, primarily for dedicated surface and underground coring rigs
and bits.

The majority of the Product division’s sales are to our Drilling Services
division’s competitors, and an estimated 15 percent of the Product division's
manufacturing output is used by our Drilling Services division.

KEY FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
YARGETS STATED IN

THE PROSPECTUS
MHAVE BEEN MET
2006/2007
YEAR OVER YEAR
FINANCIAL COMPARISONS
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/‘ .Around me wo?ld Boart angyear $
skilled eﬁtployees and high= *
© | - performance rigs and consumables
/ are called upon to deliver exgalient
* and safe results to our customers.
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OUR DIFFERENCE- THE INDUSTRY’S ONLY
MAJOR INTEGRATED DRILLING
SOLUTIONS PROVIDER

Because of our leading positions in . DRILLING DRILLING
drilling services and products, we truly  : CONSUMABLES CAPITAL EQUIPMENT
understand the needs of our customers :

with regards to safety, people,

training, environments, applications

and geographies. As an experienced
industry leader, we answer these needs !
with innovative drilling solutions that :
bring valus to our customers, including:

«  Access tc equipment in a supply-
constrained market;

*  Acontinuous product development
and innovation cycle;

*  Product engineering driven by the
productivity requirements of our
Drilling Services division;

+  A'speed to market' advantage for
new product development;

«  Market knowledge based on
experience in the field;

- Industry-leading safety practices; DRILLING SERVICES

and :
. Eary adoption of productivity | FOCUS ON OUR INTEGRATED BUSINESS ADVANTAGE:
enhancmg products. Cur drilling consumables and capital equipment are developed in close collaboration with our

. Drilling Services division. In tumn, we incorporata our experience in the field into our product
: engineering cycle, [n 2007, we took additional steps to leverage the power of our integrated
:  business model and the unique value of the information it provides our global engineering
i teams, Working together, our Drilling Services and Products divisions are actively sharing field
data, challenges, safety requirements and best practices — driving our product development to
I new heights.
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- SERVICES TO THE US _
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BRILLING
SERVICES

Boart Longyear delivers expert drilling services solutions
for a wide variety of applications to our customers around
the world. Operating in more than 35 countries, our
Drilling Services division is growing t¢ meet increasing
demand from our customers. Our teams are constantly
developing tomorrow’s solutions, applying emerging
technologies while offering time-tested, safe and
performance-driven processes perfected in a variety of
drilling applications around the globe.

Drilling Services: Sonic Advantages:

+  Raverse circulation *+  Speed

+  Percussive + Cost-effectiveness

+  Underground and *  Lesswaste
surtace coring . Sample accuracy

+  Sonic
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1 PROVIDER:

. PRODUCTS.TO THE _
SURFACE EXPLORATION ~

, INDUST,| RY
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PRODUCTS "
.TO THE UNDERGROUND
EXPLORATION INDUSTRY -

OUR DIFFERENCE- FOCUSED
GLOBAL LEADERSHIP POSITION
IN KEY INDUSTRIES

BRILEING
PRODYETS

Boart Longyear is a world leader in the design,
development and manufacture of products for mining,
environmental, energy and construction applications.
With state-of-the-art manufacturing centres and patented
technologies, we offer world-class preducts such as
coring, percussive, environmental and geotechnical
consumables and drilling rigs that perform in the toughest

applications.

Surface Exploration
Products:

LF Series coring rigs
Coring consumables

KWL reverse
circulation and
multipurpose rigs

Underground Exploration
Products:

.

LM Series coring rigs
Coring consumables

Percussive rigs and
consumables

T#I pnvmsn- :



DRIVERS' SAFETY TRAINING
CHATREE, THAILAND -

v

.- As part of our o%mmntment ic the -
safety "af qur e ployees Boan N
Longyear uds;t:ramlog on % )
topics such aﬂoperator safety, ,sate

driving, basic first aid and HIVIAIDS

prevention at our locanons "around *,
the wond

OUR DIFFERENCE- OUR REPUTATION FOR

In 2007, Boart Longyear executed several
new programmes and initiatives, received
numerous awards and recognitions,

and earned or maintained industry
certifications, validating our commitment to
the environment and the safety of others.

INCIDENT REPORTING

We improved the effectiveness of our
environment, health and safety (EHS}
incident reporting with the launch of a
wob-based system that allows immediate
access to EHS data across the globe.
This ‘real time' information is captured and
distributed across our operations globally
to prevent future incidents by sharing
best practices and lessons learned and
expanding awargness of safety risks and
solutions.

EHS CERTIFICATIONS

In 2007, with the exception of recent
acquisitions, all of our drill sites around
the world and all 8 of our manufacturing
plants were ISO 14001, and OHSAS
18001 certified, proof of our long-term
commitment to the environment and the
safety of our employees and customers
today, and into the future.

10

: FOCUS ON
- EXCELLENCE IN SAFETY:

 Boart Longyear's reputation for safety is
among the best in the industry. We proudiy
i thank our employees for their commitment

: to safety and share these examples of 2007
: safety performance accomplishments.

| CODELCO DIVISION ANDINA
| SAFETY AWARD
! Chile, December 2007

SAFETY INNOVATION AWARD
- NOMINATION
. Australia, 2007

| BOART LONGYEAR SAFETY AWARD
! 1-MILLION HOURS

| WITHOUT SERIOUS INCIDENT

| Thailand, 2007

| KENNECOTT HSEC AWARD
! Canada, 2007

. BOART LONGYEAR SAFETY AWARD
: 12 MONTHS WITHOUT

i SERIOUS INCIDENT

! Austrafia, 2007

! CODELCO DIVISION ANDINA
: SAFETY AWARD
: Chile, Aprit 2007

LEADING THE WAY IN SAFETY

PERFORMANCE
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OUR DIFFERENCE- 24=-HR GLOBAL
ENGINEERING SPEEDS WORLD-CLASS

Through Boart Longyear's commitment to
engineering, we accelerated technology

solutions that improved performance, safety,
productivity and ease of use.

Internally, we combined our global
engineering groups into “Centres of
Expertise”, offering round-the-clock sharing
of data, best practices and ideas.

This 24-hour stream of information
significantly shortened our product
development cycle and led to the
introduction of the following products in
2007

«  Staged™ diamond bit;

+  V-Wal™ coring rod;

+  Quick Descent™ core barrel;

» DeltaBase 105 environmental and
infrastructure rigs; and

»  New line of reverse circulation drill rigs.

In addition, we developed and readied for
launch in Q1 2008 a reverse circulation rod
handling system.

: FOCUS ON
: INCREASING CAPACITY:

development and speed to markst, delivering - ] )
;. We continually seek to improve our

: manufacturing capacity, and in 2007 we

: significantly enhanced our manufacturing
| operations, particularty with respect to

: coring products and rigs. For example,

. at our new rig manufacturing plant

*in Wroclaw, Poland, we delivered 65

: percent faster production through lean

_ manufacturing.

: We improved our cost position through

. facility consalidation as well as other

: Intemal cost saving measures and

¢ positioned the recently acquired KWL

: business for rapid capacity increases for
© 2008.

INNOVATION TO MARKET

100% 100%

INCREASED CAPACITY
YOY PERCENTAGE

Rods Bits Rigs
PRODUCT LINE




Peopie make the difference at

Boart Longyear. We know that our
success depends on our people
and our continued investment in our
workforce. We successiully added
more than 1300 employees in 2007
despite significant labour shortages in
centain key markets. Qur workforce
is of the most mobile in the industry
and can meet our customers’ needs
virtually anywhere in the world.

TRAINING AND RETENTION

In a global environment of high
demand for skilled employees, we
strive to be the employer of choice
in the industries wa sarve so we can
meet the demand for our products
and services with employees that
are mofivated, well-trained, safety-
conscious and customer-focused.

In 2007, along with the
implementation of our Performance
and Development Management
system for salaried employees, Boart
Longyear enhanced the training and
development of our field empioyees,
netably through the creation of a
Global Advisory Training (GAT) team.
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OUR DIFFERENCE- OVER 9000
TRAINED, SKILLED AND DEDICATED
EMPLOYEES WORLDWIDE

With a specific focus on training,
development and retention of our
drillers and drillers’ helpers, GAT
involves a Zone Manager and top
driller from each operational region
and brings them together to find
solutions for operational challenges
and training needs to improve
performance and reduce injuries,
benefiting our people and delivering
the best results to our customers.

As aresult of GAT initiatives,

our personnel participate in the
design and implementation of
enhanced training and development
programmes and see first-hand our
commitment to safety, increased
retention and career opportunities
and deliver greater operational
efficiencies for our business.

FOCUS ON
SONIC UNIVERSITY:

Boart Longyear's Sonic University is

an accredited training program focused

an sonic drilling technology. Students
participate in both classroom and hands-on
leamning methods while gaining an in-depth
understanding about sonic drilling and the
advantages that come with this innovative,
cutting-edge technology. Ensuring

the courses are applicable to the field,
coursework includes actual operation of a
sonic drill rig, with coaching and feedback
from master driller trainers,

Since its inception in 2004, over 200 drillers
have graduated from our Sonic University.




Qur Drilling Services division saw
significant growth in 2007 with the
successiul completion of several strategic
acquisitions and through organic growth.
Qur Products division, already the
supplier of choice for many mines and
drilling contractors in over 100 countries,
launched several new products and
acquired KWL, well-known for its high
performance reverse circulation rigs.

In addition to expanding our presence
with existing customers, our acquisition
of Prosonic, and the subsequent creation
of our Environment & Infrastructure
business, provides a platform for future
growth opportunities. As the world’s
drilling needs continue to expand, we are
exgcuting our plan to bolster our position
in key markets while expanding into new
geographies or into markets where we
have had a limited presence. We have
continued to partner with our customers
to identify needs and opportunities

for cutting-edge solutions and safety
enhancements, and we constantly
explore opportunities to leverage our core
competencies into adjacent markets or
relationships with new customers.

OUR DIFFERENCE- FOCUSED ON
STRATEGIC GROWTH

FOCUS ON

RECENT ACQUISITIONS:
December 2006 - Prosonic Corp., USA
January 2007 - Connors Chile, Argentina

¢ January 2007 - KWL, Westem Australia

The acquisition of Prosonic Corporation,

a provider of sonic drilling services in the
United States and a number of intemationat
locations, strengthens our global abifity to
offer sanic drilling services to customers and
brings a diverse fleet of sonic drill rigs for
customers in the environmental, water and
mining industries.

Qur acquisition of the Latin American
operations of Connors Drilling, a highly
successful provider of diamond drilling
sarvices, brings 33 drill rigs to our
expanding cperations In Latin America and
anhances our global ability to offer a wide
range of services to our mineral exploration
customers. Along with completion of the
acquisition, the Connors operation also won
two important safety awards in their first
year with Boar Longyear.

We also acquired KWL, headquarterad
in Perth, Australia, a rapidly growing and

- well-regarded innovator and manufacturer
+of multipurpose and dual tube reverse

circulation rigs. The acquisition
complements our strong offering of surface
and underground coring drilling rigs for
mineral exploration, strengthens our global
products capability, and positions us to lead
the drill rig product market in Australia.




OUR DIFFERENCE- OUR
EXPANDING GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

4]

Recent Acquisitions
KWL
RC Rigs - Australia

Headquarters and

Regional Offices
Adelaide, Australia

Salt Lake City, United States
Mississauga, Canada
Santiago, Chile

Venlo, Netherlands

Moscow, Russia

Almaty, Kazakhstan
Johanneasburg, South Africa

Drilicorp
Minerals Exploration Drilling - Australia

Connors, South America
Minerals Exploration Drilling - Chile and Argentina

Northwest Drilling
Minerals Exploration Drilling - Australia

Prosonic Corp - United States
Sonic Drilling

Grimwood Davies
Minerals Exploration Drilling - Australia

Patagonia Drilling
Minerals Exploration Drilling - Argentina

Britton Bros. Drilling
Minerals Exploration Drilling - Canada and Mexico



With experience in virtually every major global market, we have the ability to respond to any challenge.
No other company has the versatility to provide that kind of service wordwide.
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( N@rgufacturing Locations

Perth, Australia Salt Lake City, Utah
KWL Rigs Diamond Bits

Adelaide, Australia North Bay, Canada
Coring Rods In-the-Hole Tools

Wuxi, China Mississauga, Canada f’
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MINERALS EXPLORATION SITE
WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Safety is the comerstone of oug
business culture, and nothigde
moreg important than the welg
of our employees. Qur custoM
share this same priority, and bendl8

tom our traipipg programmes andus
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OUR DIFFERENCE- OUR VALUES

SAFETY FIRST - ETHICS AND GOOD CITIZENSHIP - EXCEPTIONAL RESULTS
DEDICATION TO OUR CLIENTS' SUCCESS - MUTUAL TRUST AND RESPECT

Boart Longyear's Corporate Values
define what matters most to our
employees, investors and the
communities in which we operate,
and serve as a guide for our business
operations.

Our directors, management

and employees understand the
fundamental importance of these
Values, and are guided by them in our
decision making each and every day.

In Brazil, our employees reached
five million hours without a lost work
day case by putting safety first. Qur

exceptional results to our customers
by breaking records for meters drilled
per shift. In Thailand, our Drilling
Services division made outstanding
contributions to their community by
providing water wells to villages and
hospitals.

No matter where you go in the world
you will find Boart Longyear employees
putting our Values into action.
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. FOCUS ON
' GOOD CITIZENSHIP:

: As part of Boart Longyear's commitment to

: being a responsible global corporate citizen,

: in 2007 the Company signed on as one of

: the main spansors of the Rainbow Elizabetha
: Project, in the impoverished and AIDS-stricken
¢ Kantolomba district of Ndola, Zambia.

. The project, which runs entirely on

: sponsorships and the assistance of members
1 from its community, provides shelter and

: counseling for HIV/AIDS-related issues and a
. nutritional food supplement program. It also

. helps support two community schools. With
teams in Canada focused on delivering : mz:%?;ﬁ:oi?ggoﬁ%ﬁﬁ ::lzssrg;%ﬁs
1 1500 books to the children. In addition,

: monetary support from the Company provided
: medicines, food, baby formuia, mosquito nets
: and school uniforms, while Boart Longyear's

* local services team is drilling a borehole to

i provide clean running water to the Project’s

: home and assisting the facility with access to
¢ electricity.

: This program is just one of the many global
: projects underway with donations of time and
i money from our Company and employees.




OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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GRAHAM BAADLEY BRUCE BROOK GEQFF HAMELEY DAVID McCLEMORE PAUL BRUNMER

{CHAFRMAN)

GRAHAM BRADLEY

BA and LLB (Hons 1) from Sydney
University and LLM from Harvard Law
Schoai.

Graham Bradley is Chairman

of the Board and a member of
the Remuneration & Nomination
Committes.

He is currently Chairman of ASX-
listed Stockland Corporation

Ltd and a director of Singapore
Telecommunications Ltd and Po Valley
Energy Ltd. He also chairs unlisted
entities Anglo American Australia Ltd
and HSBC Bank Australia Ltd. Mr.
Bradley was formerly a director and
Chairman of ASX-listed Proteome
Systems Ltd.

From 1995 to 2003, Mr. Bradley was
the CEOQ of the listed investment
management group Perpetual Ltd. He
spent four years as the CEO of law
firm Blake Dawson and 12 years at
McKinsey & Company.

BRUCE BROOK

B.Comm and B.Accounting from the
University of Witwatersrand,

Bruce Brock is Chairman of the Audit
Compliance & Risk Committee and a
member of the Environment Health &
Safety Committee.

He currently is a director and Chairman
of Audit Committee of Lihir Gold Ltd
and Snowy Hydro Ltd. He recently
retired as director of Consolidated
Minerals Ltd.

Mr. Brook was the CFO of WMC
Resources Limited from 2002 to
2005 and has 30 years’ experience in
various roles, including Deputy CFO
of ANZ Banking Group Ltd, Group
Chief Accountant of Pacific Dunlop
Ltd, GM, Group Accounting at CRA
Ltd and General Manager, Accounting
and Services at Pasminco Ltd. He is
a fallow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia.

GEOFF HANDLEY

BSc {Hons) {(Geology and Chemistry)
from James Cock University of North
Queensland.

Geoff Handley is Chairman of

the Environment Heaith & Satety
Committee and a member cf the Audit
Compliance & Risk Committes.

He is currently director of Toronto- and
ASE-listed Endeavour Silver Corp and
Eldorado Gold Corporation, ASX-listed
Pan Australian Resources Lid and the
unlisted Cryx Mining and Exploration
Ltd.

Mr. Handley has over 30 years’
technical and financial experience in the
mining industry, most recently as EVP,
Strategic Development with Placer
Dome Inc., with responsibility for global
exploration, acquisitions and strategic
planning.

DAVID MCLEMORE
BSe¢ from Oklahoma State University.

David McLemore is a member of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and the Environment Health & Safety
Committee,

Mr. Mctemoere acted as Chairman

and then Deputy Chairman of Boart
Longyear from 2005 during its
ownership by Advent Intemational,
Bain Capital and later the Macquarie
Bank-led consortium of investors. Mr.
McLemore served in various capacities
for General Electric from 1985 to 1997
and has 35 years’ broad industrial and
operational experience, including eight
years with Advent International.

PETER ST. GEORGE
MBA from the University of Cape Town.

Peter St. George is Chairman of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Compliance
& Risk Committes.

Mr. St. George is currently a director of
Toronto-listed First Quantum Minerals
Ltd, a director of Spark Infrastructure
Group, Powercor Australia Ltd. and
Citipower Pty Ltd, as well as Chairman
of financial services firm, Walter
Turmnbult.

He also was a director of SFE
Corporation Ltd from 2000 until July
2006 and served as CEC/Co-CEO

of Satomon Smith Barney Australia/
NatWest Markets Australia from 1995
to 2001. In addition, Mr, St. George
sarved more than 20 years in senior
corporate advisory roles at NatWest
Markets and Hill Samuel & Co in
London.

Mr. St. George qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in South Africa.

PAUL BRUNNER

BSc from Colorado School of Mines
and an MBA from Harvard Business
School.

Paul Brunner joined Boart Longyear's
Canadian operation in 1987. He was
appointed as CEO of Boart Longyear in
2004, having been Managing Director
from 2000. He was Boart Longyear's
South American Regional Director for
six years and held senior management
positions in Canada for six years.
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OUR LEADERSHIP TEAM
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PAUL BRUMMNER CRAIG KIPP
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER AND
PAESIDENT

CHIEF
QPERATING
OFFICER

DOMN NEWMANM

INTERIM CHIEF
FINANCIAL
OFFICER, VICE
PRESIDEMNT AND
CORPORATE

ﬁ'z’ﬁ?
4

PATAICK JOHNSON FABRIZIO RASETTI
SENIOR VICE
PRESIDENT.

GENERAL CCUNSEL AND
SECRETARY

SENIOA VICE
PRESIDENT,
HUMAN RESQURCES

CONTROULER

PAUL BRUNNER
See page 17.

CRAIG KiPP

BA and MA (Machanical Engineering} from Univ. of North
Dakota and MBA from Univ. of Chicago.

Craig Kipp was appointed as COO of Boart Longyear in
2005. Prior to Boart Longyear, he was employad in various
capacities by General Electric from 1983 to 2005, including
as President and CQQ of the Global Nuclear Fue! division,
General Manager of China and Hungary operations.

DON NEWMAN
BAcc from Univ. of Minnesota.

Don Newman joined the Company in October 2006 as
Vice President, Corporate Controller. In October 2007, he
was appointed the Interim Chief Financial Cfficer. Prior to
joining Boart Longyear, Mr. Newman was Vice President
and Corporate Controller of NASDAQ-listed Transaction
Systems Architects for three years. Mr. Newman also
worked tweive years for NYSE-listed NRG Energy in a
number of finance leadership roles.

PATRICK JOHNSON

BBA (Accounting) and MA (Human Resource Mgmt) from
Univ. of Houston.

Patrick Johnson was appointed Senior Vice President,
Human Resources in January 2006. Prior to Boart
Longysear, he was Managing Director of Human Resources
for Global Operations at Applied Materials, having served
there in various capacities for the previous six years. Mr.
Johnson also was the Vice President of Human Resources
for TECO Westinghouse and held positions at Arabian
American Cil Company and Star Enterprise. He holds a
Senior Professional in Human Resources certificate, and a
Certified Employee Benefit Specialist qualification from IFEB
and the Wharton School.

FABRI!ZIO RASETTI

BSc (Foreign Service) and JD from Georgetown Univ.
Fabrizio Rasetti joined the Company in April 2008. Prior to
Boart Longyear, he was a Segment General Counsel
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SCOTT ALEXANDER MIKE BIRCH

VICE PRESIDENT,
GLCBAL PRGOUCTS AND
SALES

VICE PRESIDENT,
GLOBAL DRILLING
SERVICES

and Segment Vice-President for Business Development
for NYSE-isted SPX Corporation and served in various
other management roles during his nine-years there. Prior
to SPX Corporation, he worked in the private law firms of
Howrey & Simon and Towey & Associates in Washington,
DC.

SCOTT ALEXANDER
BBA (Marketing) from the Univ. of Wisconsin.

Scott Alexander was appointed Vice President, Global
Drilling Services in 2006.

Prior to Boart Longyear, he was Vice President of
Manitowoc Crane’s aftermarket operations in the Americas.
He also has held several leadership positions at Joy Global
and Bucyrus International.

MICHAEL BIRCH
BSc (Business) from Brigham Young Univ.

Mike Birch was appointed Vice President, Global Products
in 2006. Prior to Boart Longyear, he worked for Black and
Decker for 15 years in a variety of roles, including Vice
President and General Manager for Baldwin Hardware
and Director of Marketing for DeWalt Industrial Power Tool
division.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their repart together with the financial report of Boart Longyear Limited (*Boart Longyear® or the
*Company”} and its controlled entities (collectively the "Group” or the “Consalidated Entity") for the financial year ended
31 December 2007 (“financial year™) and the Independent Auditor's Report thereon.

Financial results and information contained herein are presanted in United States (*US") dollars unless otherwise noted.
DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company in office during the financial year and untll the date of this report are set out below:

¢ Graham Bradley Appointed 21 February 2007
+ Bruce Brook Appointed 21 February 2007
¢+ Geoff Handley Appointed 21 Febryary 2007
« David McLemore Appointed 21 February 2007
« Peter St George Appointed 21 February 2007
¢ Paul Brunner Appointed 28 February 2007

Others who held office as directors during the financial year were:

»  Neil Upfold Appointed 2 January 2007; resigned 21 February 2007
* Robin Bishop Appointed 2 January 2007; resigned 21 February 2007
+ Nicholas Atkins Appointed 2 January 2007; resigned 21 February 2007

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

The following table sets out for each director the number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of
directors) held during the financial year while he was a director or committee member and the number of meetings each
director attended. The table doss not reflect the directors’ attendance at committee meetings in an "ex-cfficio” capacity.

Directors Nomination & Audit, Compliance Environment

Board of Directors Remuneration 8 Risk Committee Health &

Committee Safety Committee

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended
Graham Bradley 6 6 5 5 - - - -
Bruce Brook 6 6 - - 4 4 3 3
Paut Brunner 5 5 - - - - -
Geoff Handley 6 6 - - 4 4 3 3
David McLemore 6 6 5 5 3 3
Peter St. George 6 6 5 5 4 4 - -
Neil Upfoid ! 1 1 - - - - - -
Robin Bishop 1 1 1 - - - - - -
Nick Atkins 1 1 1 - - - - - -

(1) Each of these directors resigned on 21 February 2007, prior to the listing.
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

Fabrizio Rasetti was appointed Company Secretary on 26 February 2007, A summary of his work experience and
qualifications is found on page 20.

Duncan W.S, Glasgow was appointed Company Secretary on 18 July 2007. He has extensive public listed company
secretarial experience gained with companies in the manufacturing, distribution, contracting and financial services
industries. Mr. Glasgow received his BA LLB from Macquarie University, completed Graduate Diploma in Comporate
Management with CICSA and the 2 + 1 Course at Mt. Eliza and is a Fellow of Chartered Institute of Secretaries.

Alison Henriksen was Company Secretary from 28 February 2007 until 18 July 2007.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

‘The Company Is an integrated provider of drilling services and drilling products for custorers in the mining and minerals,
environmental and infrastructure, and energy industries. The Group conducts these activities through two operating
divisions, known as the Global Drilling Services and Global Products divisions.

The Global Drilling Services division operates in cver 35 countries. it provides services to a diverse customer base and
offers a broad range of drilling technologies, including diamond core drilling, rotary drilling and sonic drilling, to suit its
customers' requirements.

The Global Products division manufactures and sells capital equipment and consumables to customers in the drilling
services industry globally. These products include rigs, coring tools and percussive tools. In addition, the Group supplies
stone-cutting tools and equipment and mining capital equipment.

Financlal performance

Total revenue for the period was $1,576 million, an increase of 41% over the prior period. Of the $458 million period-on-
period increase in revenue, $338 million was attributable to the Global Drilling Services division and $119 million to the
Products division.

The Global Drilling Services division generated revenus of $971 million, up 54% on the same period last year. $165 million
of this revenue growth is attributable to organic growth during the peried and $174 milllon is attributable to the acquisitions
made in 2006 and the first quarter of 2007.

Products generated revenus from ongeing operations of $605 million, up 24% on the prior year. $68 million of the
revenue growth is attributable to volume growth, $24 million to real price increases and $26 million to the positive impact
of currency movements.

Net profit after tax for the year was $81 million and includes the impact of finance costs relating to the higher debt levels in
place prior to the listing of the Company, including the amortisation of financing fees of $27 million, largely related to pre-
listing debt.

The effactive tax rate of 40.4% is the blended annual rate for 2007, which takes into account the tax weighting of the
corporate structura prior to the listing and after the listing.

Eamings per share In 2007 were 5.4 cents on a basic and diluted basis, compared to a loss per share of 5.6 cents for the
same period in 2006.

DIVIDENDS

Consistent with disclosures made in the Company's prospectus, the directors of the Company did not declare a dividend
during the financial year. On 29 February 2008, the directors of the Company declared a dividend of US 1.5 cents on
each of the issued ordinary shares of the Company. The dividend will be payable on 18 April 2008 to shareholders of
record on 20 March 2008, This dividend equates to 35% of consolidated net profit after tax for the half-year ended 31
December 2007. The dividend will be 35% franked.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES [N THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Acquisition of Resources Services Holdco, Inc. by Boart Longyear Limited

Effective 12 April 2007, Boart Longyear Limited, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Boart Longyear Investments Pty
Limited, acquired 100% of the equity in Resources Services Holdco, Inc. ("RSHI"), the then legal parent entity of the Boart
Longyear Group, for $1,361,000,000 through the issuance of Convertible Redeemable Notes and Exchangeable Notes.
Pursuant to its listing on the Australian Securities Exchange, Boart Longyear Limited issued 1,269,158,552 ordinary
shares for $1,923,000,000. An additional 216,091,448 ordinary shares wera issued to redeem the Exchangeable Notes.
The proceeds from the listing were used to reduce debt, redeem the Convertible Redeemable Notes of RSHI and pay the
costs of the listing. Between October and Decemnber 2007, an additional 17,595,513 ordinary shares were issued to
management shareholders of RSHI to repurchase RSHI shares surrendered.

In accordance with AASB 3 ‘Business Combinations’ the acquisition of RSHI by Boart Longyear Limited was accounted for
as a reverse acquisition and the consolidated financial statements have therefore been prepared as a continuation of the
consolidated financial statements of RSHI. Accordingly, RSHI is considered to be the ‘acquirer for accounting purposes
and as a result:

+ the retained eamings and issued equity instruments recognised in the consolidated financlal statements are the
continuation of the retained earnings and issued equity instruments of RSHI;

* the assets and liabilities recognised and measured in the consolidated financial statements are at the carrying
amounts of RSHI rather than at their fair values;

« the amount recognised as other equity balances in the consolidated financial statements were determined by
adding the notional cost of the combination to the other equity balances of RSHI prier to the combination;

+ the comparative information presented in the consolidated financial statements is that of RSHY; and

» the retained eamings of RSHI prior to the combination are not available for the payment of dividends to the
shareholders of Boart Longyear Limited.

Acquisition of Other Entities and Operations

During the financial year, the Group completed acquisitions of KWL Drillrig Engineering Pty Ltd and Grimwood Davies Pty
Ltd, both of which are tocated in Australia. In addition, the Group completed two acquisitions in South America by
acquiring the Connors Drilling businesses in Chile and Argentina and the Patagonia Drill Mining Services businesses in
Argentina, Chile, Uruguay and Paraguay.

Subsequent acquisitions

On 22 February 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of Britton Brothers Diamond Drilling, which has operations in
westam Canada and Mexico.

Divestiture of Operations

The Group divested its Australia-based mining capital equipment business during the financial year. The divested
business produces underground utility vehicles for use in the coal mining industry. [n addition, the Group entered into a
contract on 21 December 2007 to sell its South Africa-based mining capital equipment business, which sells hydraulic
rockdrills, hard rock underground drilling rigs, load-haul dumpers and associated utility vehicles for underground hard rock
mining. Completion of the sale is pending approval of South African competition authorities, which the directors expect will
be received in March 2008.

QOther than the Company's admission to the Australian Securities Exchange and the acquisitions and divestitures listed
above, In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the
financial year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
Other than the matters discussed above, in the opinion of the directors, there has not arisen in the interval between the

end of the financial year and the date of the report any matter or circumstance that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect, the Group's operations, results or state of affairs in future financial years.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Group intends to continue its principal activities related to the provision of contract drilling services and drilling
products and continues to focus on identifying accretive opporunities to consclidate its market position and broaden its
offerings. Further, the Group will continue to pursue cperating improvements and new product development.

Further information about the likely developments in the operations of the Group in future years, the expected results of
those operations, the strategies of the Group and its prospects for futura financial years has been omitted from this report
because disclosure of the information is likely to result in unreascnable prejudice to the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board believes that high standards of corporate govermnance are an essential prerequisite for creating sustainable
value for shareholders, This statement summarises the main corporate governance policies and practices in place at the
Company and the Group. Unless otherwise noted, these are consistent with the ASX Corporate Governance Council's
Principles and Recommendations (the "ASX Guidelines").

The Company’s most significant governance policies, including Board and committee charters, may be found on the
Company's website at www . boartiongyear.com,

Role Of The Board
The Board charter sets out the powers and responsibilities of the Board. These include:

= providing strategic direction for, and approving, the Company’s business plans and objectives;

+ monitoring the operational and financial position and performance of the Company;,

» establishing a risk management framework for the Company and ensuring that management takes reasonable
steps to Implement appropriate controls and otherwise mitigate risks;

« requiring that financial and other reporting mechanisms are put in place to provide adequate, accurate and timely
information being provided to the Board and shareholders regarding all material developments,

* appointing and evaluating the perfarmance of the Managing Director, approving other key executive
appointments and planning for executive succession;

« reviewing and approving remuneration for senior exacutives;

« approving the Company's annual operating budget and business plans and monitoring the management of the
Company's capital, including any material capital expenditures, acquisitions or divestitures;

+ monitoring procedures to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and accounting standards;
and

» detemmining the level of authority delegated to the Managing Diractor and Company management,

The Board has delegated to the Managing Director and to the Company's Exscutive Management Committes ("EXCQ")
responsibility for managing the business of the Company in compliance with Board policies and ethical values. The policy
sets clear thresholds for management authority and ensures accountability to the Board for the approval of specific
matters, including remuneration of senior executives, changes o the Company's share capitalisation, declaring dividends,
the Company's annual operating budget, materiat acquisitions and divestitures and changes to corporate strategy.
Delegations are regulary revlewed by the Board and may be changed by the Board at any time

Composition Of The Board

At the date of this report, the Company has one executive director and five non-executive directors. There has been no
change to the composition of the Board since the Company was listed on the ASX.

Boart Longyear recognises that the ability of its Board to fulfill its role properly raquires that the diractors collectively have
an appropriate range of skills, experience and expertise, including some with relevant experience In accounting and
financial reporting. Moreover, the Board's effectiveness, objectivity and abifity to hold management accountable for its
performance require a majority of the Board to be independent directors,
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In assessing the independence of non-executive directors, the Board has considered the criteria detailed in the Board
charter, including, whether a director:

« is a substantial shareholder of the Company, or otherwise is associated directly or indirectly with a substantial
shareholder;

o has been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or Group within the last three years and did not
become a director within three years of being so employed,

s has been a principal of a material professional adviser or a material consultant to the Company or Group within
the last three years;
is a partner in, or material shareholder or officer of, a material supplier or customer of the Company or Group;
has a material contractual relationship with the Company or Group other than as a director;

« has served on the Board for a period that could reascnably be perceived to interfere with the director's
responsibility to act in the best interests of the Company; and

+ has received more than A$100,000 from the Company or Group during the past year other than as compensation
for the director fulfilling his duties as a director.

The charter also defines materiality as being an amount in excess of 5% of Boart Langyear's or the advisor's, supplier's or
customer's revenues or expenses, as the case may be.

As it is currently composed, the Board meets the requirements of the charter and the recommendations of the ASX
Guidelines as a majority of the directors are non-executive directors and a majority of the non-executive directors,
including the Chairman, meet the independence criteria listed above. The Board determined prior to the [isting that one
non-executive director, David McLemore, was not an independent director at the time bacause of his shareholding in
Resources Services Holdco, Inc. and his interest in the outcome of the listing.

Board Processes

The Beard meets at least six times a year and convenes additional meetings as required. The agenda for Board meetings
is prepared by the Company Secretary in conjunction with the Chairman and the Managing Director and, along with
supporting papers, is distributed to directors prior to each meeting. Certain senlor executives participate in each meeting.
The directors have access to other Company employees in Board meetings, during visits to operations and in other
settings.

Board Committeas
The Board also has three permanant committees to assist it in discharging its responsibilities. These are the:

» Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee;
+ Remuneration and Nomination Committee; and
« Environment, Health and Safaty Committee.

These committees have written charters that are reviewed at least annually. All non-executive directors may attend any
committee meeting. The minutes of committee meetings are circulated to all directors at the next Board meeting. The
committees have access to management and external resources as the committee members desire.

Audit, Compllance and Risk Committee

The Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee assists the Board to fulfill its govemance and disclosure responsibilities in
relation to the quality and integrity of the Company's financial reperts, internal controls, risk management framework and
external audits. The committee also monitors compliance with laws and regulations.

In conformity with its charter, the committee is comprised of three non-executive directors, all of whom are independent
directors and at least one of whom has relevant accounting qualifications or experience. The members of the commities
during and since the financial year are:

s  Bruce Brook - Chairman
s Peter St. George
s  Geoff Handley
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The committee meets at least four times a year. Meetings are nomally attended by the Managing Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Director of Internal Audit and General Counsel as well as the Company’s external auditor. The agenda
for each meeting allows for a private meeting with the extarnal auditor in the absence of management. The committee
members have a good understanding of financiat reporting, and the committee has the power to conduct or authorise
investigations Into, or consult with independent advisors about, any matter within the committee’s scape of responsibility.

The committee also makes recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment, performance and independence of
the external auditer. Accordingly, the committee is consulted on, and must approve, all non-audit services performed by
the auditor. The external auditor also provides a declaration of independence each reporting period.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee supports the Board by overseeing matters related to executive and director
remuneration and the composition and performance of Board. The committee’s responsibilities include:

« reviewing remuneration plans, including annual bonus plans and equity-based incentive plans;

« developing performance objectives for the Managing Director and his direct reports and reviewing performance
against those objectives;

» ovarseeing policies for recruitment, retention and succession planning for directors and key executive positions;

+ reviewing the composition of the Board and monitoring the performance of the Board and the diractors,

The following non-executive directors were members of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee during and since
the financial year:

* Peter St. George - Chaiman
»  Graham Bradley
+ David McLemore

The committee meets at least four times per year. It has authority to commission independent advice from specialist
advisors and has done so during the past year.

Environment, Health and Safety Commilttee

Boart Longyear places a high priority on safety, management of operational risks and compliance with environmental laws
and regulations. The Environment, Heaith and Safety Committee assists the Board in the effective discharge of its
responsibilities in relation to these matters and has authority to investigate any matter within the scope of the committee’s
charter.

The responsibilities of the committee include understanding the operational risks involved In the Company's activities and
ensuring that the Company has effective systems and processes for monitoring and mitigating such risks. In addition, the
committee reviews and assesses the Company's policies and practices to ensure compliance with environmental and
operational regulatory requirements, including through internal and external audits. Finally, the committee reviews the
results of investigations of any major health, safety or environmental incidents occurring in the Company’s operations.

The committee consists of the following three non-executive directors:

¢ Geoff Handley -~ Chaiman
s Bruce Brook
» David McLemore

Several members of senfor management, including the Vice-President for Environment, Health and Safety, Chief
Operating Officer, Managing Director and General Counsel, attend the committes’s meetings.

Board And Director Performance

The Board has a formal annual assessment process that includes performance assessments of the Board committees and
individual directors. As part of the assessment process, each director completes a questionnaire on the cperaticn of the
Board and its committees and the performance and contributions of the directors. The results of the questionnaires are
compiled by the Chairman and discussed with each director individually. The Chairman also holds a further discussion
about the Board's effectiveness with the Board as a whole. This Board effectiveness evaluation took place this year in the
period between December 2007 and February 2008.
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New directors will underge an induction process to inform them of the nature of the Company's business, strategies, risks
and issues, and expectations about director performance. All directors also have the opportunity to visit Company
operations and meet with management to gain a better understanding of the business, and the Board has scheduled
several Board meetings in 2008 at Company operating lacations for this purpose.

The tarms of a non-executive director's appointment are set out in a letter to the director from the Company. The letter
details the director's obligations, including to:

e actin the best interests of the Company at all times;

*  submit to re-election from time-to-time as required by the Company’s constitution;

s notify the Chairman of any change in circumstances that might prevent the director from being regarded as
independent;

« comply with the Company's constitution, governance policies and all applicable legal requirements, including the
Company's Securities Trading Policy;

» devote sufficient ime to prepare for and attend Board meetings and otherwise to discharge the director's duties;

s kesp confidential, and not use for the benefit of any person or party other than the Company, any confidential
information of the Company or Group; and

+ disclose any directorships, business interests or circumstances that might represent confiicts of interests or
reasonably be perceived to interfere with the exercise of the diractor's independent judgment, or have an adverse
impact on the Company's reputation or public prefile.

The appointment letter also confers certain benefits and rights upon the director, including indemnities and insurance
coverage for liabilities arising out of the discharge of the director's duties and unfettered access to papers, information and
employees of the Company. !n addition, directors may, with the approval of the Chairman, consult with professional
advisors.

Executive Performance

The Company employs a structured performance evaluation process to ensure that senior executives are motivated to
deliver shareholder value and are accountable to the Board at all times. The process commences early each financial
year when the Board establishes and approves individua! performance objectives far the Managing Director, each of his
direct raports or other key personnel. As detailed more fully in the Remuneration Report, individual objectives are linked
to the potential incentive the executive may receive under the Company's annual bonus plan, and, in the case of the
Managing Director and his direct reports, account for 40% to 60 % of the total annual bonus for which they are eligible. At
the beginning of the subsequent year, each such executive receives a Board-approved written performance appraisal
measuring the executive's performance against the prior year's goals and detailing the bonus amounts the executive will
receive and forfeit. The appraisal also sets the executive's goals for the coming year and identifies any development
needs. The Company's executive performance assessment process for 2007 commenced in January 2008 and is
scheduled to be completed in early March 2008.

Risk Management

The Board recognises that risk management and internal controls are fundamental to good corparate governance, and the
Board and senlor management accept their responsibility to identify and manage risk on an ongoing basis. The
Company’s risk management framework consists of a number of controls, including:

« docummented systems, procedures, authorities and delegations for the orderly management of the Company;

e palicies and ethical standards, and ensuring that employees understand such obligations;

e risk-based internal audits to test the Company's controls and assist management with the enforcement of
Company policies; and

« cerifications from management and process owners throughout the Company regarding the design and
operation of risk management systems, internal controls and compliance.

The Board is assisted and advised in its oversight of the Company’s risk management system by two of its committees:
the Environment, Health and Safety Committee with respect to certain operational risks and the Audit, Compliance and
Risk Committee with respect to financial, compliance and other risks. Those committees review the annua! audit plan of
the Company’s Internal audit function and Environment, Health and Safety group, and, along with senior management,
consider the findings of those audits.
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The Company currently is enhancing its risk management processes to implement a more forma!l and comprehensive risk
management system based on a written risk management policy and the findings of its internal and extemnal auditors. The
enhanced systam will be based on regular risk identification and management reviews conducted by the Company's
regional operating management and functional organisations.

Integrity Of Financial Reporting

In accordance with the ASX Guidelines, the Managing Director and Acting Chief Financial Officer have certified the
following (among other detailed certifications) to the Board in writing:

1) in their opinion, after having made appropriate enquiries:

() the financial statements of the Company and Consolidated Entity for the financial year comply with
Accounting Standards and have been properly maintained in accordance with section 286 of the
Corporations Act 2001; and

(i} the financial reports of the Company and Consolidated Entity, and notes thereto, present a true and fair
view, in all material respects, of the financial position and performance of the Company and of the
Consolidated Entity in accordance with section 287 of the Corporations Act 2001.

2) to the best of their knowledge and belief after having made appropriate enquiries:

(il  the statements made in (1) above regarding the integrity of the financial statements are founded on a
system of risk management and internal compliance which, in all material respects, implements the
policies adopted by the Board of Directors through delegation to senior executives;

@iy  the risk management and internal compliance system, to the extent it relates to financial reporting, is
operating effectively in all material respects based on the risk management mode! adopted by the
Company;

(i) nothing has come to management's attention since 31 December 2007 that would indicate any material
change to the statements made in 2(1) and 2(ii) above, and

{iv) material associates and joint ventures, which the Company does not control, are not dealt with for the
purposes of this statement.

These statements are supported by certifications made to the Managing Director and Acting Chief Financial Officer by the
financial managers of each of the Company’s divisions and reglons and by other managers globally. They provide a
reasonable but not absolute level of assurance and do not imply a guarantee against adverse events or more volatile
outcomes arising In the future. A number of intemnal control deficiencies relating to financia! reporting have been identified
during the financial year, and in such cases, where deemed appropriate, additional tests of procedures or tests of resulting
account balances included in the financial statements have confirmed that there has been no material impact on the
financial reports. Management also has reported to the Board as to the effectiveness of the Company's management of
material business risks.

Code Of Conduct And Ethical Standards

Boart Longyear's directors, management and employees are required to act with integrity at all imes and maintain high
ethical standards. The Company has a Code of Business Conduct that covers a broad range of matters, including:

conflicts of interest and the preservation and proper use of Company assets;

protection of confidential and commaercially sensitive information;

competition law and falr dealing;

employment matters;

envircnmental, health and safety considerations;

improper payments, bribery and money laundering, including transactions with government officials;
corporate gifts and entertainment;

fraud detection; and

financial reporting and record-keeping.

& & & 2 2 2 00
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The Code of Business Conduct also makes clear that ali Boart Longyear employees and managers are required to report
any potential legal non-compliance or ethical violation and provides saveral channels for such referrals, including the
Group's anonymous “whistleblower hetline®, which is administered by an independent third-party provider.

Employee And Director Trading In Company Securitles

Baart Longyear has adopted a Securities Trading Policy for its directors and employees. The policy prohibits trading in the
Company's stock at any time if a person is in possession of material, non-public information. In addition, it prohibits short-
term trading and dealing in derivative securities and establishes “black-out” periods from July 1 and January 1 of each
year until such time as the Company's half-year and full-year results are made public. The Company’s policies further
prohibit any director or employee from entering into transactions that limit the ecanomic risk of participating in unvested
entittements under the Company's equity-based remuneration schemes.

When trades would otherwise be allowed under the policy, non-executive directors and the Managing Director may only
trade in the Company’s securities with the consent of the Chairman, and executive officers and other designated
employees must obtain the consent of the Company's General Counsel prior to any trade. The Chairman must obtain the
consent of the Chaiman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee to trade in the Company's securities.

Environmental Performance

Boart Longyear is committed to achieving a high standard of envirenmental performance. The Company’s operations are
subject to various environmental laws and regulations in the many jurisdictions in which it operates, including regulations
under both Commonwealth and state legislation in Australia. The Board, with the assistance of the Environment, Health
and Safety Committee, monitors environmental perfformance against relevant legislation and Company objectives and
monitors remedial action when required,

Continuous Disclosure

The Board aims to ensure that all of its shareholders and the market in general are kept fully and promptly informed of all
major developments and changes that are likely to affect materially its operations, financial results and business
prospects. The Company's External Communications Policy specifies how the Company will meet its continuous
disclosure obligations under ASX Listing Rule 3.1 and sets out procedures for Company employees to report potentially
price-sensitive information to management and the Board. The policy seeks to ensure that employees will not make
selactive disclosures of price-sensitive information. Management has established a committee chaired by the Company
Secretary that meets at least monthly to review matters that may potentially require disclosure, and the minutes of the
Committee meetings are provided to the Board in the papers submitted for each Board meeting.

The Company preduces financial statements for its shareholders and other interested parties twice per year.

Shareholders have the right to attend the Annual General Meeting in April and are provided with an explanatory
memorandum on the resclutions proposed through the Notice of Meeting. The Company alse employs a Vice President of
Investor Relations to manage and assure prompt and relevant communications with shareholders and the market
generally, and the Company posts material information for its shareholders, such as ASX announcements and financial
results, on its website.

Donations

Boart Longyear contributes to the communities in which it works with donations, sponsorship and practical support. The
Company does not make political donations.
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DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS

The following table sets out each director's relevant interest in shares, debentures, and rights or options in shares or
debentures of the Company or a related body corporate as at the date of this report.

Directors Fully pald ordinary shares Restricted shares Total

Graham Bradley 1,891,891 491,891 2,383,782
Bruce Brook 108,108 45,545 154,053
Paul Brunner 16,869,839 - 16,869,839
Geoff Handley 54,054 32,432 86,486
David McLemore 808,609 - 808,609
Peter St George 216,216 72972 289,188

The directors’ restricted shares as listed in the table above, although fully paid ordinary shares, are subject to a vesting
condition of three years' service by the directors.

GRANTS OF SHARES, RIGHTS OVER SHARES AND OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The shares or rights over shares of the Company that have been granted to directors or executives of the Group are
included in the Remuneration Report. There were no options over unissued shares of the Company during the financial
year, and none have been granted since 21 December 2007, In addition, no shares or interests have been issued during
or since the end of the financial year as a result of exercise of an option,

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts involving directors’ or officers’ interests existed during, or were entered into since the end of, the financial
year other than the transactions detailed in Note 35 to the financial statements,

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to
which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibllity on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those
proceedings, The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the financial year.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to conducting its business activities with respect for the envircnment and to exceeding
environmenta! laws and standards in all jurisdictions in which the Group operates. The directors are not aware of any
breach of environmental regulations during the financial year and to the date of this raport under any applicable law of the
Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

REMUNERATION REPORT

This is the Company’s first Remuneration Report. Prior to the Company's ASX listing in April 2007, the management
exacutives appearing in this report were employed by Resources Services Holdco, Inc. ("RSHI%), an unlisted Delaware-
registered United States corporation, or other US-registered subsidiaries of RSHI, including Longyear Holdings, Inc.
("LHI"}. RSH! was acquired by the Company pricr to the Company’s listing and was not previously required to produce a
remuneration report. As outlined in further detail in the financial report, the financial statements of the Company are
presented as a continuation of the financial statements of RSHI, and, accordingly, the prior year comparatives in this
Remuneration Report are those of the directors and executives of RSHI.

The information provided in this Remuneration Report is that required under Section 300A of the Corporations Act and
Accounting Standard AASB 124 Relfated Party Disclosures. Certain disclosures required by AASB 124 that have been
transferred from the financial statements {o the Remuneration Report (as permitted by Regulation 2M.6.0.4 of the
Corporations Regulations 2001} have been audited. Unaudited sections in the Remuneration Report have therefore been
labeled.
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This Report sets out the remuneration arrangements for the Key Management Personnel (KMP), who are those persons
having authority and respensibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, diractly or
indiractly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise). The KMP include the top five highest-paid executives.
The remuneration policy and programmes detailed in this report also apply to senior Company management not included
as KMP.

Remuneration Policles and Practices

The Board has ultimate responsibility for remuneration issues, including policies and proceduras to ensure that the
Company remunerates fairly and responsibly. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee ("Remuneration Committee™
has been established to assist the Board with remuneration issues and is responsible for ensuring that the Company
compensates appropriately and consistently with market practices. It also seeks to ensure that the Company's
remuneration programmes and policies will attract and retain high-calibre directors, executives and employees in all its
locations and will motivate them to maximise the Company’s long-term business, create value for shareholders and
support the Company’s goals and values. The role and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committes are set out in its
charter. The Managing Director and the Senior Vice-President for Human Resources attend mestings of the committee,
as appropriate, to provide information necessary for the committee to discharge its duties. In addition, the committee also
has access to external consultants as it sees fit to provide advice, market data and other information required. During the
financial year the committee sought independent advice from Mercer LLC, KPMG and Blake Dawson.

Overall, the structure, quantum and mix of compenents of the Company's remuneration program, detailed below, are
designed to meet the specific needs of the business and be consistent with good market practice. The Company will
regularly review all elerments of its remuneration framework to ensure that they remain appropriate to the business
strategy and are competitive and consistent with contemporary market praclice,

Non-Executiva Director Remuneration

Non-executive directors are remunerated by fixed base fees with additional amounts paid for serving on board
committeas. Non-executive director fees are determined within an aggregate directors’ fee poo! limit that periodically will
be approved by shareholders in general meeting. The current approved limit is A$2.0 million. Feas are set to reflect the
responsibility and time commitments required of non-executive directors, and are reviewed annually to ensure that they
remain fair and consistent with market practice.

The base fee for non-executive directors during the year was A$120,000 per annum, while the Chairman received a base
fee of A$360,000 per annum. Non-executive directors (other than the Chairman) receive an additional 10% of the base
fee for each Board committee on which they sit or 20% of the base for each committee they chair, These fees do not
include compulsory superannuation payments paid to Australian-resident non-executive directors at the statutory rate of
8% on all Board and committes fees. During the financial year, A$1,076,754 (US $903,386) of the pool was utilised for
non-executive director fees (taking into account the aggregate payment of fees and superannuation), being approximately
54% of the fee pool limit.

Non-executive directors are reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-packet expenses Incurred in carrying out their duties.
They do not receive any retirement benefits other than statutory superannuation contributions or any performance-related
remuneration.

32




Annual Financial Report
31 DECEMBER 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan

In February 2008, the Committee recommended, and the Board approved, the establishment of a Non-Executive Director
Shara Acquisition Plan (NESDAPY) as foreshadowed in the Company's prospectus. The NESDAP is a fee sacrifice plan in
which only non-executive directors may participate. Participation under the NESDAP is voluntary, and non-executive
directors may alect to sacrifice 100% of pre-tax fees to acquire ordinary shares at the prevailing market price. Shares
acquired under the NEDAP will be subject to a holding lock for up to ten years. The holding lock will be removed in certain
circumstances, including a cessation of directorship.

Exacutlve Remunaration

There are several components of remuneration provided to reward executives, presenting a balance of fixed and at-risk
pay as well as short and longer-term rewards. Consistent with market practice, the proporticn of remuneration attributable
to each component depends on the executive's seniority. These components are as follows:

Fixad Remuneration At-risk Remuneration

Base Salary Short-Term Incentive {Annual Bonus Plan);
and
Long-Term Incentive (Share Performance
Rights)

The Company's executive remuneration has been structured to ensure that it:

i3 reascnable;
provides a competitive compensation program to retain, attract and reward key employees;
achieves clear alignment between total remuneration and delivered business and personal performance over the
short and long-terms; and
+ is an appropriately balanced mix of fixed and at-risk compensation.

In light of the global competitive labour markets within which it operates at the current time, the Company places great
importance on the need to retain key employees, thereby avoiding disruption to operations. Accordingly, the use of both
time-based and performance-based rewards is designed to ensure the Company's leadership is retained and delivers
sustainable, long-term shareholder retumns. The directors believe that the at-risk components of the remuneration
framework will effectively align management’s interests with those of shareholders.

The Company is unable to provide information comparing exscutive compensation with historical investor return because
it was listed in April 2007.

Fixed Remuneration

The fixed component of executive compensation consists primarily of base salary. Some executives receive other
benefits, such as a vehicle allowance. In addition, the Company contributes to retirement programs, such as Australia’s
Superannuation Guarantee system and the United States' 401{k) plans. The level of fixed compensation paid to
employees is based on market standards and also takes into account a variety of factors, including an individual's
experience, the unique skills required to perform their role and their particular contribution to the Company.

At-risk Remuneration
At-risk remuneration includes both short-term and long-term incentives.

Short-term Incentlves

The Cempany has established its Annua! Bonus Plan ("ABP") to provide incentives for its employees to achieve specific
objectives that are determined by the Board on an annual basis. The ABP aims to:

 focus employees on achieving key financial, safety and operational targets;
« glign individual efforts with annual operating performance objectives; and
« reward superior individual and Company performance.

The ABP rewards senior executives and other Company employees for their achievement during a financial year of
specific key performance indicators as well as for individual performance. The incentive eamed under the ABP, if any, will
vary depending on relative perfformance against a variety of targets, as detailed more fully below. Exceptin certain
clreumstances, all participants in the ABP must remain employed with the Company on the date incentives are paid to
receive any award.
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The potential incentives available under the ABP range between 10% and 100% of an employee’s base salary depending
on the employee’s seniority and role. Of that potential incantive, betwaen 40% and 60% Is linked to the Company's
financial performanca, and the balance is linked to individual ebjectives relevant fo the employee's role, such as meating
sales targets, staying within budget or meeting other individual commitments. Additionally, certain overarching conditions
may reduce, but not increase, incentives under the ABP, including failure by a participant's business unit to achieve target
safety matrics (which can reduce the overall incentive payable under the ABP by up to 10%) and a participant's failure to
adhere to corporate leadership values, such as legal compliancs (which can reduce incentive payable under the ABP by
up to 100%).

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee approves the annual targets, both financial and non-financial, for the ABP.
Targets are set at both “threshold” and “stretch” levels. The committee’s philosophy in setting those targets is to establish
“threshold” targets that represent the desired minimum outcome for each goal and “stretch” targets that are realistically
achievable with excellent execution of the Company's annual plan. The financia! performance indicators adopted by the
Board as the mosl appropriate measures in the current year for determining the incentives payable under the ABF are net
profit after tax, total return on capital employed and net working capital. At the end of the financial year, the committes
assesses the level of achisvement against financial and non-financial targets. The financial determination of performance
measures |s determined after reviewing the Company's audited financial results.

Long-term Incentives

The Company has established a Long-term Incentive Plan (“LTIP") to assist predominantly in retaining key executives and
encouraging superior performance on a sustained basis. The incentive provided under the LTIP is an annual grant of two
tranches of performance rights (*Rights”) that will vest based on the satisfaction of both performance-based and time-
based conditions. Vested Rights will canvert to ordinary, fully paid shares on a one-for-cne basis.

The executives eligible to participate in the LTIP are senior divislonal, regional and corporate executives. The target vaiue
of annual LTIP grants varies from approximately 13% to 166% of a participant's base salary depending on the participant's
position, The target amounts are based on market averages for comparable roles at similarty-sized companies. The first
grants under the LTIP occurred in 2007 and were made to five senior employees who commenced employment with the
Company during the year. Only one of those five executives, Terrence Dolan, is among the KMP whose remuneration
appears in this Remuneration Report. The Company expects to make grants to approximately 120 executives in 2008.

Under the terms of the LTIP, a participant receives a specified number of Rights that will, when vested, result in the
participant receiving ordinary shares in the Company at no cost to the participant. The Company will acquire shares
underlying the 2007 grants in March 2008. For subsequent LTIP grants, the Company will acquire shares underlying the
grants at the time the grants are made, and the price paid by the Company will ba the prevailing market price of the shares
at the time of acquisition. The acquired shares will be held in trust, and, if a participant’s Rights vest, the participant will
receive dividends paid on those shares from the time of acquisition untif vesting. Shares acquired in respect of grants
which do not vest will be held by the trustee and will be avaitable for issue in respect of future grants.
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The tranches of Rights granted under the LTIP and the vesting conditions attaching to each are as follows:

vice president
level or higher;
75% for other

participants.

Tranche Percentage of | Vesting Condition Partial Vesting
Grant
Tranche 1 | 50% for Achievement of the cumulative eamings per Yes. Pro-rata vesting occurs on a
Rights executives share ("EPS") growth targets set by the Board at | pro-rata basis if the cumulative
who are ata a level the Board considers demanding. The three-year minimum EPS growth
vice president | targets include a “threshold” EPS target and a threshold Is surpassed. Atthe
level or higher; | *stretch” EPS target for each financial year minimum cumulative EPS growth
25% for other | during the three-year vesting period. Vesting will | threshold 50% of Tranche 1 Rights
participants. be determined by the Company's performance will vest, Full vesting occurs only if
against cumulative EPS targets for the vesting the Company’s EPS growth meets
period or exceeds the cumulative “stretch”
EPS growth target for the vesting
plus period.
Continuation of employment during the vesting
period.
Tranche 2 | 50% for Continucus employment with the Boart Longyear | No, except in certain special
Rights executives Group from the grant date until the third circumstances such as death,
who are ata anniversary of the grant date. redundancy, retirement, change of

control or other circumstances
considered by the Board in its
absolute discretion to be
extraordinary. In such
circumstances, the Board will
determine whether all or some
portion of the outstanding rights will
vest.
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Annual Financial Report
31 DECEMBER 2007

BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

Analysis of Bonuses Included in Remuneration

% Forfeited in
Year?

Target ST] % for

Financial Year

2007 Included as
Remuneration!
Paut Brunner 743,250
Scott Alexander 119,000
Michael Birch 91,954
Terrance Dolan 2 36,833
Patrick Johnson 116,600
Crag Kipp 366,563
Holm Oostveen -
Fabrizio Rasetti 116,025
Ronald Seltw ccd 2 185,938

85
as
85
85
85
85
a5
85

15
15
1§
15
15
15
100
15
15

1

S88388888

1. Bonus amounts included in remuneration for the financial year represent the amount that was accrued based on the achievement of
corporate performance criteria under the Annual Bonus Flan for 2007. The actual bonus payments to management have not been
finally calculated as of the date of this Remuneration Report and may be less than those listed, as the Company’s executive

performance evaluation process for 2007 has nct been completed.

2. The accrued bonuses for Messrs. Dolan and Sellwood have been calculated on a pro-rata basis since neither exacutive was
employed by the Company for the full calendar year.

3. The percentages listed are those expected to be forfeited during the financial year due to corporate financial performance criteria not

being met under the Annual Bonus Plan for 2007 or for the cessation of an executive’s employment.

2008 Included as % Forfeited in Target STl % for
Remuneration Year Financlal Year

Paut Brunner 246,381 94 6 100
Scott Alexander ! 10,570 o4 6 50
Michael Birch * 79,425 o4 6
Terrance Dolan 2 - - - -
Patrick Johnson ! 112,872 o4 [+ 50
Craig Kipp 188,749 o4 6 75
Holm Ocstveen 124,889 94 6 - |
Fabrizio Rasetti! 88,334 94 6 50
Ronald Selw cod 142,978 o4 6 70

1. The bonuses paid to Messrs. Alexander, Birch, Johnson and Rasetti under the Annual Bonus Plan for 2006 wers made on a pro-rata

hasis since each executive was employed for only a part of the year.

2. Mr. Dolan was not employed by the Group in 2006.

40



Annual Financial Report
31 DECEMBER 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

Rights and Shares Granted as Compensation to Key Management Personnel

Details of the Rights under the LTIP and restricted shares that were granted as compensation to the KMP during the
reporting period, and details of those that were exercised, vested, or lapsed during the financial year are as follows:

Vasted and
Held at the Held at the Exercisable

beginning of Granted as Vested Forfeited end of the as at

the Financlal Remun- during the during the Financial 31 December

Name Year Year eration year year Year 2007
Graham Bradley 2007 - 491,891 - - 491,891 -
Bruce Brook 2007 - 45045 - - 45,945 -
Geoff Handley 2007 - 32,432 - - 32,432 -
David McLemore 2007 - - - - - -
Peter St George 2007 - 72,972 - - 72,972 -
Terrence Dolan 2007 - 174,000 - - 174,000 -

The rights and shares were provided at no cost to the recipient.

With respect to the shares awarded to the non-executive directors in respect of work performed prior to and leading up to
the listing, the fair value of each share is the share price on the 12 April 2007 grant date (US$1.53). There is no exercise
price payable should rights shares vest.

With respect to the Rights granted to Mr. Dolan under the LTIP, the fair value of each right is the share price on the 17
September 2007 grant date (US$1.81). There is no exercise price payable should the Rights vest

The non-executive directors were entitled to apply for shares in the listing, and the Company agreed to grant additional
shares to the non-executive directors in consideration of their efforts ieading up to the listing. The number of shares that
were granted was determined in part by the number of shares for which each non-executive director subscribed, and the
granted shares are subject to vesting and sale conditions as described in the prospectus.

Except as shown in the table above, no options or other rights over shares in the Company have been granted to KMP
during or since the end of the financial year.

During the reporting pericd, no shares were issued on the exercise of options or rights praviously granted as
compensation.
Analysls of Movements In Rights and Shares (not audited)

The movement during the reporting period, by value of the relevant rights and shares In the Company held by KMP is
detailed below:

Entitlement
to Rights Tetal Rights
grantedin  ExercisedIn  Forfeited in Value In
Name Year year $ Year § Year $ Year §

Graham Bradley 1 2007 752,583 - - 752,593
Bruca Brook 1 2007 70,295 - - 70,295
Geoff Handley 1 2007 49,620 - - 49,620
David McLemore 2007 - - - -
Peter St George 1 2007 111,647 - - 111,847
Terrence Dolan 2 2007 314,940 - . 314,940

1. The value of the entitlement to rights grants In the year is the fair value of the rights calculated at grant date having regard to the
closing price on the 12 Aprit 2007 date of grant (US$1.53}.

2. The value of the entitlement to Rights granted in the year is the fair value of the Rights calculated at the grant date, which was the
closing price on the 17 September 2007 date of grant {US$1.81).
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31 DECEMBER 2007

BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

Service Agreements and Summary of Key Contract Terms
Summary of specific terms of the contracts between the Company and Key Management Personnel are set out below.

Name and position
hald during the
Financial Year

Notice Notice
Duration of Perlod by Perlod by
contract Com pany Executive

Termination paymants
{where these are In addition to
statutory entitlements)

Paul Brunner
Managing Director
Fresident
Chief Executive Officer

To 12 April 2010 None Specified 180 Days

» For termination w ith cause, statutory
entitiements only
» For termination w thout cause
« 18 months' salary
+ Pro-rata bonus to termination date
*» Waiver of medical insurance
premiums for 12 months
or untll 12 April 2010
w hichever & later
« Up to $100,000 relocation expense
reimbursement

Patrick Johnson
Senior Vice President, Humzn
Resources

None Specified None Specified 90 days

« For termination w ith cause, statutory
entitiements only
* For termination w ithout cause
« 12 months' salary
* Pro-rata bonus to termination date
= Waiver of medical insurance
prermiuns for 12 months

Cralg Kipp
Chief Operating Officer

None Specified None Specified 90 days

« For termination w ith cause, statutory
enttierments only
« For termination w ithout cause
« 18 months’ salary
* Pro-rata bonus to termination date
» Waiver of medical insurance
premiums for 12 months or
unti! 15 May 2008,
w hichever Is ater
« LUp to $100,000 relocation expense
relmbursement

Fabrizlo Rasetti
Senior Vice President,
General Counse!
and Secretary

None Specified None Specified 90 days

+ For termination with cause, statutory
entitlerments only
» For termination w thout cause
« 12 months' salary
* Pro-rata bonus to termination date
« Waiver of medical insurance
premums for 12 months

With respect to the above summary of Key Management Personnel employment terms, Messrs. Oostveen and Seliwood
are no longer employed by the Group. Also, as is common in the United States, Messrs. Birch and Dolan are at-wili
employees and may be terminated, or may terminate their employment, with no notice by, or in favour of, the Group. Mr.
Alexander also is an at-will employee but would be entifled pursuant to the terms of his employment offer to six months’
salary for a termination by the Group without cause.
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NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Details of amounts paid or payable for non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor are cutlined in Note 37 to
the financial statements.

The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services, during the year, by the auditor (or by another person or
firm on the auditor's behalf) is compatible with the generat standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001.

The directors are of the opinion that the services, as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements, do not compromise
the external auditor's independence, based on advice received from the Audit Committee, for the following reasons:

¢ all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee to ensure that they do not
impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor, and

» none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independenca as set out in Code of
Conduct APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional & Ethical
Standards Board, including reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in a management or decision-
making capacity for the company, acting as an advocate for the company or jointly sharing economic risks and
rewards.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS AND AUDITORS

The directors and officers of the Company are indemnified by the Company to the maximum extent penmitted by law
against liabilities incurred in their respective capacities as directors or officers. In addition, during the financial year the
Company paid premiums in respect of contracts Insuring directors and officers of the Company and any refated body
corporate against liabilities incurred by them to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The insurance
contracts prohibit disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

The Company has not paid any premiums in respect of any contract insuring Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, against a liability
incurred in the role as an auditor of the Company.
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AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor's independence declaration is included on page 45 of the annual financial raport.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

Boart Longyear Limited is a company of 2 kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding off" of amounts in the directors’ report and financial report. Amounts in
the directors’ report and the financial report are presented in US dollars and have been rounded off to the nearast
thousand dollars in accordance with that Class Order, unless otherwise indicated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

On behalf of the Directors

é’}..«.«."—ﬁ ]

Graham Bradley
Chairman

Sydney, 29 February 2008

Qneonsts

Paul Brunner
Managing Director

Sydney, 29 February 2008




Deloitte.

The Directors

Boart Longyear Limited
919-929 Marion Road
Mitchell Park SA 5043
Australia

29 February 2008

Dear Directors
Boart Longyear Limited

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
AB.N. 74 490 121 080

Grosvenor Place

225 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

PO Box N250 Grosvenor Placa
Sydney NSW 1220 Australia

DX 10307SSE

Tei: +61 (0) 2 8322 7000
Fax: +81{0) 2 9322 7001
www.delgitte com.au

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, | am pleased to provide the fotlowing

declaration of independence to the directors of Boart Longyear Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of Boart Longyear Limited for the financial
year ended 31 December 2007, | declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been

no contraventions of;

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit;

and

(i) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Yours sincerely

Pfite, Bk kb,
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Ot
Rod Smith
Partner

Chartered Accountants

Lizbility limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Deloitte.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
AB.N. 74 490 121 060

Grosvenor Place
225 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

PO Box N250 Grosvenor Place

Sydney NSW 1220 Ausralia

DX 10307SSE

Tel: +61 (0) 29322 7000
Fux: +51 (032 9322 TO01
www.delpitts.com gu

Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Boart Longyear Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Boart Longyear Limited, which comprises the balance sheet as at
31 December 2007, and the income statement, cash flow statement and statement of recognised income and expense for
the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’
declaration of the consolidated entity, comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from
time to time during the financial year as set out on pages 48 to 122.

We have also audited the compensation disclosures contained in the directors’ report. As permitted by the Corporations
Regulations 2001, the company has disclosed information about the compensation of key management personnel
(“compensation disclosures™) as required by paragraphs Aus 25.4 to Aus 25.7.2 of Accounting Standard AASB 124
Related Party Disclosures (“"AASB 1247), under the heading “remuneration report” on pages 31 to 42 of the directors’
report, and not in the financial report. These compensation disclosures are identified in the directors’ report as being
subject to audit. The remuneration report also contains information not subject to audit

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report and the AASB 124 Compensation Disclosures Contained in the
Directors’ Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. The directors are also responsible for the compensation disclosures contained in the directors’ report. In
Note 3, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ensures that
the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report and compensation disclosures contained in the
directors’ report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These
Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement and the
compensation disclosures comply with AASB 124,

Member of
. Deloitts Toucha Tohmatsu
Liability limited by & scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Deloitte.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report and the compensation disclosures contained in the directors’ report. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report and the
compensation disclosures contained in the directors’ report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report and the compensation disclosures contained in the directors’ report in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s intemnal control. An audit also includes cvaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report and the compensation disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Auditor's Independence Declaration
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Report
In our opinion:
(2) the financial report of Boart Longyear Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December
2007 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 3.
Auditor's Opinion on the AASB 124 Compensation Disclosures Contained in the Directors’ Report
In our opinion, the compensation disclosures that are contained on pages 31 to 42 under the heading “remuneration

report” of the directors’ report and identified as being subject to audit, comply with paragraphs Aus 25.4 to Aus
25.7.2 of Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures.

DA ks Bldon
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

2t

Rod Smith

Partner

Chartered Accountants
Sydney, 29 February 2008
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BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
31 DECEMBER 2007

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

The directors declare that:

(a) in the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able o pay Its debts as
and when they become due and payable;

{b) in the directors' opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the
financial position and performance of the consolidated entity; and

{c) the directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directars made pursuant to section 295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

% .

Graham Bradley
Chairman

Sydney, 28 February 2008

A mors

Paul Brunner
Managing Director

Sydney, 29 February 2008
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Income Statement

For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
Consolidated Parent
2007 2008 2007
Note Uss'000 uss'eco US$000

Continuing operations

Revenue 5 1,575,737 1,118,478 -
Cost of goods sold {1,047,088) (764,099) -
Gross margin 528,649 354,377 -
Other revenua 5 - - 15,108
Other income 7 18,466 8,448 -
Genera and administrative ex panses (150,260) {156,865) (5,996)
Selling and marketing ex penses (151,567) {158,252) -
Other ex penses (8,318) (27,357) {7.640)
Qperating proft 236,970 20,351 1,472
Interest Income 5 5,012 4,497 3,048
Flnance costs 6 {105,922 (98, 760) -
Profit (loss) before tax ation 7 136,060 (73,912) 4,521
Income tax {ex pense) benefit 8 (54,945) (8,736) 2,088
Profit {loss) for the y ear from condinuing operations 81,115 {82,648) 7,509

Discontintted operations (net of tax)

Loss for the y ear from discontinued operations 7,30 - (708) -
Loss on sale of disconfinued operations 7.30 - {5.617) -
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity

helders of the parent 81,115 {88,971) 7,509

Earnings (toss) per share:
From continuing and discontinued operafions:
Basic and diluted eamings per share 24 5.4 cents {5.6) cents

From continuing operations:
Basic and dluted eamings per share 24 5.4 cens {5.6) cents

49
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Balance Sheet

As at 31 Decembar 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
Consolidated Parent
2007 2008 2007
Note uss'oco us$000 Us$000

Current assots
Cash and cash equivalents 32a 87,548 26,547 1,087
Trade and other recelvables 9 243,212 226,885 60,829
tnv entories 10 176,265 133,645 -
Other tnancid assefs 11 604 2,22 -
Current tax receivable 8 8,918 8,267
Prepaid ex penses 32,975 2,118 -

550,522 419,682 61,916
Assats classified as held for sale 3 18,067 - -
Total currant assets 566,589 419,682 61,916
Non-current sssets \
Property, plant and equipment 12 358,360 252,301 -
Goodwill 13 206,186 125,336 -
Cther intangible assets 14 23,478 16,492 -
Deferred tax assets 8 31,391 26,998 15,999
Other tnancia assets 1 - 3 2,175,180
Other assets 544 1,359 -
Defined beneft plan asset 18 18,797 - -
Total non-current assets 645,756 426,397 2,141,179
Total assets 1,212,345 848,079 2.253,085
Currant labllites
Trade and oher pay ables 15 244,685 238,691 8,533
Provisions 17 14,318 28,542 -
Current tax pay able 8 25,323 29,318 7277
Loans and borrow Ings 18 6,543 11,884 -

290,869 308,433 15,810
Liabiities direcly associated with non-current

assets classifled as held for sals 31 8,370 - .

Total current liabllltles 299,239 308,433 15,810
Non-current liabllities
Trade and other pay ables 15 200 686 -
Loans and bomowings 16 650,170 1,275,697 -
Other financia llablities 11 12,985 2,300 -
Deferred x liablifes 8 7.632 2,531 -
Provisions 17 22,475 37,768 -
Total non-current llabllities 693,466 1,319,000 -
Tatal liabllities 992,705 1,627,433 15,810
Mst assets (llabllitles) 219,640 {781,354) 2,237,285
Equity
lssued capital 19 478,673 452,331 2,229776
Reserves 20 22,534 1,897 -
Other equity n {141,539 {861,546) -
Relined eamings (accumulated ksses) 21 (141,028) (244,038) 1,509
Total squlty {deficit) 219,640 (781,354) 2,237,285
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Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
Consolidated Parent
2007 2008 2007
Note uss$0o0 USss$'000 USS000
Less on cash fow hedges recorded in equily 20 {12,453) (6.043) -
Exchanga diflerences arising on translation of foreign operations 20 34,695 2,529 -
Achuarial gains related o defined benefit plans 18 29,847 4,696 -
ncome tax on income and ex pensa recognised diracty
through equity {3.457) {1,506) .
Net Income recognised directly In equity 48,232 (324) -
Transfer o proft or loss on cash flow hedges 20 1.673 3,838 -
Profit {loss) for the perod 81,115 {88,971) 7,509
Total recognised income and expense for the perlod 131,020 {85,457 7,509
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Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 31 Cecember 2007

BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

Consolldatsd Parent
2007 2008 2007
Nots Us$000 us$'000 Us$000
Cash flows from operating getivitios
Receipts fom customers 1,559,410 1,053,060 -
Payments o suppllers and employ ees {1,308,794) {988,5349) (1,039}
Interest and other costs of finance ralated b pasHPO debt structurs (39,660) - -
Interest and other costs of finance - (70,107) 1,363
investment and interest income recelved 5,012 4,497 15,108
Income tax paid (58,190) (40,473) -
Net cash lows from {used in) operating actvifes 32d 157,778 {41,561} 15,432
Cash flows from Investing activities
Amounts advanced Ib related paries/associates - (234} -
Purchasa of property, plant and equipment (124,278) (84,106) -
Proceads fom sale of property, plant and equipment 7,283 27,913 -
Dev elopment costs paid {3,032) (1,561) -
Payments for acquisifions of businesses 32b (129,833) (145,488) -
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiary, net of cash disposed 32c 10,053 70,582 -
Payments for investments - - (1,890,388)
Purchage price refund - 21,219 -
Purchase of dariv ative instruments {1,054) (7,757 -
Net cash flows used in investing activites (240,851) (99,492) (1,890,388)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares 1,952,655 448,359 1,952,656
Pay ments for sham issuance coss (76.613) - (76,613) |
Proceeds fom issuance of share options - 4129 -
Paymenis for debl issuance costs {16,955) (33,347) -
Intarest and other costs of finance ralaked o pre-IPO debt structure {37,332 - -
Proceeds from borrowings 1,060,518 1,300,500 -
Repayment of borrow Ings (1,709,427) (589,995) -
Cash paid in merger transaction - {991,546) -
Payment io redeemable note holders {1,030,828) - -
Netcash fows from financing activities 142,018 138,200 1,878,043
Not increase (decrease) In cash and cash squivalents 58,945 {2,853) 1,087
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25,530 27,537 -
Effacts of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in
forelgn currencles 3,073 845 .
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year 322 87,548 25,330 1,087
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

General Information

Boart Longyear Limited (the “Parent” or the “Company”) is a public company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange Limited ("ASX") and is incorporated in Australia. Boart Longyear Limited and subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "“Boart Longyear Group” or the "Group”) operate in five geographic regions, which are defined
as North America, South America, Europe, Australia and Asia, and Africa.

Boart Longyear Limited's registered office and its principat place of business are as follows:

Reglstered office Principal place of business
916-929 Marion Road 2640 West 1700 South
Mitchell Park SA 5043 Salt Lake City , UT 84104
Australia United States of America
Tel: +61 (8) 8375 8375 Tel: +1 (801) 972 6430

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

During the current financial year, the Boart Longyear Group adopted all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (*AASB") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for the current annual reporting period. These Standards and Interpretations include:

. AASB 7 'Financial Instruments; Disclosures’

. AASB 2005-10 "Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AASB 132, AASB 101, AASBE 114, AASB
117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023, AASB 1038) )

. AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements Standards'

The adoption of these new and revised Standards and Interpretations did not have an impact on the Group's
financial results or balance sheet as they are only concerned with disclosure.

Reacently Issued accounting standards to be applied in future reporting periods

The accounting standards and AASB Interpretations that will be applicable to the Group in future reporting
periods are detailed below. Apart from these standards and interpretations, management has considered other
accounting standards that will be applicable in future periods, however they have been considered insignificant to
the Group.

Borrowing costs

AASB 123 'Borrowing Costs’ was revised in May 2007, with the revised standard becoming applicable to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. A related omnibus standard AASB 2007-6 ‘Amendments
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 123" makes a number of amendments to other accounting
standards as a result of the revised AASB 123 and must be adopted at the same time. This revised version
requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have an impact on the Group's
financial restlts or balance sheet.

Segment reporting

AASB 8 ‘Operating Segments’ Is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and
replaces AASB 114 ‘Segment Reporting'. A related omnibus standard AASB 2007-3 'Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8' makes a number of amendments to other accounting standards as a
rasult of AASB 8 and must be adopted at the same time. AASB 8 requires entities to detenmine operating
segments based on their internal management reporting structure for the reporting of their financial performance.
The adoption of AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3 are not expected to have an impact on the Group's financial results or
balance shest as they are only concerned with disclosure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Reinstatement of options In Australian Accounting Standards

AASB 2007-4 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Arising from ED 151 and Other Amendments’ is
applicable to reporting periods beginning on of after 1 July 2007. This standard amends a number of existing
Australian Accounting Standards by reintroducing accounting treatment options that are included in International
Financial Reporting Standards (“fFRS") that were originally removed by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board. The standard also removes a number of disclosure requirements that were originally included in
Australian Accounting Standards and not required by IFRS.

The accounting options which are being re-introduced include:

permitting an entity to adopt the indirect method of presenting its cash flow statement;

permitting an entity to apply proportionate consolidation to interests in joint venture entities; and

permitting an entity to record non-monetary grants at nominal amounts and to present assets and expenses
net of related grants.

The adoption of AASB 2007-4 Is not expected to change any of the amounts recognised in the financial
statarments but may affect the type and format of the Information disclosed.

Share transactions

AASB Interpretation 11 AASB 2 'Group and Treasury Share Transactions' and AASB 2007 — 1 ‘Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 11 are effective for annual reporting periods
commencing on or after 1 March 2007. AASE Interpretation 11 addresses whether certain types of share-based
payment transactions should be accounted for as equity-settled or as cash settled transactions and specifies the
accounting in a subsidiary’s financial statements for the share-based payment arrangements involving equity
instruments of the Parent. The adoption of AASB Interpretation 11 is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group.

Other standards

AASB Interpretation 14 AASB 119 *The Limit on a Defined Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interactions’ is effective for annual reporting perieds commencing on or after 1 January 2008. Interpretation 14
aims to clarify how to determine in normal circumstances the limit on the asset that an employer's balance sheet
may contain in respect of its defined benefit pension plan. The adoption of Interpretation 14 Is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group.,

AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements (revised September 2007)', AASB 2007-10 ‘Further
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101’ is effective for annual reporting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2009. AASB 101 introduces “total comprehensive income”, changes the titles
of some of the financial statements, requires a statement of financial position at the beginning of the eariiest
comparative period when comparatives are “restated”, requires disclosure of Income tax relating to each
component of other comprehensive income. Management has not yet assassed the impact of this standard.

IFRS 2 ‘Business Combinations (revised)', IAS 27 'Consolldated and Separate Financial Statements (revised)’
are effective for annual reporting pericds commencing on or after 1 July 2009. These standards amend the
manner In which business combinations and changes in ownership Interests In subsidiaries are accounted for.
They also make consequential amendments to other standards, most notably IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates’
and IAS 31 "Interests in Joint Ventures’. Management has not yet assessed the impact of these standards.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

This financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of applicable Accounting Standards including Australian Interpretations and the Corporation Act
2001

The financial report includes the separate financial statements of the Parent and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("A-IFRS™).
Compliance with A-IFRS ensures that the financial statements and notes of the Parent and the Group comply
with IFRS.

This is the first financial report prepared for Boart Longyear Limited following its incorporation on 2 January 2007.
As Boart Longyear Limited was incorporated after the date of transition to the Australian equivalents to A-IFRS,
all financial statements and information presented in this financial report are in accordance with A-IFRS. As no
prior annual financial report has been preparad, no reconciliation from pravious accounting principles to A-IFRS
has been presented.

In accordance with AASB 3 ‘Business Combinations’, the acquisition of Resources Services Holdeo, Inc. ("RSH!")
by Boart Longyear Investments Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Boart Longyear Limited, was
accounted for as a reverse acquisition, and the consolidated financial statements have therefore been prepared
as a continuation of the financial statements of RSHI, the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, the comparative
information provided for the balance sheet and related information as at 31 December 2006 as well as the
income statement, statement of cash flows, statement of recognised income and expense and related information
for 2006 is that of RSHI and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

The comparative Information in these financial statemnents represents the continuation of RSHI. As the prior year
financial statements were prepared using UK-GAAP, this comparative information has been restated to comply
with Australlan Accounting Standards. As a result of the finalisation of this process a number of iImmaterial
adjustments have been made to the comparative financial information presented in these financia) statements
compared to the comparative financial information presented in the half-year financial report.

The financial report is presented in United States dollars which Is Beart Longyear Limited's functional and
presentation currency.

Basls of preparation

The financial report has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certaln financial
instruments that are stated at fair value. Costis based on fair values of the consideration given in exchange for
assets. :

In applying A-IFRS, management is required to make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on.historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the ravision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of A-IFRS that have significant effects on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where
applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial inforrnation
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underiying
transactions or other events is reported. These accounting policles have been consistently applied by each entity
in the Group.

The significant accounting policies set out below have been applied in the preparation and presentation of the
financial report for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the comparative information.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

Basis of consoiidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by combining the financial statements of all of the
entities that comprise the consolidated entity, Boart Longyear Limited {the legal parent entity), RSHI (the
accounting acquirer) and subsidiaries as defined in AASB 127 ‘Consclidated and Separate Financial
Statements’. Consistent accounting policies are appiled by each entity and in the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries are all entities for which the Boart Longyear Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferrad to the Group until such
time as the Group ceases to contro! such entity. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to make their accounting policies consistent with the Boart Longyear
Group accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-company balances and transactions, and
unrealised income and expenses arising from inter-company transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment

Presentation currency

Results of the major operating businesses are recorded in their functional currencies, which are
generally their local currency. The Group's US dollar denominated revenue represents the most
predominant currency. Accordingly, under A-IFRS, management believes that US dollar reporting
represents the best indicator of the resuits of the Group and therefore the consolidated financial
information is presented in US dollars.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits repayable on demand with a financial
institution. Cash balances and overdrafts in the balance sheet are stated at gross amounts within
current assets and current liabilities, unless there is a legal right of offset at the bank. The cash and
cash equivalents balance primarily consists of money market funds and bank term deposits with original
maturity at time of purchase of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other recelvables

Trade receivables are recorded at amortised cost. The Group reviews collectability of trade receivables
on an ongoing basis and makes judgments as to its abllity to collect outstanding receivables and
provides an allowance for credit losses when there is objective evidenca that the Group will not be able
to collect the debt. The amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for doubtful debts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
recorded In other income in the income statement.

Inventorias

Products

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on a standard cost method, which approximates actual cost on a first-in first-out basis, and includes
expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads (including depreciation) based on normal operating capacity. MNet
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.
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BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

N

(9}

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Drilling Services

The Group maintains an inventory of core drilling rods and casings and certain consumables for use in
the rendering of services. Such inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Core drilling rods and casings are initially recognised at cost and are expensed as utilised. A regular
and ongoing review is undertaken to establish whether any items are obsolete or damaged, and if so
their carrying amount is written down to its net realisable value. Allowances are recorded for inventory
considered to be excess or obsolete.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, including
the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assetto a
working condition for its intended use, and the present value at acquisition of the costs of dismantling
and remaving the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as par of that equipment. When parts
of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate assets.

Subsequent costs are recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, as
appropriata, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow
to the consolidated entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, including
repairs and maintenance, are recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Depreciation is recegnised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term or their useful lives. Land and properties in the course of construction are not depreciated.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Buildings 20-40 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Drilling rigs 5-12 years
Other drilling equipment 1-5 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment:

Hardware 3-5 years

Software 1-5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.
Goodwilll and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the attributable net
assets and is not amortised, but tested for impairment annually. If there is an indication that the goodwill
may be impaired, the impairment is recognised in income and is not subsequently reversed. When the
excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the attributable net assets is negative (a
surplus on acguisition), it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

As part of its transition to A-IFRS, the Beant Longyear Group has restated only those business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2006. In respect of acquisitions prior to 1 January
2006, goodwill represents the unamortised amount recognised under the Boart Longyear Group's
previous accounting framework, UK GAAP, at 1 January 2006.

S7



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financlal year ended 31 Decembar 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

(h}

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trademarks and trade names

Trademarks and trade names recognised by the Boart Longyaar Group are considered to have
indefinite useful lives and are not amortised. Each perlod, the useful life of each of these assets is
reviewed to determine whether events and circumstances continue to suppon an indefinite useful life
assessment for the asset. Such assets are tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if
events or circumstances indicate that the asset might be Impaired.

Contractual customer relattonships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business combination are identified and racognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can
be measured reliably. Contractual customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Contractual customer relationships are amortised over a 10 year period on a straight line basis. The
estimated useful lifa and amortisation method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting pericd,
with any changes being recognised as a change in accounting estimate.

Patents

Patents are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. The
estimated useful life and amortisation methed is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period,
with any changes being recognised as a change in accounting estimate.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, Is recognised in profit or less when incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved
products and processes. Develcpment expenditure is capitalised only if development costs can be
measured refiably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic
benefits are probable, and the Boart Longyear Group intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sel! the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its
intended use. Other development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised In profit or loss on a straight line basis cver
the estimated useful lives, which on average is 15 years.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale and liabilities directly associated are
measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

The Boart Longyear Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset {or disposal group) Is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for such a
sale and the sale is highly probable. The sale of the asset {or disposal group) must be expected to be
completed within one year from the date of classification, except in the circumstances where sale is
delayed by events or circumstances outside the Group's control but it remains committed to a sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h)

)

0

Assets classified as held for sale (continued)

The Group discloses the results of these disposal groups as discontinued operations on the face of the
income statement only if they meet the following requirements:

« represent a separate major line of business or geagraphical area of operations;

« are part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or

e are a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leasas are initially recognised at their fair value or, if lower, at amounts equal
to the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.
The correspanding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease paymenis are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly against income, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs. Refer to Note
3(p). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the pericds in which they are incurred.

Finance leased assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a stralght-line basis over the lease term,
except where ancther systematic basis is more representative of the time pattemn in which aconomic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under cperating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease Incentives

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of incentives are recognised as a reduction of renta!
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Current and deferred taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.:

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, in respect of all temporary differences that
have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an
obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay iess tax in the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date. Temporary differences are differances between the Group’s taxable profits and its
results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences ralating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0

L)

Current and deferred taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporing
date.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and thersfere recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidencs, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable prefits
from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as
the liability to pay the refated dividend is recognised.

Tax consolidation

The Group includes tax consolidated groups for the entities incorporated in Australia and the United
States. Tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assats arising from temporary
differences of the members of each tax-consolidated group are recognised in the separate financlal
statements of the members of that tax-consolidated group using the 'separate taxpayer within group’
approach by reference to the carrying amounts in the separate financial statements of each entity. Tax
values arising from the unused tax losses and relevant tax credits of each members of the tax-
consolidated group are recognised by the head entity in that tax-consolidated group.

Entities within the various tax-consolidated groups will enter into tax funding arrangements and tax-
sharing agreements with the head entities. Under the terms of the tax funding amangements, the
relevant head entity and each of the entities in that tax-consclidated group will agree to pay a tax
equivalent payment to or from the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax asset of
the entity.

Derlvative financial Instruments

The Boart Longyear Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts
and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fzir value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event, the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or
hedges of foreign currency risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges).

The fair value of hedging derivatives is classified as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the
remaining maturity of the hedge relationship is more than 12 months and as a current asset or a current
liability if the remaining maturity of the hedge relationship is less than 12 months.

Derivatives not designated into an effective hedge relationship are classified as a current asset or a
current liability regardless of their remaining maturities.

Hedge accounting

The Boart Longyear Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives,
embedded derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges
or cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm cormmitments are accounted for as cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Boart Longyear Group documents the relationship
between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
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)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an cngeing basis, the Beart Longyear Group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highty effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that
is attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Boart Longyear Group revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exerclsed, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. The adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is
amortised to profit or loss from that date. '

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as part of cther expanses or other Income.

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is
racognised in profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred
in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or
liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Boart Longyear Group revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no fenger qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised In profit or loss,

Impairment

Non-financial assets

The Boart Langyear Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. |f any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, a recoverable amount is estimated at each
reporting date.

An Impairment loss is recognised If the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impaimment losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised In respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use or its fair
value, less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks spacific to the asset.
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Impairment (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impaimment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the assel's carrying amount dces not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financlal assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impaiment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the

difference between its carrying amount, and the prasent value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the original effective interest rate.  An impairment loss is not recognised directly for trade

receivables because the canying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a

trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries

of amounts previously written off are recorded in other income In the income statement. Changes in the |
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit orf loss. |

Individually significant financia! assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the

impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent unsecured liabilities
for goods and services provided to the Boart Longyear Group prior to the end of the financial period that
are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obligated to make future payments.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Boart Longyear Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

Warranties

The Boart Longyear Group maintains warranty reserves for consumable type products manufactured or
sold by its various companles. Based on past experience, warranty returns have not been significant. A
provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision
is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated
probabilities.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal
restructuring plan, and the Group starts to implement the restructuring plan or announces the main
features of the restructuring plan to those affected by the plan in a sufficiently specific manner to ralse a
valid expectation of those affected that the entity will carry out the restructuring. The Group's
restructuring accruals include only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are these
that are both necessarily incurred by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of
the entity,
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(o)

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefils to ba derived by the Group
from a contract are lower than the unaveidable cost of meeting its cbligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Employee benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries, annuat leave, long service leave, and sick leave
represent present obligations resulting from employees' services provided to the reporting date and are
calculated at discounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the Boart
Longyear Group expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers
compensation Insurance and payroll tax, when it is probable that settlement will be required and they
are capable of being measured reliably.

Liabilittes recognised in respect of employee benefits expacted to be settled within 12 months, are
measured at their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12
months are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employses up to reporting date.

Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits, such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidised
goods and services, are expensed based on the net marginal cost to the Group as the benefits are
taken by the employees.

A provision Is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing ptans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contrlbution penslon plans and post-retirement benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legat or constructive cbligation to pay further contributicns if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and pricr periods. The amount recognised as an expense In the income statement in respect of
pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year. Differences
between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals
or prepayments in the balance sheet.

Defined bensfit pension plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit ptans Is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any fund assets Is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have
maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Group's defined benefit obligations. Where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market yields at the reporting date on govemment bonds are used.

The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and related changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to retained eamings.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past sarvice by
employees is recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the bensfits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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{0} Employee benefits (continued)

)]

Where the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of
any unrecognised past service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan, Past service cost is the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation for employee services in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the
introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past
service costs may either be positive (where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where
existing benefits are reduced).

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments with employees and others providing similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity Instrument at the grant date. Fair value is measured by use of a
Black-Scholes-Merton madel, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straightine basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
vest.

The above policy is applied to all equity-settled share-based payments that were granted after 7
November 2002 that vest after 1 January 2006. No amount has been recognised in the financial
statements in respect of the other equity-settled shared-based payments.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with other parties are measured at the fair value of the
goods and services received, except where the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case
they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability equal to the portion of the goods or services received
is racognised at the current fair value determined at each reporting date.

Earn-out and bonus agreements

In certain circumstances, previous owners of acquired businesses may become ernployees of the
Group. A business combination agreement may include earn-out or bonus clauses which provide for an
adjustment to the cost of the combination contingent upon future events. If contingent consideration is,
in substance, compensation for services or profit sharing (e.g., clauses requiring that the individual
remain employed by the Group), those payments are recognised as an expense over the paricd of
services provided. If the substance of the consideration is payment for the business acquired, the
amount is treated as an adjustment to the cost of the business combination.

Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs. Debt issuance costs are amortised using the effective interest
rate method over the life of the borrowing. For refinancing or restructuring of liabilities which are not
considered a substantial modification, all costs incurred related to the refinancing or restructuring are
amortised to profit and loss in the period of refinancing. For refinancing or restructuring of liabilities
which are considered a substantial modification, a gain {loss) Is recognised and the initial issue costs
are written off, while any issuance costs related to the refinancing are recorded against the liabilities.

Borrowings are classified as current liahilities unless the Group has an uncenditional right to defer
seitlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investmentincome eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets Is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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{q) Financial instruments

Dabt and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial guarantee contract labilltles

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initfally at their fair values and subsequently at the
higher of the amount recognised as a provision and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation in accordance with the revenue recognition policies described in Note 3(s).

Financial assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concemed, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs
except for those financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss which are initially
measured at fair value,

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost in the Group financial
statements. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in associates ara accounted for under the
equity method in the consclidated financial statements and the cost method in the Group financial
statements.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that hava fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classifled as ‘loans and receivables’. Non-current loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method iess impairment. Interest is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate. Current trade receivables are recorded at the
Invoiced amount and do not bear interest.

Flnanclal liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other
financial liabilities.

Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financia! liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability. Fair value Is determined in the manner described in Nota 11.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial fiability and of allocating interaest expense over the relevant period. The
effactive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Transaction costs on the Issue of equity Instruments

Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity as a
reduction of the proceeds of the equity instruments to which the costs relate. Transaction costs are the
costs that are incurred directly in connection with the issue of those equity instruments and which would
not have been incurred had those instruments not been issued.
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(s) Revenue recognition

®

{w)

v

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates and sales taxes. Revenue is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending on the individual terms of the contract of sale and with
local statute, but are generally when title and insurance risk has passed to the customer and the goods
have been delivered to a contractually agreed location.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion of the contract is determined as follows:

« revenue from drilling services contracts is recognised on the basis of actual meters drilled for each
contract; and

¢ revenue from time and material contracts is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours gre
delivered and direct expenses are incurred.

Investment income is accrued over time, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
applicable interest rate.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements of the Boart Longyear Group and its international subsidiaries have been
translated into US dollars using the exchange rate at each balance sheet date for assets and liabilities of
foreign operations and at an average exchange rate for revenues and expenses throughout the pariod.
The effects of exchange rate fluctuations on the translation of assets and liabilities are recorded as
movements in the foreign currency translation reserve ("FCTR").

The Group's presentation currency is the US dollar. The Group determines the functional currency of its
subsidiaries based on the currency used in their primary economic environment, and, as such, foreign
currency translation adjustments are recorded in the FCTR for those subsidiares with a functional
currency different from the US dollar.

Transaction gains and losses, and unrealised translation gains and losses on shori-term inter-company
and operating receivables and payables denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,
are included in other income in the consolidated income statement.

Contingencies

The recognition of accruals for legal disputes is subject to a significant degree of estimation. Accruals
are made for loss contingencies when it is deemed probable that an adverse outcome will occur and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Accruals are recognised when (a) the Boart Longyear
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, (b) it is more likely than
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and (c) the amount of that
outflow has been reliably estimated.

Saegment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Boart Longyear Group that is engaged either in
providing related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments. The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is business
segments.
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{w)

{x)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the purchase methed, The cost of
the business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values {at the date of exchange) of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under AASB 3 'Business Combinations’ are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-currant assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with AASB
5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’, which are recognised and measured
at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initialty measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority's proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, fiabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),
except:

+ where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or
» forreceivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows,
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A gecgraphical segment is
engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and
retums that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

The Boart Longyear Group has two business segments—Global Drilling Services and Global Products—which
provide services and products to mining companies, energy companies {ccal, oil, gas and geothermal}, water
utilities, environmental and geotechnical engineering firms, government agencies and other mining services
companies.

Global Driling Services consists of providing rigs, equipment, consumables and services for drilling and
completing holes and the extraction and presentation of rock, soil and water samples on a contract basis. This
business depends upon the supply and utilisation of drilling rigs, the skills and training of the drilling services
personnel and the ability to negotiate the contracts under which these services are provided to customers.

Global Products designs, manufactures and markets drilling rigs and drilling products such as rods, bits and core
barre!s used in the drilling of holes. The Global Products business sells the drilling products to mining and
construction companies as well as to contract drilling services that use these products as consumables in the
drilling procass. The Global Drilling Services segment is a major user of these products. This segment depends
upon the development of products and the ability to manufacture, distribute and supply products to the Group's
world-wide customers in a timely and competitive manner.

These business segments are the basis for which the Group reports its primary segment information.

External sales Inter-segment {1) Total
2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006

ussooe uss'000 Uss$000 Uss'o00 Us$000 Uss000
Globai Drilling Services 970,898 631,736 - . 970,898 631,736
Giobal Products 604,839 512,252 143,292 120,155 748,131 632,407
Total of all segments 1,575,737 1,143,988 143,292 120,155 1,718,029 1,264,143
Eiiminaticns (143,292) (120,155)
Discontinued . {25512
Revenue from continuing operations 1,575,737 1,118,476
Interest revenue 5012 4,497
Revenua from discontinued operations - 25512
Consclidated revenue 1,580,749 1,143,485
{i} Inter-segment sales are recorded at amounts equal to competitive market prices charged to external customers for

similar goods.
Profit (loss) before tax Assels Liabilities
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Uss'0o00 Uss$'000 uss'co0 usS§000 uss'o00 us$oo
Global Exilling Services 180,133 100,047 430,750 318,407 100,682 67,525
Global Products 114,611 72,398 320,835 273,804 57,730 48,201
Total of all segments 294,744 172,445 751,585 592,208 158,412 115,858
Eliminaions - - - - - -
Unallocated {158,684) (246,357) 460,760 253,871 834,293 1,511,577

Consolidated 136,060 (73,912} 1,212,345 846,079 992,705 1,627,433




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
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Acguisition of segment  Depraciation and amortisation
1ssets of sagment assets
2007 2006 2007 2008
us§eoo uss000 Us$'000 uss000
Global Driling Services 206,281 258,672 44,136 34,831
Giobal Products 25,898 15,527 14,118 14,818
Toal of all segments 232,179 275,199 58,254 49,647
Eliminatons - - - -
Unatlocated 10,561 10,572 1,504 125
Consolidatad 242,730 285,171 59,648 49,772

The Group's two business segments operate in five principal geographic areas — Africa, Europe, North America,
South America, and Australia and Asia. The Group's revenue from external customers and information about its
segment assets by geographicat locations is detailed below:

Revenua from Acquisition of
external customers Segment assets segment assety
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
Us$000 uss'coo Uss'eco uss'ooo Usso00 uss'o00

Afica 115,650 124,539 114,174 89,469 3,780 amn
Europs 125,454 128,651 70,719 62,907 5,407 4,067
North America 757,686 571,918 442,815 368,274 74,491 123,240
South America 141,976 81,289 121,889 43,409 63,088 217
Aystralta and Asia 434,571 237,591 462,748 282,020 95,964 151,815
1,675,737 1,143,988 1,212,345 846,079 242,730 285,771

The 2006 discontinued operations, as disclosed in Note 30, are included in the Global Products business
segment, and the Europe geographic segment.
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5. REVENUE
An analysis of the Group's ravenue for the year, from both continuing and discontinued operations, is as
follows:
Consolidated Parent
2007 2006 2007
US$'000 US$'000 Uss'o00
Contlnuing Operations
Revenue from the sale of goods 604,839 486,740 -
Revenue from the rendering of services 970,898 631,736 -
1,575,737 1,118,478 -
Interest revenus:
Bank deposits 4815 1614 1,363
Other loans and receivables 100 956 1,686
Other 97 1,927 -
5,012 4,497 3,049
Dividends from subsidiaries - - 15,108
1,580,749 1,122,973 18,157

Discontinued Operations
Revenue from sale of goods - 25512 -
Revenue from the rendering of services - - -
- 25,512 -
1,580,749 1,148,485 18,157
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6. FINANCE COSTS
Consolidated
2007 2006
Us§'000 US$'000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 72,420 73,086
Interest rate swap income {1,673) (3,838}
Write-off of debt issuance costs - 15,535
Anmortisation of debt issuance costs 27,096 14,995
Debt early termination costs 5,600 -
Interest on obligations under finance leases 645 859
Total interest expense 104,088 100,637
Loss {gain) arising on derivatives in a
designated cash flow hedge accounting relationship 1,834 (1,877)
Loss arising on derivatives ina
designated fair value hedge accounting refationship 4,532 -
Gain arsing on adjustment to hedged
temin a designated far value hedge
accounting relationship {4,532) -
1,84 (1,877)
Total finance costs: 105,922 98,760
Aftributable to: ‘
Continuing operations 105,922 98,760
Discontinued operations - -
105,922 98,760

Interest paid prior to the IPO has been included in the cash flow statement as a financing activity. Interest paid
post IPO has been included in the cash flow statement as an operating activity.
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7. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
(a) Gains and losses

Profit (loss) for the year has been amived at after crediting (charging) the following gains and (losses):

Consolidated Parent
Continuing Discontinued Total Contlnuing
2007 2008 2006 2006 2007
Uss'o0o Uss'000 uss'o0o Uss'ocoo UsSs'000
Gain (loss) on disposal
of property, plant and
equipment {272) 7,708 - 7,708 -
Gain (loss) on disposal
of subsidiaries 3,218 740 (7.391) (6,651) -
Net foreign exchange
gains (losses) 12,665 - - - (1,259)
Change in fair value
of financial assets
carried at fair value
through profit or loss - (8,255) - (8,255) -
Cther income (expense) 2,583 (161) - (161) -
(b) Income and expenses relating te financlal instruments

Profit (loss} for the year includes the following income and expenses arising from movements in the
carrying amounts of financial instruments (other than derivative instruments in an effective hedge

relationship).
Consolidated Parent
(':onttnulng Discontinued Tota! Continuing
2007 2008 2008 2006 2007

US$°000 Us$'000 US$'000 Uss 000 US$'000

Loans and receivables:

Interest revenue 4915 2,570 - 2,570 3,049
Impairment of loans & receivables 73 (368) - (368) -

4,988 2,202 - 2,202 3,049

Financial Babiities at amortised cost

Interest expense 78,020 73,086 - 73,086 -
Interest rate swap income 1,673 3,838 - 3,838 -
Amortisation expense 27,096 14,995 - 14,995 -
Write-off of debt issuance costs - 15,535 - 15,535 -
Exchange gain 489 118 - 118 -
107,278 107,572 - 107,572 -

Financial liabilties at fair
value through profit & loss
Changes in fair value of financial
liabilties designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (1,834} 1,877 - 1,877 -

{1.834) 1,877 - 4,877 .
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For the financial year andad 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
7. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)
(c) Employee benefit expenses:
Congolidated Parant
Continuing Discontlnued Totat Continuing
2007 2008 2006 2006 2007
US$'000 Uss§'000 us$'000 US$'000 Us$00
Post employment benefits
Defined contribution plans (13,674) (6,928} - {6,928} -
Defined benefit plans (372) 679 - 679 -
Share-hased payments:
Equity-settled share-based
payments (775} (7.228) - {7.228) {231)
Termination benefits {1,525) (2,748) - (2,748) -
Cther employee benefits (79,872) (76,777) {329) {77,106) -
{96,218) (93,002) (329) {93,331) (231)
(d) Other:
Consolidated Parent
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing
2007 2006 2006 2008 2007
Us$'oco uss$'o00 55'000 Uss'000 US$'000
Depreciation of non-current assets {57,153) (48,752) (674) (49,426) -
Amortisation of non-current assets {2,695) (348) - (346) -
mpairment of fixed assets - (7,664) - (7,664) -
Operating lease rental expense {24,192) (12,518) - (12,518) -
Restructuring costs {5.584) (8,341) - (8,341) -
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BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

8. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense is as follows:

Income tax expense:

Current tax expense (benefit)

Adjustments recognised in the current year
in relation to the current tax of prior years

Deferred tax expense (benefit)

Income tax Is attributable to:
Profit (loss) from continuing operations
{Loss) from discontinuing cperations

(a) The prima facie Income tax expense (income) on pre-tax
accounting profit reconciles to the income tax expense in the
financlal statements as follows:

Profit {loss) from continuing operations
(Loss) from discontinued operations
Profit (loss) from cperations

Ihcome tax benefit calculated at US rate of 35%

ncome tax expense of U.S.

ncome tax expense calkulated at Australian rate of 30%

Impact of higher rate tax countries

Impact of low er rate tax countries

Net nondeductble/nonassessable items

Ukiisation of losses not previously recognised

Unrecognised tax losses

income subject to double taxation in the U.S.

Unutilised foreign tax credits

Recognttion of deferred tax assets arising i prior years

Deduction of foreign taxes

Effect of transactions w thin the tax-consolidated
group that are exempt from taxation

Cther

(Over) under provision

Consolidated Parent
2007 20086 2007
US$'000 Uss$'000 Uss'o00
57,020 51,815 (5,814)
(10,215) 3,036 -
8,140 {47,839) 2,826
54,945 6,962 (2,988)
54,945 8,736 (2,988}
- {1.774) -
54,945 6,962 (2,988)
136,060 (73,912) 4,521
- (8,097 -
136,060 (82,009) 4,521
- {28,703) -
- 2,494 -
40,818 - 1,356
3,739 - -
{3,425) - -
7.820 {233} 188
(2,532) - -
- 11,268
17,745 19,100 -
2,381 - -
(2,210) - -
(5,314) - -
- - (4,532)
6,137 - -
65,160 3,926 {2,988)
{10,215) 3,036 -
54,945 6,962 (2,988)
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8. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
(b} Income tax recognised directly In equity during the period

The follow ing current and deferred amounts w ere charged {credited) directly to equity during the period:

Consolidated Parent
2007 2008 2007
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Deferred tax:
Actuarial movements on defined benefit plans {7,954} (2,344) -
Share issue costs 18,778 - 18,778
Cash flow hedges 4,097 838 -
14,921 (1,506) 18,778
{¢) Current tax assets and liabllities
Current tax assets:
ncome tax receivabie attributable to:
Parent - - -
Cther entities in the tax consolidated group - - -
Other entities 9,918 8,267 -
9,918 8,267 -
Current tax labiities:
Income tax payable attributable to:
Parent (5,768) - {5,768)
Other entities in the tax consolidated group 13,045 - 13,045
Cther entities 18,046 29,316 -
. 25,323 29,316 7.277
(d) Deferred tax balances
Deferred tax comprises:
Temporary differences 20,170 23,546 15,899
Tax losses 3,902 921 -
24,072 24 457 15,999
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For the finzncial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
8. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
Consolidated
Opening Charged to Foreign Acquired/ Charged Closing
balance income exchange  disposed Other to equity  balance
2007 US$'000 Us$'000 difforonces  US$000  US$'000  US$006  USS000
Deferrad tax assets (liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment (19,050 (5,135) 2,217 (1,785) - - {23,753)
Provisions 4,739 (50) (551) - - - 4,138
Doubtful debts 3,306 (2,796) (385) - - - 125
Intangibles (3,942) (1.628) 458 {2,711} - - (7,822)
Acquisitions and restructuring costs 13,333 (702) {1,551} - - - 11,080
Share-iasue expenses 123 (2,826) - - 47 18,778 16,122
Accrued liabilities 6,311 3,654 (734) - - - 9,231
Pension 8,176 1,652 (951) - - (7,954) 923
Debt and interest 5,001 269 {582) - - - 4,688
Hedge loss 838 - - - - 4097 4,935
Uneamed revenues {1,140) (162) 133 - - - (1,169)
Inventory 3572 (180} (416} - - - 2,976
Investments in subsidiaries {2,057) 1,221 239 - - - (597)
Other 4,336 (4,546} (496) - - - {705)
23,546 {11,229} (2,619) (4,498) 47 14,9214 20,170
Unusad tax losses and credits:
Tax logses 921 3,088 {107) - - - 3,902
24,487 (8,140) {2,726) (4,496) 47 14,921 24,072
Presented in the balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax liability (7,632
Deferred tax asset 31,394
Directly associated with assets held for sale 313
—2aorz
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED
8. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
Consolidated
Opening Charged to Foreign Acquirad/ Charged Closing
balance Income exchange disposed Cthor to equity  balance
2008 US$'000 Us$'a00 differences  USS'000 US$'000 US$'000  USS$'000
Deferred tax assets/(llabilities)
Property, plant and equipment (35,520) 21,611 - (2,430) {2,711) - (19,050)
Provisions 9,023 (4,284) - - - - 4,739
Doubtful debts 108 3,198 - - - - 3,306
Intangibles {1,012) 100 - (3,031) - - (3,942)
Acquisitions and restructuring costs - 13,333 - - - - 13,333
Share issue costs - 123 - - - - 123
Accrued liabilities - 6,311 - - - - 6,311
Pension 14,457 (3.937) - - - (2,344) 8,176
Debt and interest - 5,001 - - - - 5,001
Hedge loss 3,370 {3,370) - - - 838 238
Unearned revenues - (1,140} - - - - {1,140)
Inventory 1,816 2,005 - (249) - - 3,572
Investments In subsidiaries {1,496) (561) - - - - (2,057}
Other (5,007) 9,914 (855} - 3as - 4,336
{14,261) 48,304 (955) (5,710) {2,327) {1,506) 23,548
Unused tax losses and credits:
Tax losses 1,336 {415) - - - - 921
{12,925) 47,889 (955) (5,710} {2,327) {1,506} 24,467
Presented in the balance sheet as follows:
Deferred tax liability {2,531)
Deferred tax asset 26,998
24,467

(1) This is a purchase price adjustment to the fair value of assets acquired in 2005 - refer to Note 14,

2007
Deferred tax assets
Share issue costs

Presented in the balance sheet as follow s:

Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax asset

Parent
Qpening Charged to Charged to Closing
Balance Income QOther Equity Balance
Us$' 000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'0o0 USS$'000
- (2,826} 47 18,778 15,999
- (2,826) 47 18,778 15,999
15,999
15,899

77



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 Decomber 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated

2007 2006
Unrecognised deferred tax assets Uss$'000 UsS$'000
Tax losses - revenue 3,971 7,337
Unused tax credits 48,871 36,441
52,842 43,778

The Parent and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities bacame part of the same tax-consolidated group
with effact from 12 April 2007 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity within the
tax-consolidated group is Boart Longyear Limited. Boart Longyear Limited and Boart Longyear Management Pty
Ltd will etect to form a tax-consolidated group from 2 January 2007. Votraint No. 1609 Pty Ltd will also elect to
form a tax-consolidated group from 1 August 2006, which corresponds with the acquisition of Northwest Drilling
Limited. Other Australian entities have joined the Votraint No. 1609 Pty Ltd tax-consolidated group as they have
been acquired by Votraint No. 1609 Pty Ltd. The Vetraint tax-consolidated group and other Australian entities
joined the Boart Longyear Limited tax-consolidated group upon their acquisition by Boart Lengyear Limited on 12
Aprit 2007. Companies within the US group also form a tax-consolidated group within the United States. Certain
companies within the Dutch group have also formed a tax-consolidated group within the Netherands.

Entities within the tax-consolidated groups have entered into tax-funding arrangements and tax-sharing
agreements with the head entities. Under the terms of the tax-funding arrangements, the tax-consolidated
groups and each of the entities within those tax-consolidated groups agree to pay a tax equivalent payment to or
from the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax asset of the entity. Such amounts are
reflected in amounts receivable or payable to other entities in the tax-consclidated groups.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consclidated Parent
2007 2008 2007
US§'000 USS'000 Uss$'000
Trade receivables 237,345 220,105 -
Alow ance for doubtful accounts (3,425) {4,169) -
Goods and services tax receivable 9,034 9,949 -
Other receivables 258 1,000 67
ntercompany receivable - - 60,762
243,212 226,885 60,829

The aging of trade receivables is detailed below:

Consolidated

2007 2006
US$'000 US$'000
Current 172,535 155,538
Past due O - 30 days 48,097 40,248
Past due 31 - 60 days 9,180 10,545
Past due 61-90 days 5,619 4,448
Past due 90 days 1914 9,226
237,345 220,105
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10.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts in respect of trade receivables is detailed below:

Consolidated

2007 2008
US$'000 UsSs'000
Opening Balance 4,169 8,765
Additional provisions a9 657
Amounts used (1,099) {4,585)
Amounts reversed {16} {1,025)
Transferred to held for sale {45} -
Foreign currency exchange differences 327 357
Closing balance 3,425 4,169

The average credit period on sales of goods is 57 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

The Group's policy requires customers to pay the Group in accordance with agreed payment terms. The Group’s
settiement tarms are generally 30 to 60 days from date of invoice. All credit and recovery risk associated with
trade receivables has been provided for in the balance sheet. Trade receivables have been aged according to
their griginal due date in the above aging analysis. The Group holds security for a number of trade receivables
in the form of letters of credit, deposits, and advanced payments.

The Group has used the following basis to assess the allowance loss for trade receivables and as a result is
unable to specifically allocate the allowance to the aging categories shown above:

» ageneral provision based on historical bad debt experience;
» the general econcmic conditions in specific geographical regions; ¥
» anindividual account by account specific risk assessment based on past credit history; and
« any pricr knowledge of debtor insolvency or other credit risk.
INVENTORIES
Consolidated
2007 2006
US$'000 Us$'000

At cost:
Raw materiais 34,094 17,925
Work in progress 17,896 15,537
Finished products 124,275 100,183

176,265 133,645
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11.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concem
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 18, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent, comprising Issued capital, reserves, other
equity and retained earnings (accumulated losses) as disclosed in Notes 19, 20, 22 and 21 respectively.

Significant accounting policles

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recegnised, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

Categorles of financlal instruments

Consolidated Parent
2007 2006 2007
Financlal Assets US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Current
Loans and Receivables:
Cash & cash equivalents 87,548 26,547 1,087
Trade receivables 243,212 226,885 60,829
Other financial assets 604 2,222 -
Current tax receivable 9,918 8,267 -
341,282 263,921 61,916
Non-cumment
Cther financial assets:
Fair value through profit or loss
designated as at FVTPL - 3911 -
Investments carried at cost:
Investments in subsidiaries - - 2,175,180
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1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Consolidated Parent
2007 2006 2007
Financial Liabilities US$'000 US$'000 UsS$'000
Current
Amortised cost:
Trade and other payables 244,685 238,691 8,533
Loans and borrowings 6,543 11,884 -
Current tax payable 25,323 29,316 71,277
Provisions for:
Warranty 1,665 785 -
Restructuring and termination costs 1,941 7512 -
Eamout agreements - 11,415 -
280,157 299,603 15,810
Non-current
Amottised cost
Trads payables 200 686 -
Loans and borrowings 650,170 1,275,697 -
650,370 1,276,383 -
Other financial liabilities:
Derivative instruments in designated
hedge accounting relationships 12,985 2,300 -

At the reporting date there are no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carying amount reflected above
represents the Group's and the Parent's maximum exposure to credit risk for such loans and receivables.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's corporate treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates access to domestic and
internationa! financial markets, and monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the
Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks
include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks, where deemed appropriate, by using derivative financial
instruments to hedge these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is govemed by the Group’s policies
approved by the board of directars, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes.

Markst risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates (Note 3(k)). The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:

. foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising from transactions not recorded
in an entity's functional currency;
. interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates.
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1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Foraign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising

forward foreign exchange contracts.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the

reporting date is as follows:

Liabilitles Assets
2007 2006 2007 2008
US$'000 UsS$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Austrafian Dollar 21,474 1,368 45,020 42,553
Canadian Dollar 43,203 58,256 15,404 52,564
Euro 2,145 6,042 7,681 30,880
South African Rand 21,668 934 23,418 22,853

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is mainly exposed to Australian Dollars (AUD}, Canadian Dollars (CAD), the Euro (EUR) and South
African Rand (ZAR) as these are the functional currencies of the main operating entities outside of the United
States. Except for the Canadian operations, these entities transact primarily in their functional currency and do
not have significant foreign cumency exposures due to outstanding foreign cumrency denominated items. These
entities are afso exposed to transtation differences as the Group’s presentation currency is different to the

functional currency of the operating entity.

At 31 December 2007, if the currencies set out in the table below, weakened against the US dollar by the
percentage shown, with all other variables held constant, net profit for the year and net assets as at 31 December

2007 would increase (decrease) by:

AUD Im pact CADImpact
Consolidated Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006
US$'000 US$'000 Uss'000 Uss'000
Net profit (6,502) (2,459) (8,107 (6,782}
Net assets 16,112 {16,314} (6,851) 4,059
Change in currency 1 10% 10% 15% 15%
ER Im pact ZAR Impact
Consolidated Consolldated
2007 2008 2007 2008
USS'000 US$'000 UsS$'c00 Us$'000
Net profit 760 (1,220) {91) 505
Net assets {1,718) 5,020 (873) (1,504)
Change in currency 1 11% 11% 7% 7%

{1) This has been based on the change in the exchange rate against the US dollar in the financial year ended 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

The sensitivity analysis has been based on the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personne! and represents management's assessment of the possible change in
foraign exchange rates based on histerical volatility.

The Parent has no significant expasure to foreign currencies at the reporting data. The Group’s sensitivity to
certain foreign currency denominated loans has decreased during the current period mainly due to the retirement
of these instruments and due to current hedging activity.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not fully representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not necessarily reflect the exposure during the course of the year.
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The following table details the forward foreign currency cantracts outstanding as at the reporting date:

Average
exchange rate Foreign currency Contract value Fair value
Qutstanding 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 20086
contracts 2007 2006 FC'000 FC'000 UsS$'000 US$'000 USS'000 US$'000
Consolidated
Sell- CAD
{ess than 3 months 0.9805 - 83,730 - 65,000 - - -

The Group has entered into contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure it has on United States dollar
denominated loans in Canada. The Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts (for terms not
exceeding 9 months) to hedge the exchange rate risk arising from these anticipated future transactions, which
are designated as cash fiow hedges.

Interest rate risk management

The Parent and the Group are exposed to interest rate risk as entities within the Group borrow funds at both fixed
and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and floating rate borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated
regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, The Parent’s and the Group's exposures to
interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative
and non-derivative instruments at the reporting date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of
the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

At the reporting date, if interest rates had been 100 baslis points higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's:

« profit before tax would increase/decrease by $2,720,000 (2006: decreasefincrease by $3,555,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

+ other equity reserves would increase/decrease by $10,167,000 (2006: increase/decrease by $13,608,000)
mainly as a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest rate swap contracts that arein a
cash flow hedge relationship.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate
interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate
the risk of changing interest rates on the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. The fair
value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the
LIBOR curve at reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract, and are disclosed below. The average
interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the start of the financial year.
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1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate swap contracts (continued)

The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and the remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts
outstanding as at reporting date.

Average contracted Notional
fixed interest rate principal amount Fair value
Cutstanding floating 2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 20086
for fixad contracts % e UsS$'000 uss$'o00 US$'000 US$'000

Consolidated
1to 2 years - 4.5075% - 155,000 - 1,877
2to Syears 5.1825% 5.1825% 378,000 787,500 (12,985) {2,205)

378,000 942 800 (12,985) {328)

The Interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. Tha floating rate on the interest rate swaps is 90-day USD
LIBOR. The Group settles the difference between the fixed and floating interast rate on a net basis.

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are
designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the Group's cash flow exposure resuiting from variable rates
on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur simultaneousty and the
amount deferred in equity is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the lean.

Crodit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Except as detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of financial assets recarded in the financial

statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of the value of any collateral cbtained.

Maximum credit risk

2007 2006
Financlal assets and other credit exposures US$'000 Uss$'000
Consolidated
Performance guarantees provided including letter of credits 19,830 39,095

Liguldity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Treasurer and board of directors, who have
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
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1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINLUED)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. Included in Note 16 is a listing of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its

disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity and Interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Parent's and the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tablas have been presented based ¢n the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. The adjustment column represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the
instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not included in the carrying amount of the balance sheet.

Consolidated

Welghted
average
offactive Less 3 months
Interest than 1to 3 to Adjust-
rate 1 month months 1year 1-Syears S+yecars ment Total
Ye US$'000 USS'000 US$000 USS'000 UsSs$'000 US$'00Q  USS'000
2007
Non-interest bearing
payablas - 146,811 97,874 - 200 - - 244,885
Provisions for:
Warranty - 555 1,110 - - - - 1,865
Restructuring and
termination costs - 162 324 1,455 - - - 1,841
Finance lease Babilty 8.3% 47 85 3,484 4,781 - {1,518) 6,869
Variable interest rate
instruments 5.9% 3,208 6,415 28,869 730,688 - (123,342) 645,838
Fixed interest rate
instruments 6.0% 20 40 3,685 591 - {330) 4,008
150,803 105,858 37473 736,260 - (125,190) 805,204
2008
Non-interest bearing
payables - 143,215 95,476 - 666 - - 239,377
Provisions for:
Warranty - 262 523 - - - - 785
Rastructuring and
termination cost - 626 1,252 5,634 - - - 7512
Earnott agreemen: - - 11,415 - - - - 11,415
Finance lsase liabilty 8.3% 57 114 3,222 6,924 - (2,059) 8,259
Variable interest rate
instrumants 10.3% 20,158 21,740  277.5M 410,875 1,136,398 (587.420) 1,279,322
164,318 130,520 286,428 418,485 1,138,398 (589.479) 1,548,670
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1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED})

Liquidity and interest risk tables {continued)

Parent
Weighted
average
effective Less 3 months
interest  than 1te 3 to Adjust-
rate 1 month months 1year 1-5years 5+years ment Total
% US$S'000 US$'000 USS'000  USS'000 US$'000  USS'000  USS'000
2007
Nor-interest bearing
payables - 5119 3414 - - - - 8,533

5119 3414 - - - - 8,533

The following table detalls the Parent's and the Group's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets.
The tables below have been presented based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets
including interest that will be earmed on those assets except where the Parent or Group anticipates that the cash
flow will occur in a different period. The adjustment column represents the possible future cash flows aftributable
to the instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not included in the camrying amount of the financial
asset on the balance shest.

Consolidated

Less 3 months
than 1to 3 to Adjust-
1 month months 1year 1-5years 5+years ment Total
UsS$'000  US$'000 USS'000 USS'000 USS'000 US§S000 US$'000
2007
Non-interest bearing
receivables 128,006 115,206 - - = - 243,212
Cash 87,548 - - - - - 87,548
215,554 115,206 - - - - 330,760
2006
Non-interest bearing
receivables 119,413 107 472 - - - - 226,885
Cash 26,547 - - - - - 26,547
145,960 107,472 - - - - 253,432
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Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Parent
Less 3 months
than 1t0 3 to Adjust-
1 month months 1year 1-5years 5+years ment Total
US$'000 US$000 US$000 USS000  USS000  US$ 000 US$'000
2007
Non-interest bearing
receivables 35,497 24332 - - - - 60,829
Cash 1,087 - - - - - 1,087

1. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED}
|

37,584 24,332 - - - - 61,918

' The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/(outflows) on the derivative instrument that settle on
a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows {outflows) on those derivatives that require gross settlement.
When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the reporting date.

Less than 3 months

1 month 1-3 months to 1year 1-5 years Total

US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 1J5$'000 US$'000
2007
Interest rate swaps - {12,985) - - (12,985)
2008
Interest rate swaps - - - {328) (328}
Forw ard exchange contracts - (95) - - (95)
Gold option - - 2,034 - 2,034

- (95) 2,034 {328) 1,611

Fair value of financial Instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

« the fair value of financiat assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices

« the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities {excluding derivative Instruments} are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions

« the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, use is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration
of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the camying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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12, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Consolidated

Land and Plant and
Buildings Equipment Total
US$'000 Uss$'eo0 Uss$ 000
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 January 2006 47,619 234,764 282,383
Additions 11,731 63,59 75322
Acquisitions through business conbinations 803 47,603 48 405
Disposal of assets {24,575) {49,87Q) {74,445)
Adjustrments to business combinations accounted
for on a provisional basis in 2005 - (10,457) (10.,457)
Currency movements 485 13,374 13,839
Batance at 1 January 2007 36,043 299,005 335,048
Additions 6,587 122,402 128,989
Acqguisitions through business combinations 4 18,546 18,550
Disposal of assets {784) {31,198} (31,982)
Transfer to held for sale - (969} (969)
Currency movements 2,979 45,164 48,143
Balance at 31 December 2007 44 829 452,950 497,779
Accumulated depreclation and impairment:
Balance at 1 January 2006 (1,048) {24,804) (25,850}
Depreciation for the year (1,174) {48,252) {49,426}
Impairment of assets - {7,664) (7,664)
Disposal of assets 1,048 7.149 8,197
Currency movements (482) {7,522) (8,004}
Balance at 1 January 2007 (1,654} {81,093) {82,747)
Depreciation for the year (999} {56,154} {57,153}
Disposal of assets 223 24125 24,348
Transfer to hekd for sale - 459 459
Currency movements (1,691) {22 635) (24,326}
Balance at 31 December 2007 (4,121) (135,298) (139,419)
Net book value at 31 December 2006 34,389 217,912 252,301
Net book value at 31 December 2007 40,708 317,652 358,360




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

12

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {(CONTINUED}

Tangible property, plant and equipment includes machinery equipment, office equipment, fumiture and fixtures,
and vehicles, which are substantially freehold. The net book value of property, plant and equipment at 31
December 2007 and 2006 includes an amount of $6,060,000 and $3,202,000, respectively, related to assets held
under finance leases.

During 2007, the Group sold the MCE Australia business, as well as the Diamond Blades and Interfels
businesses. These sales included net book value of property, plant and equipment of $56,000, $148,150 and
$30,000, respectively. The Group also disposed of its Zimbabwe and Calulo Drilling (Pty) Ltd businesses which
had no property, plant and equipment.

During 2006, the Group sold the Hardmaterials and Softrock tools division and the MCE Poland business. These
sales included net book value of property, plant and equipment of $51,209,000 and $2,010,000, respectively.

GOODWILL

Consolidated

Goodwill
Uss$'000
Gross carrying amount:
Balance at 1 January 2006 1,366
Additions - through business combinations 122,253
Currency movements 1,717
Balance at 31 December 2006 125,336
Balance at 1 January 2007 125,336
Additions - purchase acquisitions 62,276
Adjustments to business combinations accounted

for on a provisional basis in 2006 3,602
Currency movements 14,972
Bafance at 31 December 2007 206,188

Allocatlon of goodwilll to cash-generating units

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to individual cash generating units. The carrying
amount of goodwill by geographic segment allocated to cash-generating units that are significant individually or in
aggregate is as follows:

2007 2006
US$'000 Us$'000
Australia and Asia 125,696 80,163
South America 31,572 -
North America 48,918 45,173
206,186 125,336
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13.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of goodwill is tested for impairment annually at 31 October and whenever there is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. if an asset is impaired, it is written down to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
forecasts over a 5-year period with a terminal value. Key assumptions used for impairment testing for 31 October
2007 include a post-tax discount rate of 11.5%, expected future profits and a future annual growth rate of 5% for
the first § years and a terminal value. Sensitivity analysis is used to determine whether the carrying value is
supported by different assumptions.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of those
cash generating units at 31 December 2007.
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14. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Consolidated

Customer Development
Trademarks Patents relationships assets Total
UsS$'000 Uss$'ooo Uuss$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

Gross carrying amount:

Balance at 1 January 2008 7,192 3,937 - 881 12,010
Additions - through business combination: - - 11,407 - 11,407
Additions - - - 1,561 1,561

Adjustment to business combinations
accounted for on a provisional

basis in 20051 8,510 4,658 - - 13,168
Adjustment to purchase price of

past business corrbinations 2 (13,714) {7,505) - - {21,218)
Currency movements - - 282 - 282
Balance at 31 December 2006 1,988 1,080 11,689 2,442 17,209
Balance at 1 January 2007 1,988 1,090 11,689 2,442 17,200
Additions - through business combination: - - 10,460 - 10,460
Additions - - - 3,032 3,032
Currency movements - - 2,395 - 2,395
Balance at 31 December 2007 1,988 1,090 24,544 5,474 33,096

Accumulated am ortisation:

Balance at 1 January 2006 {149) (183} - (59) (371)
Amortisation for the period - {108} {301) (163) (572)
Adjustment of prior year amortisation * 108 118 - - 226
Balance at 31 Decembear 2006 (41) (153) (301) (222) (717)
Balance at 1 January 2007 (41) (153} (301) (222) (717}
Amortisation for the period - (144) {2,185) (385) {2,695)
Currency movements - - {206) - {206)
Balance at 31 December 2007 {41) (297) {2,693) (587) (3,618)
Net book value at 31 December 2006 1,947 937 11,388 2,220 16,492
Neot book value at 31 December 2007 1,947 793 21,851 4,887 29478

1. During 2008, the Group finalised the purchasa price allocations related to the purchase of the Group from Anglo
American ple ("Anglo®) by Advent International ("Advent"). The Group identified $10,457,000 of property, plant and
equipment that was deemed to have been impaired at the date of the acquisition. The impaiment of $10,457,000
was determined to have existed as of the date of acquisition, Accordingly, the Group has reallocated the purchase
prica from property, plant and equipment to a corresponding increase in other intangible assets. In addition,
deferved tax assets decreased in 2006 by approximately $2,711,000 due to adjustments to temporary differences
existing at the acquisition date.

2. On 29 July 2005, the Group was acquired from Anglo by Advent. On 22 June 2008, Anglo paid the Group
$21,219,000 with regard to the final purchase price adjustment for the acquisition, resutting in a net decreasa to the
purchasa price and a corresponding reduction of other intangible assets.

As a result of these fair value adjustments, the Group adjusted the amortisation previously recorded, resulting in
a reduction of amortisation expense of $226,000 that was recorded in 2006,
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15.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current

Trade payables

Accrued payroll and benefits

Deferred business combination consideration
Goods and services tax payable
Professional fees

Cther sundry payables and accruals

Non-current
Trade and other payables

Consolidated Parent
2007 2008 2007
Uss$'000 UsS$'000 Uss$'00o0
152,073 115,170 -
54,754 53,274 -
- 38,364 -
6,433 8,071 -
2,376 5,189 290
29,049 18,623 8,243
244 685 238,691 8,533
200 686 -
200 686 -

The average cradit period on purchases of certain goods is 45 days. No interest is charged on the trade
payables for this period. Thereafter, various percentages of interest may be charged on the outstanding balance
based on the terms of the specific contracts. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
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16. BORROWINGS
Consolidated
2007 2006
Uss'c00 uss'o00

Unseacured - at gamortised cost
Current
Bank loans 3,505 -
Non-current
Bank loans {i) {ii} 645,838 200,000
Other liabilities 501 -
Secured - at amortised cost
Current
Bank ov erdrafls - 9,173
Finance lease liabiities 3,038 271
Non-current
Bank oans (i) - 1,070,149
Finance lease liabiities (iii) 333 5,548

856,713 1,267,581
Disclosed in the financlals statements as:
Current bormow ings 6,543 11,884
Non-cumrent borrowings 650,170 1,275,697

656,713 1,287,581

0

{ii}

{iii)

As at 31 Decernber 2007, bank loans consist of variable rate loans with a consortium of banks with maturity dates of
2010 and 2012. The interest rates on the loans are based on a base rate plus applicable margin. The base rate is
generally based on USD LIBOR rates, while the margin is determined based on leverage according to a pricing grid.
As at 31 December 2007, the rates ranged from USD LIBOR + 0.65% to USD LIBOR + 0.75% (5.53% to 5.63%).
The Group hedges a portion of its exposure to fioating rates under the loans via an interest rate swap, exchanging
variable rate interest payments for fixed rate interest payments. As of 31 December 2007, $378,000,000 notional
amount of floating rate interest rates were swapped to fixed at a base rate of 5.1825%. The Group’s borrowings
contain covenants and restrictions requiring the Group to meet certain financial ratios and reporting requirements.
Nencompliance with one or more of the covenants and restrictions could result in the full or partial principal balance
of the associated debt becoming immediately due and payable. The directors believe that the Group is in compliance
with the debt covenants as at 31 December 2007. Bank facilites include a revotver of $200,000,000, which Is
undrawn as at 31 December 2007, but of which only $188,857,000 can be drawn because of outstanding letters of
credit The loans are guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group. See Nota 26 for a listing of subsidiary
guarantors,

As at 31 December 2006, bank loans consist of a First Lien term loan, a Second Lien term loan, an unsecured loan
and a revolver with maturity periods of 6 months to 7 years. The interest rates on the loans ranged from USD LIBOR
plus 3.25% to USD LIBOR plus B.5% (B.62% to 13.86% as at 31 December 2006). The Group hedged a portion of
its exposure to floating rates under the loans via an interest rats swap, exchanging variable rate interest payments for
fixed rate interest payments. As at 31 December 2006, $787,500,000 and $155,000,000 notional amounts of floating
rate interest rates were swapped to fixed at a base rate of 5.1825% and 4.5075%, respectively. Bank loans included
a revolver of $100,000,000, which had $30,000,000 drawn as at 31 December 2006. The First and Second Lien
Term loans were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Secured by the assets leased. The bormowings have interest rates ranging from 5.77% to 10.77%, with repayment
periods not exceeding 4 years.
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17, PROVISIONS

Consolidated

2007 2008
UsSs$ 000 Uss$'000
Current
Employee benefits 10,712 8,830
Warranty (i) 1,665 785
Restructuring and termination costs (i) 1,841 7,512
Earncut agreements (i) - 11,415
14,218 28,542
Non-current
Employee benefits 1,895 1,363
Pension and post-retirement benefits {Note 18) 20,584 36,423
22,479 37,786
36,797 66,328
The changes in the provisions for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:
Consolldated
Restructuring Earnolt
and termination agreements
Warranty (i) costs (ii) {iil}
Us$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
Balance at 1 January 2007 785 7,512 11,415
Additional provisions recognised 1,637 1,431 229
Reductions arising from
payments/other sacrifices of .
future economic benefits (927 (6,512) {12,286)
Reductions resulting from re-
measurement or settlement
without cost - (616) 277
Foreign exchange 170 226 919
Balance at 31 December 2007 1,665 1,941 -
0] The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of management's best estimate of the future outfiow

of economic benefits that will be required under the Group's warranty program. The estimate has been made on the

basis of historical wamranty trends.

(] The provision for restructuring and termination costs represents the present value of management's best estimate of
the costs directly and necessarily caused by the restructuring that are not associated with the ongeing activities of the

entity, including termination benefits and onerous leases.

(iii) The provision for eamouts consists of contingent consideration granted to employees In purchase agreements and
any related employee contracts. If contingent consideration is, in substance, deemed to be payment for businesses
acquired, the amount is treated as additional purchase price consideration.
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18.

PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Parent has no employees and therefore does not support any defined benefit post-employment plans.
Accordingly, the disclosures detailed below relate to the Group.

Pension and Postretirement Medical Commitments

The Group operates defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans for the majority of its employees. [t
also operates postretirement medical arrangements in Southern Africa and North America. The policy for
accounting for pensions and postretirement benefits is inctuded in Note 3(o).

The assets of the defined contribution plans are held separately in independently administered funds. The
charge in respect of these plans is calculated on the basis of contributions payable by the Group during the fiscal
year.

The majority of the defined benefit pension plans are funded in accordance with minimum funding requirements
by local regulators. The assets of these plans are held separately from those of the Group, in independently
administered funds, in accordance with statutory requirements or local practica throughout the world.

The postretirement medical arrangements provide health benefits to retired employees and certain dependants,
Eligibility for coverage is dependent upon certain criteria. The majority of these plans are unfunded and have
been provided for by the Group.

Deflned Contributlon Plans

Pension costs represent actual contributions paid or payable by the Group to the various plans. At 31 December
2007, and 2006, there were no significant outstanding/prepaid contributions. Group contributions to these plans
were $13,674,000 and $6,928,000 for the years ended 31 December 2007, and 2008, respectively.

The Group's operations in the Netherlands participate in an Iindustry-wide pension scheme for the mechanical
and electrical engineering industries, known as the PME Fund. Although itis a defined benefit pension plan, the
participating employers have no obligation other than to pay set contributions based on benefits accrued by the
employees every period. The employers are not obligated to make additicnal payments to fund deficits, nor have
they any right to repayments in the event of surpluses. The Group treats the PME scheme as a defined
contribution plan.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Full actuarial valuations of the defined benefit pension plans were performed as of various dates and updated to
31 December 2007 by qualified independent actuaries. The estimated market value of the assets of the funded
pension plans was $257,362,000 and $239,371,000 at 31 December 2007, and 20086, respectively. The market
value of assets was used to determine the funding level of the plans. The market value of the assets of the
funded plans was sufficient to cover 104% and 110% in 2007 and 2006, respectively, of the benefits that had
accrued to participants after allowing for expected increases in future eamings and pensions. Entities within the
Group are paying contributions as required in accordance with local actuarial advice.

As the majority of the defined benefit pension plans are closed to new participants, itis expected that under the
projected unit credit method, service cost will increase as the participants age.

Group contributions to these plans were $6,678,000 and $8,730,000 for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
20086, respectively. Contributions in 2008 are expected to be $5,563,000.
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18.

PENSION AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The principal assumptions used to determine the actuarial present value of benefit obligations and pension costs
are detailed below (shown in weighted averages).

2007 2006
Southern The Southern The
Africa Americas Europe Africa Amaericas Europe

Discount rates 8.5% 57% 5.3% 8.0% 5.5% 4.4%
Expecled average rate of increase:

in salaries 6.0% 4.4% 35% 6.0% 4.5% 3.5%
Expected average rate of increase

of pensions in payment 5.3% - 1.5% 5.0% - 1.5%
Expected average long term rate of

return on plan assets 8.8% 7.5% 6.8% 9.0% 8.0% 6.3%
Expected average increase

in healthcare costs (initial) 6.8% 9.0% - 6.0% 10.0% -
Expected average increase

in healthcare costs (ultimate) 6.8% 5.0% - 6.0% 5.0% -

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

2007 2006
Post- Post-
Pension retirement Pension retirement
Plan medical Plan total plan  Medical Plan Total
Us$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 US$'000 uss$'000 US$'000
Current service cost 4583 486 5,069 5,409 539 5,948
Interest cost on plan Sabiities 12,595 830 13,425 12,138 882 13,000
Past service cost 558 - 558 - : - -
Expected return on plan assets (18,394) - (18,394) (18,145) - (18,145)
Effects of settliement and
curtaiment gains (286} - (286) (730) (752) (1,482)
Total charge to profit and loss account (944) 1,316 372 (1,328} 649 (679)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2007 $141,000 has been included in cost of sales and the remainder
in compensation and benefits expense.
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18.

PENSION AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED}

The following amounts have been recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense.

2007 2008
Post- Post-
Pension retirement Pension retirement
Plan Maedical Plan Total Plan MedicalPlan Total
Us$'000 LIS$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
Actuarial gains (losses)
during the year, net of taxes (11,478) 1,615 {9,863) 2,787 683 3,470
Adjustments recognised
for restrictions on the
defined benefit asset 31,7566 - 31,756 {1,118) - (1,118)
20,278 1,615 21,893 1,669 683 2,352

In 2001, legislation in South Africa was passed which restricts pension surpluses where they are not expected to
give rise to future contribution reductions or refunds because of local restrictions over their use. During 2007, the
South African Regulators approved the subsidiary's proposal in respect of the appertionment of the surplus from
the plans. At 31 December 2006, the regulators in Scuth Africa had not yet acted on the subsidiary’s proposat in
respect of the apportionment of the surplus in the plan. As a result, the 31 December 2006 net liabilities shown
for South Africa assumed the surplus was unrecoverable. The surplus restriction in South Africa arises where
pension surpluses are not expected to give rise to future contribution reductions or refunds because of local

restrictions over the use of the surplus. The 2007 net assets shown in respect to South Africa have been
adjusted to reflect the approved proposal and an agreement between the subsidiary, the trustees and the

members with respect to the apportionment of future surplus. The net asset recorded has certain restrictions on

how the surplus can be used. Generally, the funds may only be used to pay pension-related expenses.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s abligations in respect of defined benefit plans

is as follows:

2007 2006
Post- Post-
Penslon retirement Pension retirement
Plan Medical Plan Total Plan Medical Plan  Total
Uss'ono Us$'o000 Us$'000 UsS$'000 US$'o00 Us$'0co
Present value of funded defined benefit
obligations 240,813 - 240,813 211,780 - 211,780
Fair value of plan assets {257,362) - (257,362) (239,371) - (239,371}
{16,549) - (16,549) {27,591) - (27,691)
Present value of unfunded defined
benefit obiigations 5,855 11,481 17,336 5,807 13,074 18,881
(Surplus) deficit {10,694) 11,481 787 (21,784) 13,074 (8,710)
Restrictions on assets recognised - - - 45,133 - 45,133
Net Labiity (asset) arising from defined
benefit obligations (10,694) 11,481 787 23,349 13,074 36,423

a7




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 Decambar 2007

BOART LONGYEAR LIMITED

18.

PENSION AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2007 2008
Post- Post-
Pension retirement Pension retirement
Plan Medical Plan Total Plan Medical Plan Total
USs$'000 UsS$'000 Uss$'ooo uss'oog Us$'000 Uss'o00
Opening defined benefit obligation 217,587 13,074 230,681 214,423 14,312 228,735
Current service cost 4,583 486 5,069 5,409 539 5,948
Interest cost 12,595 830 13,425 12,138 862 13,000
Contributions from plan participants 292 179 471 519 293 812
Actuarial losses (gains) 26717 {2,615) 24,102 6,796 {1,158} 5,638
Past service cost 558 - 558 - - -
Losses (gains) on curtaiments (286} - (286) (730) (752) (1,482)
Exchange differences on foreign plans 20,216 180 20,396 1,761 (258) 1,503
Benefits paid {35,594) (653) (36,247) (22,729) (764) {23,493)
Closing defined benefi obligation 245,668 11,481 258,149 217,587 13,074 230,661
' Changes in the fair valus of plan assets were as follows:
2007 2006
Post- Post-
Pension retirement Pension retirement
Plan Medical Plan Total Plan Medical Plan  Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 uss$'000 Us$'000
Opening fair value plan of assets 239,371 - - 239,37 229,291 - 229,291
Expected return on plan assets 18,394 - 18,394 18,144 - 18,144
Actuarial gains 8,973 - 8,973 10,264 - 10,264
Exchange differences on foreign plans 19,248 - 19,248 {4,848) - {4,848)
Contributions from the employer 6,678 474 7,152 8,730 471 9,201
Contributions from plan participants 292 179 471 519 293 812
Benefits paid {35,594} (653) (36,247) (22,729) (764) (23,493)
Closing fair value of plan assets 257,362 - 257,362 239,37 - 23937
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18,

PENSION AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS {(CONTINUED)

The analysis of the plan assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date are as foilows:

2007
Southern Africa The Americas Europe
Rate of Fair Rate of Fair Rate of Falr Total
Return Value Return Value Return Value Falr Value
% US$'000 % US$'000 % U$$'000 US$' 000
At 31 December 2007
Equity 11.5% 48,435 9.5% 70,929 7.8% 31,801 151,225
Bonds - - 5.4% 52,193 4.5% 11,742 63,935
Froperty - - - - 6.3% 5,382 5,382
Cash 6.5% 26,113 4.0% 9,368 - - 35,481
Other - - 4.0% 1,339 - - 1,339
Total market value 8.8% 74,608 7.9% 133829 6.8% 48,005 257,362
2006
Southern Africa The Americas Europe
Rate of Fair Rate of Fair Rate of Fair Total
Return Value Return Value Return Value Fair Value
% US$'000 % US$'000 % US$'000 US$'000
At 31 December 2006
Bquity 11.0% 37,383 9.6% 62,928 7.3% 27,660 127,971
Bonds 8.0% 6,473 5.4% 39,536 37% 10,948 56,957
Property 11.0% 1,540 - - 6.3% 4,166 5,706
Cash 6.0% 11,213 4.0% 13,553 - - 24,766
Investments w th asset
managers 11.0% 11,821 - - - - 11,821
Other 11.0% 11,001 4.0% 1,149 - - 12,150
Total market value 9.0% 79431  B8.0% 117,166  6.3% 42,774 239 371

The pension and post-retirement (surplus} deficit by geographic region are as follows:

Consolidated

31 December 2007 31 Dacamber 2006

Southern The Southern The
Africa Americas Europe Total Africa Amaericas Europe Total

Postretirement medical plan deficit 2,512 8,969 - 11,481 2,187 10,887 - 13,074
Pension plan (surplus) deficit {22,309) 3,577 8,038 (10,694) - 9,795 13,554 23349
Total (surplus} deficit {18,797) 12,548 8,038 787 2,187 20,882 13,554 36,423

©n 8 December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernisation Act of 2003 was signed
into law in the U.S. The Act introduces a prescription drug benefit beginning 2008 under Medicare {("Medicare
Part D™) as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that it
is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. Based on an actuarial analysis of the lavels of benefits
provided under the Group's Postretirement Welfare Plan, the plan’s actuary has concluded that beneficiaries
receive drug coverage at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. The federal subsidy was reflected in
costs, reducing the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by appreximately $1,183,000 and $1,470,000
at 31 December 2007 and 2006, respectively. The expense was reduced by approximately $112,000 and
$169,000 at 31 December 2007 and 20086, respectively,
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18. PENSION AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED}

2007 2006 |
Post- Post- |
Pension retiremaent Pension retirement
Plan Medical Plan Total Plan Medical Pian Total
US$'000 USS$'000 US$'000 US$'000 LJS$'000 Uss'000
Fair value of plan assets 257,362 - 257,352 239,37 - 239,371
Present value of defined benefit obligation (246,669) {11,481) (258,150) (217,587) (13,074) (230,661}
Restriction on plan assets - - - (45,133) - (45,133)
Surplus (deficit) 10,693 {11,481} (788) (23,349) - (23,349}
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities {36,668) 2,688 (33,980) (2,324) 929 (1,395)
Experience adjustments on plan assets 8,974 - 8,974 10,265 - 10,265

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in profit or loss. A cne
percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effacts:

2007 2006
USs'000 US$'000

One percentage point increase
Efect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost 214 64
Effect on accumulated post-employment benefit obligation 1,489 1,807

One percentage point decrease
Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost {(177) (51}
Effect on accumulated post-employment benefit abligation (1,251) (1,503)

19. ISSUED CAPITAL

Pursuant to its Initial Public Offering {(*IPO") in April of 2007 on the ASX, Boart Longyear Limited issued
1,269,158,552 ordinary shares. An additional 216,091,448 ordinary shares were issued to redeem exchangeable
notes and an additional 17,595,513 ordinary shares were issued to previous shareholders of RSHI to repurchase
RSHI shares surrendered. As a result, total ordinary shares issued as at 31 December 2007 wera
1,502,845,513.

However, as the acquisition of RSHI by Boart Longyear Limited was accounted for as a reverse acquisition, the
amount recognised for the newly issued equity is equal to the value of the issued equity of RSHI prior to the
combination. The difference between the value of the issued equity of RSHI prior to the combination and the
actual net proceeds received for the issue of Boart Longyear Limited shares is included within other equity
amounts on the balance sheet and summarised in Note 22.
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19.

20.

ISSUED CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Parent
2007
Number of
2007 2006 2007 shares
Uss$'000 Us$'000 LUS$'000 (000's)
Share Capital
Crdinary shares, fully paid 479673 452,331 2,229,776 1,502,846
Movements in ordinary shares
Balance at beginning of year 452,331 (157) - -
lssued during the year {o previous
holders of equity (net of costs) 27,342 - 27,342 17,596
issued at float (net of costs) - 2,202,434 1,485,250
Ssued during the year - 448,359 - -
Share options issued - 4129 - -
Balance at end of the year 479,673 452,331 2,229,778 1,502,846
RESERVES
Consolidated
2007 2006
Uss$'000 usS§'000
Fereign currency translation : 30,216 (4,479)
Equity-settied employee benefits 388 7,743
Unreaksed losses related to hedging instruments (8,050) {1,367)
22,534 1,897

Puring the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 the changes in each of the respective reserve accounts
was as follows:

Consolidated

2007 2006
Forelgn currency translation UsS$'000 US$'000
Balance at beginning of financial year (4,479) (7,008)
Exchange diffarences arising on {ransiation of foreign operations 34,655 2,529

Balance at end of financial year 30,216 (4,479)
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20.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Exchange differences relating to the translation from the functional currencies of the Group’s foreign controlled
entities into United States dollars are brought to account by entries made directly to the foreign cummency
translation raserve.

Consolidated

2007 2006
Equity-settled employee benefits US$000 US$'000
Balance at beginning of financiat year 7.743 515
Share-based compensation expense 775 7,228
Forfeiture of shares (8,150) -
Balance at end of financial year a8 7,743

Consolidated

2007 2006
Unrealised losses related to hedging instruments US$'000 US$'000
Balance at beginning of financial year (1,367} -
Unrealised loss on cash flow hedges {12,453) (6,043}
Transfer to profit or loss on cash flow hedges 1,673 3,838
Related income tax 4,097 833
Balance at end of financial year (8,050) (1,367)

The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the effective portion of cash flow
hedges. The cumulative deferred gain of loss on the hedge is recognised in profit or loss when the hedged
transaction impacts the profit or loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item,
consistent with the applicable accounting policy.
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21. RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED LOSSES)
During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, the changes in accumulated losses consisted of; |
Consolidated Parent
2007 2006 2007
US$'000 Uss'oco uss$'000
Balance at 1 January (244,038) (157.417) -
Profit (loss) for the period attributable to equity holders
of the parent 81,115 (88,971) 7.509
Unrealised actuarial gains on defined benefit
plans (net of deferred tax) 21,893 2,352 -
Balance at 31 Cecember (141,028) {244.036) 7.509
22, OTHER EQUITY
During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, the changes in cther equity consisted of:
Consolidated
2007 2006
US$'o00 Uss$'000
Balance at 1 January {991,548) -
Raversa acquisition reserve - (991,548)
Cancelation of shares 8,150 -
Proceeds fromissuance of shares 2,253,201 -
PO transaction costs capitalised (net of tax) (50,768) -
Payment to redeemable note holders (1,360,578) -
Balance at 31 Decermber (141,539) (991,546)
23, DMDENDS

Consistent with the disclosures made in the Boart Longyear prospectus, the directors did not declare a dividend

during the financial year ended 31 December 2007,

On 29 February 2008, the directors determined to pay a dividend of 1.5 US cents
of the Issued ordinary shares of the Parent. The dividend will be payable on 18 A
record on 20 March 2008. This dividend equates to 35% of consolidated net profi
ended 31 December 2007. The dividend will be 35% franked.

Below is the combined amount of franking credits available for the next year:

{total of $22,543,000) on each
pril 2008 to shareholders of
t after tax for the half-year

2007 2006
Uus$'000 Us$'000
Cormbined franking account balance 7.667
Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax
payable as at 31 December 2007 7.277
Adjusted combined franking balance 14,944
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24, EARNINGS PER SHARE

Consolidated

2007 2006
Cents Conts
per share per share

Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations 5.4 (5.8)
From discontinued operations - -

Total basic eamings per share 5.4 (5.6)

Diluted earntings per share

From continuing operations 54 (5.6)
From discontinued operations - -
Total diluted eamnings per share 5.4 (5.6)

Basic earnings per share
The eamings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic
eamings per share are as follows:

2007 2006
USS'000 Uss$'000
Eamings used in the calculation of basic EPS 81,115 (88,971)
Adjustments to exclude loss for the pericd from discontinued operations - 6,323
Earnings used in the calculation of basic EPS from continuing operations 81,115 (82,648)
2007 2006
'000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic eamings per share 1,489,057 1,485,250
Diluted earnings per share
The eamnings used in the calculation of diluted eamings per share is as follows;
2007 2006
US$'000 US$'000
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted EPS 81,115 (88,971}
Adjustments to excluds loss for the period from discontinued operations - 6,323
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted EPS from continuing operations 81,115 (82,648)
2007 2008
{000} ('000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic EPS 1,489,057 1,485,250
Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:
Non-axecutive director restricted shares 239 -
Shares issued {o previous holders of RSHI B shares 1,685 -
LTiP share rights 13 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted EPS 1,490,994 1,485,250
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24,

25.

26.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

Weighted average number of converted, lapsed, or cancelled potential ordinary shares included in the
calculation of diluted eamings per share:

2007 2006
{o00) {000}
Shares issued to previcus holders of RSHI B shares 1,685 -
COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
Commitments
The Group has a number of cantinuing operational and financial commitrnents in the normal course of business.
2007 2006
Us$'000 Us$'000
Capltal CommIitments
Purchase commitments for capital expenditures 54,780 25,825

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Indemnifications

Anglo has agreed to indemnify the Group for 50% of any losses In excess of $250,000 suffered due to unknown
environmental matters (up to a maximum of $15,000,000) arising from Group properties formerly owned by Anglo
and which are identified within five years of the purchase date on 29 July 2005.

Letters of credit

Standby letters of credit primarily issued in support of commitments or other cbligations as of 31 December 2007
are as follows:

» The Group's subsidiary in Holland, Cooperatlef Longyear Holdings UA, has letters of ¢redit in the
amounts of $2,500,000, and $359,000 with ABN'Amro for performance bonds with ACE Insurance
Company of North America and Demag Cranes, respectively, which expire in July 2008

e One of the Group's subsidiaries In the U.S. has a letter of credit in the amount of $6,834,000 with
ABN/Amro for performance guarantees with Chase Equipment Leasing Inc. which expires December
2008.

A summary of the maturity of issued letters of credit is as follows:

Consglidated
2007
US$°'000
Less than one year 9,743
Qne to three years 1,400

11,143
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26,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Guarantees

The subsidiaries of the Group pravide guarantees within the nermal course of business which includes payment
guarantees to cover import duties, taxes, performance and compietion of contracts. In addition, the Group and
certain subsidiaries are guarantors on the Group's loans and bomrowings.

A summary of the Group's subsidiaries which are guarantors of the Group’s long term debt is as follows:

Country
Canada

United States

Australia

Furope

South Africa

Legal Contingencles

Entity

Longyear Canada LLC

Boart Longyear Aberta Limited
Boart Longyear Canada

Longyear Hokdings, Inc.

Longyear TM, inc.

Boart Longyear Company

Boart Longyear Consolidated Holdings inc
Boart Longyear Internaticnal Holdings Inc
Longyear Global Holdings, Inc.
Resources Services Holdco, Inc.

Boart Longyear Global Holkdco, Inc.
Prosonic Corporation

Boart Longyear Limited

Boart Longyear Management Pty Limited
Boart Longyear Investments Pty Limited
Votraint No. 1609 Pty Limited

North West Driling Fty Limited

Drillcorp Limited

Grimw cod Davies Pty Limited

Boart Longyear Australia Pty Limited

Boart Longyear Australia Holdings Pty Limited

A.C.N. 066 301 531 Ry Limited

Coopertief Longyear Holdings
Longyear Calulo Holdings BV
Boart Longyear International BV
Boart Longyear BV

Longyear South Africa (Fty) Limited

The Group is subject to certain routine legal proceedings that arise in the normal course of its business. The
Group believes that the ultimate amount of liability, if any, for any pending claims of any type (either alone or
combined}, including the legal proceedings described above, will not materially affect the Group’s operations,
liquidity, or financial position taken as a whole. However, the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertaln, and
unfavorable outcomes could have a materiat adverse impact.
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26, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Other Contingencies
Other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 consist of the following:

Consclidated

2007 2008
Uss'ooo UsSs$'000
Contingent Liabilitles
Guarantees or counter-guarantees issued to cutside parties 18,111 22,036
18,111 22,036

7. LEASES

Operating leases
Non-cancellable future operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

Consolidated

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
Buildings Equipment Buildings Equipment
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$' 000
Payments due within:
One year 6,595 15,347 5,093 6,037
Two to five years 9,551 32,660 8,894 9,902
After five years 1,805 2,226 2,142 -
17,951 50,233 16,129 15,939

Description of operating leases
The Group has operating leases for land, buildings, plant and equipment with the following lease terms:

e 1-30vyears for land and buildings with an average lease term of 7 years
+ 1-5 years for machinery and equipment with an average lease term of 3 years
e 1=7 years for all other property with an average lease term of 3 years

The Group's property operating leases generally contain escalation clauses, which are fixed increases generally
between 3% and 7%, or increase subject to a national index. The Group does not have any significant purchase
options.

Contingent rental payments exist for certain pieces of equipment and are not significant compared with total
rantal payments. These are based on excess wear and tear and excess use.

The Group has no significant aperating leases that are considered onerous other than $1,398,000 Included in the
restructuring and termination costs provision.
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28. COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The principal subsidiaries and associates ownership percentage consist of the following:

Country of 31 Decomber 31 December

Subsidlaries Incorporation Business 2007 2006
A.C.N. 086 301 531 Py L

{lormerty Bradley Manufacturng (Ply) Ltd)  Australia Tools and Equipment 100 100
North West Drilling Pty Lid Australia Drifing Services 100 100
Votraint No. 1609 Pty Lid Australia Drilling Services 100 100
Geoserv Pesquisas Geologicas S.A. Brazil Drilling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Lida Brazi Drilling Products 100 100
Boart Longy ear (Pty) Lid Bolswana Drilling Products 100 100
Longy ear Canada ULC Canada Tools and Equipment 100 100

{formerty McCarthy's Trusy (i) Services
Boart Langy ear S.A. Chie Tools, Equipment and Crilling 100 100

Services

Boart Langy ear Drilling Products China Dxilling Products and Services 100 100

Company (Wwxi) Lid. (formerly Wuxi Boart

Longy ear Hardmetals Co. Lid.)
Boart Longy ear Spolka sno Czech Republic Concrets and Slone 100 100
Boart Longy ear GmbH & Co Kg Gemany Drilling Products and Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Gemany Dormmant 100 100

Vermmogensv erw altung GmbH
Boart Longy ear (Germany ) GmbH (i) Garmany Tools and Equipment 100 100
Boart Longy ear Lid Ghana Domant 100 100
BLY Ghena Limited Ghana Drilling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear BV Holland Drilling Products 100 100
Boart Longy ear intemational BY (jif} Holland Holding Company 100 100
Cooperatef Langy ear Holdings UA Holland Holding Comparny 100 100
Langy ear Calulo Holdings BY Holland Drilling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear India Private L India Tools and Equipment 100 100
P.T. Boart Loty ear Indonesia Driliing Services 100 100
Boart Longy sar Limited tretand Dxiting Products 100 100
Boart Longy ear Limited Laos Drilling Services 100 100
BLY Mali S.A. Mall Drilling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear {NZ) Limited (iv) New Zealand Drilling Services 100 100
Longy ear Holdings New Zealand, Lid. New Zealand Holding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear AS Norway Drilling Products 100 100
Boart Longy ear SAC Peru Driling Products and Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Poland Spotka Z.0.0. Poland Drilling Products and Services 100 100
Longy ear South Afica (Pty) Lid South Afica Driling Products and Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear SA Spain Drilling Products and Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Limited Thailand Oxilling Services 100 100
Boart (UK} Limited Unitad Kingdom Dormant 100 100
Boart Longy ear (Holdings) L. Unlted Kingdom Holding Company 100 100
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28, COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Country of 31 December 31 December
Subsidiarles Incorporation Business 2007 2008
Boan Longy ear Limited United Kingdom Domant 100 100
Boant Longy ear (Inv estments) Lid. United Kingdom Dormant 100 100
Dongray Industrial Limited United Kingdom Dormant 100 100
Boart Longy ear Compnay USA Tools, Equipment and Drilling 100 100
Boart Longy ear Consolidated
Holdings Inc, USA Holding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear Intemational
Holdings inc. USA Holding Company 100 100
Longy ear Global Heldings, Inc. USA Holding Company 100 100
Longy ear Holdings, Inc. USA Holding Company 100 100
Longy ear TM, Inc. USA Holding Company 100 100
Prosonic Corporation Usa Drilling Services 100 100
Boart Longy sar Zambia Ltd. Zambia Driling Services 100 100
BLI Zambia Lid. Zambia Drilling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear RUS Russia Faderaon  Dxiling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear SAC Peru Driling Products & Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Canada Canada Drilling Products & Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Alberia Limited Canada Holding Comparvy 100 100
Boart Longy ear Netherlands BV Norway Heiding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear (D.R.C.) SPRL Dem. Rep. of Congo  Drilling Producks & Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Australia
Holdings Py Limited Austraiia Holding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear Australia Pty Lid Australia Driling Services 100 100
Boart Longy ear Bermuda Limited Bemuda Holding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear Global Holdco, Inc Usa Holding Company 100 100
Resources Services Holdco, Inc USA Hoiding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear Management Pty Lid Australia Holding Company 100 100
Prosonic Deutschland GmbH, LLC Germany Driling Services 100 100
Prosonic Intemational, Inc. usa Driling Services 100 100
Geoverse, Inc. USA Meiding Company 100 100
Prosonic France SARL France Holding Company 100 100
Boart Longy ear Investments Pty Lid Australia Holding Company 100 100
Drillicorp Ply Lid Australia Driling Services 100 -
Grimw ood Davies Pty Lid Austratia Drilling Services 100 -
Connors Argentina SA Argentina Drilling Services 100 -
Rentas de Ex plaracion | Limitada Chile Halding Company 100 -
Rentas de Ex ploracion Il Limitada Chile Holding Company 100 -
Rentas de Exploracion Ill Limitada Chile Holding Company 100 -
Connors SA Chile Drilling Services 100 -
Patagonia Drill Mining Services S.A. Amentina Delling Services 100 -
Patagoria Drill Inversiones Chile LTDA Chila Drilling Services 100 -
Portezuelo S.A. Paraguay Drilling Services 100 -
Inavel S.A. Uruguay Drilling Services 100 -
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28.

29.

COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Country of 31 Docomber 31 December
Subsidlaries Incorporation Business 2007 2006
Boart Longy ear (Zimbabw e} Lid. Zimbabwe Domant 100 100
Samuel Csbom Engineering Py Lid 2Zimbabwa Drilling Services 99 99
Boart Drilling & Contracting Lid Zimbabwe Drilling Services 99 99
Assoclates
Calulo Drllling (Pty) Lbd (a Black
Economic Empow erment Company ) South Afica Tools, Equipment and Drilling - 39
Discontinued Subsidiaries
Boart Ceramics GmbH Germany Hard Materials - -
Boart Longy ear Spolka Z.0.0. Poland Tools and Equipment - -
(i) In 2006, Longyear Canada ULC succeeded from the merger of McCarthy's Trust (0723662 B.C.), Boart Longyear
(Canada) Heldings Inc. and Boart Longyear Inc.
{ii) On 24 August 2006, Boart Longyear (Germany) GmbH succeeded from the merger of Boart Longyear Interfels
GmbH with Boart Longyear {Germany) GmbH.
(iiiy On 21 April 2006, Boart Longyear International BV succeeded from the merger of Longyear Group BV and Boart

Longyear International BV
(iv} On 30 June 2006, Boart Longyear {NZ) Limited succeeded from the merger of Dritiwell Holdings New Zealand, Ltd
and Boart Longyear Lid.

ACQUISITION OF OPERATIONS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2007 the Boart L.ongyear Group acquired the following
entities:

On 10 January 2007, the Boart Longyear Group acquired certain assets of KWL Drillrig Engineering Pty Limited
("KWL"). KWL is located in Australia and its principal activity is designing and manufacturing reverse circulation
rigs for use in the mining industry. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of KWL is attributable to the capability
it provides the Boart Longyear Group to manufacture reverse circulation rigs and allow the Boart Longyear Group
to expand the capacity of the reverse circulation operations in Western Australia.

On 23 January 2007, the Boart Longyear Group acquired 100% of issued share capital of Grimwood Davies Pty
Limited. Grimwood Davies Pty Limited's principal activity is providing reverse circulation exploration driliing
servicas, primarily in Western Australia. The goodwili arising on the acquisition of Grimwood Davies Pty Limited
is attributable to the position it occupies as a significant reverse circulation driller in Western Australia, which
provides the Boart Longyear Group with a tremendous opportunity to expand these services with other key
accounts of the Boart Longyear Group, building on Boart Longyear Group's already significant reverse circulation
drilling services presence in Western Australia.

On 31 January 2007, the Boart Longyear Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Connors SA
("Connors Chile") and Connors Argentina 8.A. ("Connors Argentina®). Connors Chile is a mineral exploration
drilling service provider in Chile operating with 25 rigs in both the underground and surface markets. Connors
Argentina is a mineral exploration drilling service provider in the Argentine market operating with 9 rigs. The
goodwill arising on the acquisition of Connors Chile is attributable to the entry it provides the Boart Longyear
Group into the Chilean underground market and the opportunity to consolidate the Boart Longyear Group's
operation in Chile into Connors Chile. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Cennors Argentina is attributable
to the entry it provides the Boart Longyear Group Into the Argentine surface exploration market, and is an
excellent oppartunity for the Boart Longyear Group to expand theses services and further penetrate the Argentine
exploration market.
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29.

ACQUISITION OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

On 31 December 2007, the Boarl Longyear Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Patagonia
Drilling. Patagonia Drilling is a minerals exploration services provider in the Latin America region operating 13
rigs. Accounting for this acquisition has been determined provisionally at 31 December 2007. The goodwill
arising on the acquisition of Patagonia Drilling is attributable to the experienced labour force, the position of the
company in the Argentine reverse circulation drilling segment and the benefit of combining business with the
Boart Longyear Argentine operations. Reverse circulation drilling has higher barriers to entry than conventional
diamond drilling. The capital costs are greater and this method of drilling requires a unique skill set of the drillers

All of these acquisitions wera accounted for as purchase transactions and the consolidated profit and loss
amounts includes the operations of the acquisitions from the date of acquisition through 31 December 2007.

The net profit contributed by these acquisitions in the period between the dates of acquisition and the reperting
date wers approximately $9,414,000. Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2007, total
consolidated revenue for the period would have been $1,591,000,000 and consolidated profit for the period would
have been $82,672,000,

The net assets acquired in these business combinations, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:

Acqulree’s
carrylng amount
before business Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
us$'o000 LS$'000 US$°000

Net assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 4,168 - 4,168

Trade and other receivables 9,703 - 9,703

nventories 6,916 - 6,916

Other assets 2234 - 2,234

Intangible assets - 10,460 10,450

Property, plant and equipment 13,668 4,882 18,550

Trade and other payables (10,893} - {10,893)

Deferred tax liabilties (520) (3,976) {4,496}

Finance lease {2,930) - {2,930}

22,245 11,366 33,712

Goodwlil arising on the acquisition 62,278
Total consideration 95,688
Net cash outflow arlsing on acquisition:

Total Consideration (95,988)

Deferred consideration 387

Cash and cash equivalents acquired 4,168

{91,433)

During the financlal year ended 31 December 2006 the Boart Longyear Group acquired the following
entities:

On 1 August 2008, the Group acquired 100% of the shares of North West Drilling Pty Limited {"North West
Drilling”) and purchased assets of Graham Kluck Management and Investments Pty Ltd. North West Drilling, a
privately owned Australian-based drilling services company located in Perth, Australia, operates surface rigs in
Western Australia and primarily services the iron ore sector in the Pilbara region.

On 20 October 20086, the Group acquired 100% of the shares of Orillcorp Ltd ("Drillcorp®), a mineral drilling
services provider. Drillcorp is located in Perth, Australia and operates mult-purpose diamend core drill rigs and
reverse circulation rigs in Westem Australia.
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2g, ACQUISITION OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

On 6 December 20086, the Group acquired 100% of the shares of Prosonic Corporation ("Prosonic™), a sonic
drilling services provider. Prosonic, headquartered in Marietta, Ohio, is a provider of essential drilling services

and drilling products for the global mining industry and performs drilling services for water exploration,

environmentat, and oil sands exploration drilling.

All of these acquisitions were accounted for as purchase transactions and the consclidated profit and loss
amounts includes the operations of the acquisitions from the date of acquisition through 31 December 2006.

The net assets acquired and the total cost of the acquisitions during 2008 are as follows:

Acquiree's
carrying amount
before business Fair value
comblination adjustments Fair value
UsS$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
Net assets acquired
Cash and cash equivalents 1,151 - 1,151
Trade and cther receivables 17,236 - 17,236
nventories 8,807 937 9,844
Other assets 1,121 182 1,303
Intangible assets - 11,407 11,407
Property, plant and equipment . 39,077 9,329 48,406
Trade and cther payables {12,264) - (12,264)
Deferred tax labilties - (5.710) (5,710)
Finance lease {8,523) - (8,623)
45,605 16,145 62,750
Goodwill arlsing on the acquislition 122,253
Total consideration 185,003
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Total consideration (185,003)
Deferred consideration 38,364
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 1,151
{145,438)

The results contributed by these acquisitions in the period between the dates of acquisition and the reporting date
were approximately $3,345,000. Mad the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2006, total consolidated
revenue for the period would have been $1,200,000,000, and consolidated loss for the period would have been

$73,744,000.

30. DISPOSAL OF OPERATIONS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2007 the Boart Longyear Group disposed of the following

operations:

MCE Australla

On 1 August 2007, the Boart Longyear Group announced the sale of the Mining Capital Equipment ("MCE")
division in Australia for $8,800,000. The disposal is consistent with the Boart Longyear Group's long-term policy
to focus its activities on higher return, core business opportunities. The MCE Australia division was not

considered a core business and earned lower returns than the core business lines.
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30.

DISPOSAL OF OPERATIONS {(CONTINUED}

Hardmaterials and Softrock tools division — (“HMS") produces mining inserts used as the wear components
for rotary percussive drill bits, saft rock cutting tools for coal and other soft minerals, road planning picks (used for
removal of road surface materials), specialty-engineerad wear products made of tungsten carbide and steel
composites and ceramics used for a variety of wear and high tech applications. The primary Hardmaterials and
Softrock tools manufacturing facilities are located in Germany and Seuth Africa, supported by production in
China. On 24 April 2008, the division was soid for a total consideration of $66,525,000, resulting in a loss on the
sale of $7,391,000, which includes disposal costs of $3,384,000. The loss is recorded in the income statement
within the discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2006.

The Hardmaterials and Softrock net assets disposed of are as follows:

2008
Net assets disposed: Us$'000
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,143
Trade and cother receivables 15,755
hventories 29,147
Total current assets 46,015
Noncurrent assets:
Property, plant and equipment 51,209
Other assets 80
Total non-current assets 51,289
Trade and other payables (26,017)
Provisions (755)
Net assets disposed 70,532
Disposal costs 3,384
Loss on disposal {7,391)
Total proceeds 66,525
Net cash disposed (1,143)
Net cash inflow fromdisposal of subsidiaries 65,382

Mining Capital Equipment (“"MCE”) - MCE Poland produces drill rigs for underground tunneling. On 20 April
2006, the Group sold its shares in Boart Longyear Sp.2.0.0. for total consideration of $5,200,000, subject to
working capital adjustments, recording a gain of $740,000 on the sale.

The combined results of the discontinued operations that have been included in the income statement are as
follows. The comparative profit (loss) from the cash flows from discontinued operations have been re-presented
to include those operations classified as discontinued in the current period:

Consolidated

2006
US$ 000
Loss from discontinued operations:
Revenue 25512
Cost of goods sold (22,774)
Gross margin 2,738
General and administrative expenses (3,446)
Cther income 2
Operating loss (706}
Loss on the disposal of the operations (7,391)
Attributable income tax expense 1,774
(5,617}
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (6,323)
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3. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

The Group has assets and liabilities directly associated with the assets held for sale for the MCE South Africa
and Diamond Wire businesses. The impending disposat is consistent with the Group's long-term policy to focus
its activities on higher return, core business opportunities. These divisions are not considered a core business
and earned lower returns than the core business ines.

On reciassification of these operations to assets held for sale, the Group has not recognised any impaiment
losses. These divisions have been classified and accounted for at 31 December 2007 as a disposal group held
for sale.

32 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents Includes cash on hand and in
banks and investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is reconciled to the
related items in the balance sheet as follows:

Consolidatad Parent
2007 2006 2007
Us$'000 Uss'ooo Us$'000
Cash and cash equivalents 87,548 26,547 1,087
Bank overdraft - {1.017) -
87,543 25,530 1,087
Cash and cash equivalents attributable
to discontinued operations - - -
87,548 25,530 1,087

(b) Business acquired

During the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the Group acquired four businesses. The net cash
outflow for acquisitions was $91,443,000. Refer to Note 29 for further details. In addition, there was a
final payment of $38,364,000 related to a 2006 acquisition.

(c) Business disposed

During the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the Group disposed of its MCE Australia, Diamond
Blades, Interfels, Zimbabwe and Calulo Drilling Pty Ltd businesses. During the financial year ended 31
December 2006 the Group disposed of its Hardmaterials and Softrock tools division and the MCE
Poland businesses. Details of the disposal are as follows:

Consolidated

2007 2006
US$'000 US$'000
Cash and cash equivalents 10,0583 71,725
Deferred sales proceeds - -
10,053 71,725
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32 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(¢} Business disposed {continued)
Consoclidated
2007 2008
US$'000 US$'000

Book value of net assets sold
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,143
Trade and other receivatles 9,331 18,31
Inventories 3,558 32,009
Property, plant and equipment 69 53,219
Other non-current assets - 80
Trade and other payables (6,317) (29,960)
Net assets disposed 6,641 74,882
Disposal costs 194 3,494
Gain {loss) on disposal 3,218 (8,651)

10,053 71,725
Met cash Inflow on disposal
Cash and cash equivalents consideration 10,053 71,725
Less cash and cash equivalent balances
disposed of - 1,143}

10,053 70,582
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a2. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of Group nat profit (loss) for the year to net cash inflow {outflow) from operating
activities
Consoiidated Parent
‘ 2007 2006 2007
| USS'000 US$'000 US$'000
Profit {Loss} for the year 81,115 (88,971} 7,509
Adjustments provided by operating activities:
(Gain) loss on sale or disposal of non-current assets 72 (7,708) -
(Gain) Joss on disposal of business {3,218) 6,651 -
Depreciation and amortisation 59,848 49,772 -
Foreign exchange gain (6,5086) (6,752) -
Interest income received and receivable - {1.877) -
Impaimment of non-current assets - 7,664 -
Fair value gain on derivatives 4,871 9,093 -
Shara-based compensation 775 7,228 -
Amortisation and write off of debt issuance costs 27,086 30,530
Write off of debt issuance costs - 650
Interest included in financing activities 37,332 - -
IPO costs expensed included in financing activites 5,207 - 5,207
Debt early termination costs included in financing 5,600 - -
Increase (decrease) In current tax payable (9,394) 14,497 7,210
Increase (decrease} in deferred tax balances 8,140 {47,889) 2778
Changes in net assets and liabilities, net of effacts from
acquisition and disposal of businesses:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Trade and other receivables {24,025) (71,630} {15,805}
Inventories {46,326) {20,646) -
Other assets {6,187} 7.522) -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Trade and other payables 46,082 87,410 8,533
Provistons (22,904) {2,071) -
Net cash from {used in) operating activities 157,778 (41,561) 15,432
{e) Non-cash flow items
2007 2006 2007
US$'000 1sS$'000 US$'000
ncreass in intangible assets - 13,168 -
Change In purchases of property, plant and equipment in
trade and cther payables 4,711 11,216 -
Non-cash movement 4,711 24,384 -

Of the total PO proceeds of $2,253,201,000, the amount of $329,749,000 was non-cash and consists of
ordinary shares in Boart Longyear Limited that were issued to previous sharehelders of RSHI.
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33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group has established a Long-term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") to assist in retaining key executives and
encouraging a superior performance on a sustained basis. The incentive provided under the LTIP is an annual
grant of two tranches of perfermance rights that will vest based on the satisfaction of both perfformancea-based
and time-based conditions. Vested rights will convert to ordinary fully paid shares on a one-for-one basis.

Under the terms of the LTIP, the first tranche of rights vests upon the achievement of the cumulative EPS growth
targets set by the Board. The Board will set a minimum and maximum EPS target for each financial year during
the three-year vesting period. Veesting will be determined by the Group’s performance against cumulative EPS
targets for the relevant three-year period. Partial vesting occurs on a pro-rata basis if the cumulative three-year
minimum EPS growth target is surpassed. Full vesting occurs only if the Group's EPS growth meets or exceeds
the maximum cumulative EPS growth target for the three-year period. Participants must also remain employed
during the EPS periad, The second tranche of rights vests upon continuous employment with the Group from the
grant date until the third anniversary of the grant date.

The first grants were made during 2007 to five senior employees of the Group. The share-based expense
recorded during the year ended 31 December 2007 was $139,000.

tn addition, prior to the IPO, thers were 643,240 restricted shares granted to Board members in consideration of
services performed. The share-based expense recorded during the year ended 31 December 2007 was
$231,000.

The following table shows the share-based payment arrangements that were in existence at 31 December 2007:

Vesting Falr Value at
Series Number Grant Date Dato Grant Date
(1) lasued 12 April 2007 643,240 12-Apr-07 12-Apr-10 1.53
(2) esued 17 Saptember 2007 432,000 17-Sep-07 1-Juk10 1.81
(3) ssued 17 September 2007 174,000 17-Sep-07 1-Sep-10 1.81

The fair value of the rights were determined using the Monte Carlo simulation mode! using the following inputs:

{nputs Into the model Serles 1 Serles 2 Series 3
Grant date share price 1.53 1.81 1.81
Expected volatiity 35.95% 35.95% 36.93%
Life of rights 35 months 33.5 months 35.5 months
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate 6.42% 6.16% 6.16%

Upon the acquisition by Advent and Bain from Anglo on 29 July 2005, Longyear Global Holdings, Inc. (LGHI)
implermented an equity incentive plan under which Class A Restricted Stock and share options were authorised to
be issued. The restricted shares vested 20% after the first year and then 10% each quarter thereafter. All
restricted shares became fully vested upon a change in control, including a trade sale or IPO. The unvested
Class A Restricted Stock could not be transferred under the plan and, upon vesting a transfer could be made anly
in accordance with the terms of the Investors Rights Agreement. The award agreement for restricted shares
under the Longyear Global Holdings, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan contained noncompetition and
nonsolicitation provisions during the term of employment and for the 18 months after grant date. The maximum
number of restricted shares and options authorised to be issued was 1,278,333,

On 29 July 2005, the Group issued 823,246 shares of Class A Restricted Stock which would vest on 28 July
2008, with a fair value of $2.00 per share, for a purchase price of $1.00 per share. On 10 October 2008, the
Group [ssued an additional 204,534 shares of Class A Restricted Stock which would vest on 9 Qctober 2008,
with a fair vatue of $27.00 per share for a purchase price of $1.00 per share. The fair values were determined
through a valuation by an independent valuation company. The difference between the fair value per share and
the purchase price per share was being amartised on a stralght-line basis over the vesting period resulting in an
increase in compensation expense and an increase in additional paid in capital over the vesting periods.
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as.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

With the change of control on & October 20086, all outstanding restricted stock became vested. Because of the
accelerated vesting, a compensation expense of $5,558,000 was recorded on 6 October 2006.

Prior to the transaction on 6 QOctober 2008, LGHI also issued share options to kay employees. Prior to the
change in control on 6 Octaber 20086, the fair value of the options granted was being amortised on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period. The details of the LGHI optlons are described below:

Tier One share options granted to Tier Two share options granted to

key amployess key employess
Nature of the arrangement Share opions granted © key employ ees Samae as Tier One
Dates of grant 16 January 2006 - 18 April 2006 21 August 2006
Number of Instruments granted 125,219 38,363
Maximum number of options Mo more than 1,278,333 under Tier One  No more than 1,278,333 under Tier One
oplions, Tier Two opions and resticled  opfions, Tier Two opfions and restricied
shares shares
Exercise price $51 $89
Share prica at the dates of grant $25.65 in January $99.43
$31.76 in March/April
Contractual life {years) 10 10
Vesting conditions 20% afler 1styear, 10% each quarter Same as Tier Cne

thereafter upon confnuous employment, of

Full vesting upon a change In confrol,
including a trade, sale or PO

Settlement Shares Shares
Valuation mode! Black-Scholes-Merion 8lack-Scholes-Merton
Expected volatility 40% 40%
Expected aption life at grant date (years) 6 years 5.75 years
Risk-free interest rate 4.45% 4.84%
Expected dividend yleld 0% 0%

Fair valus of granted instrument

determined at the grant date $6.46 In January; $9.78 in March/April $11.43

All outstanding Tier One and Tier Two options became fully vestad as a resuft of the Group restructuring on 6
Cctober 2008. The Group recorded compensation expense of $1,439,000 related to the vesting of the
outstanding options.

As part of the Group restructuring on 6 October 2008, holders of Class A restricted stock were entitled to cash
consideration of $99.43 per share. Management members were also offered the option to exchange their shares
for the newly issued Class A shares of the Group. As a result, approximately 50% of the Class A restricted
shares were converted into newly issued common stock of the Group at its face value of §1,000 per share, and
the remaining shares were sold to the Group for $99.43 per share as part of the merger transaction. The
exchanged Group stock was fully vested, but the employees agreed to certain restrictions on their ability to sell
the stock.

All outstanding Tier One and Tier Two share options were automatically cancetled and converted into the right to
receive cash equal to the intrinsic value of the options. Option holders could also elect to convert a percentage of
the intrinsic value into fully vested share options under a new Equity Incentive Plan issued by RSHI with the

same Intrinsic value.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Tier One optionees received a cash payout of approximately $2,300,000 for a pertion of their holdings. The
balance was exchanged for replacement Tier One options with an exercise price of $250 per share. The Tier
Two optionees exchanged all of their options for replacement Tier Two options with a new exercise price of $770
per share. A total of 4,971,000 shares of replacement Tier Cne options and 1,742,000 shares of replacement
Tier Two options were issued. The total intrinsic value of the cancelled options that were exchanged was
$4,129,000 on the date of exchange. The replacement options granted caried an additional fair value of $107
compared to the fair value of the old options converted on & October 2006. This additional fair value was
recorded as compensation expense on 6 October 2006,

The details of the replacement RSHI options are described below:

Nature of the arrangement

Dates of grant
Number of Instruments granted
Maximum number of options

Exercise price

Shars price at the dates of grant
Contractual life (years)

Vesting conditions

Settlement
Valuation modael
Expaected volatllity

Expoctad option life at grant data (years}

Risk-free Interost rate

Expectad dividend yleld

Falr value of granted instrument
detormined at the grant date

Tier One Share Options Granted to
Key Employees

Tier Two Share Options Granted to
Key Employees

Replacement share opfions exchanged for

old Tier One options under LGHI
6 October 2006
4,971
No more than 10,000 for both Tier One
and Tier wo oplions
$250
$1,000
10
100% v ested upon grant, but no
exarcise for 12 months, or unii an (PO

Shares
Black-Scholes-Merton
40%

.26 years
4.84%

0%

§755.44

Same as Tier One
6 Oclober 2006
1,742
No more than 10,000 for both Tier One

and Tier two opions

$770

$1,000

10

Same as Tier One

Shares
Black-Scholss-Merton
40%

.26 years
4.04%

0%

§267.01

The following information applies to RSHI options outstanding at 31 December 2006:

Exercise Number of Remaining Llife
prices options Expected Contractual
Tier One $250 4,971 0.26 year 9.76 years
Tier Two $770 1,742 0.26 year 9.76 years
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33 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of movements in the number of share options can be summarised as follows:

Tier Ong Tier Two
Number of Weighted avg Number of Weighted avg
options exercise price options exercise price
LGH Options outstanding at
1 January 2006 - NA - NA
LGH options granted 125,319 51 38,363 89
LGH options cancelled {125,319) 51 (38,363) 89
RSH options granted 4,971 250 1,742 770
RSH options outstanding at
31 December 2006 4,971 250 1,742 770

Exercisabie at year-end -

The total expenses recognised for share-based payments were $7,228,000 for the year ended 31 December

2006,
3. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Details of key management personnel

The directors and other members of key management personnel of the Group during the year were:

Paul Brunner {Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
Ron Seilweood (Chief Financial Officer, resigned 31 October 2007)
Holm Qostveen {Senior Vice President, Sales, resigned 31 May 2007)

Graham Bradley (Chairman, non-executive directer) appointed 21 February 2007
Bruce Brook {Non-executive director) appointed 21 February 2007
Geoff Handley (Non-executive director) appointed 21 February 2007
David McLemore (Non-executive director), appeinted 21 February 2007
Peter St. George (Non-executive director) appeinted 21 February 2007
Neil Upfold (Non-executive director) appointed 2 January 2007, resigned 21 February 2007)
Robin Bishop (Mon-executive director) appointed 2 January 2007, resigned 21 February 2007)
Nicholas Atkins {Non-executive director) appointed 2 January 2007, resigned 21 February 2007)

Craig Kipp (Chief Operating Officer)
Patrick Johnson (Senior Vice President, Human Resources)

Scott Alexander (Vice President of Global Drilling Services}
Michael Birch {Vice President of Global Products)

Fabrizio Rasetti (Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary)
Terrance Dolan (Senior Vice President, Business Development and Marketing)

The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel of the Group is set out below.

Consolidated Parent

2007 2006 2007

Us$ uss UsSs$
Short-term employee benefits 5,879,673 3,856,635 840,866
Post-employment benefits 116,795 17,700 62,520
Cther long-term benefits 188,000 181,629 -
Termination benefits 684,647 - -
Share-based payment 268,511 3,083,100 230,511

7,137,626 7,139,064 1,133,897
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

®

(ii)

(i)

Transactions with key managemsnt personnel
Key management personnel compensation

Details of key management personnel compensation are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial

statements.

Other transactions with key management personnel of the Group.

Details of other transactions with key management persannel are disclosed in Note 33 of the

financial statements.

Key management personnel equity holdings

Details of key management personnel equity holdings are disclosed below.

Balance at1 issued during Balance at 1
January year December
No. No. No.
2007
Graham Bradley 2,383,782 2,383,782
Bruce Brook 154,053 154,053
Geoff Handley 86,486 86,486
David McLemore 808,609 808,609
Peter St George 289,188 289,188
Paul Brunner 16,869,839 16,869,839
Scott Alexander 588,918 588,918
Mchael Birch 664,596 664,596
Patrick Johnson 1,430,873 1,430,973
Craig Kipp 10,214,626 10,214,626
Holm Oostveen 1,070,744 1,070,744
Fabrizio Rasetti 984,121 984,121
Ron Selw ood 5,522,683 5,522,683
Transactions with related parties
Transactions with other related parties consist of the following:
Consolidated
2007 2006
US$'000 Uss$'000
Fees pai to certain shareholders and
their representatives 67,354 34,419
Merger consideration paid to Advent, Bain and
management - 991,546
Capital contributions from Advent, Bain
RSN BV and management - 448 359
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35,

36.

3r.

3s.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

{c} Transactions with controlled entities
Transactions between Boart Longyear Limited and its controlled entities in the year included:

Consolidated

2007 2008
US$'000 UsS$'000

Short-term amounts ow ed by Directors, Executives, Management

and Employees included in accounts receivable - 134
{ ong-term borrow ings ow ed by Calulo Crilling (Pty) L.td - 169
Long-term borrow ings ow ed by Directors, Executives, Management

and Employees - 12

GROUP RESTRUCTURING

During 2007, the Boart Longyear Group completed a group restructuring that resulted in a new corporate
structure. In summary, the group restructuring consisted of:

+ Certain entities included within the U.S. tax consolidated group selling wholly owned subsidiaries to
wholly owned Australian subsidiaries of Boart Longyear Limited; and
» Repayment of existing external borrowings and drawdown of new borrowings in Canada and Australia.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
Consolidated Parent
2007 2006 2007
Uss Us$ Uss$
Auditor of the parent entity
Audit or review of the financial report 775,000 - 775,000
Preparation of the tax return 11,000 - 11,000
786,000 - 786,000
Related practice of the parent entity auditor
Audit or review of the financial report 6,115,000 10,554,000 -
Tax services 1,397,000 916,000 -
Due diligence and other related services 738,000 472,000 -
Assistance with the preparation of tax returns 410,000 263,000 -

The auditor of Boart Longyear Limited is Delcitte Touche Tohmatsu.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 22 February 2008, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of Britton Brothers
Diamond Drilling Ltd. As the acquisition was only completed on 22 February 2008, the necessary
market valuations and other calculations have not been finalised and therefore the fair values of the
assets acquired (including identifiable assets), liabilities, contingent liabilities assumed and goodwili
arising as part of the business combination have not yet been determined.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Additional stock exchange information as at 25 February 2008.
Number of holders of equity securities

(a) Ordinary share capital

1,502,862,459 fully paid ordinary shares are held by 15,425 individual shareholders.

All issued ordinary shares carry one vote per share, however partly paid shares do not carry the rights to
dividends.

(a) Shara rights

606,000 rights are held by 5 individuat note holders.

Convertible notes do not carry a right to vote.

Distribution of holders of equity securities

Fully paid
ordinary Share
shares rights
1-1000 1,259 -
1,001-5000 5225 -
5,001-10,000 3,604 -
10,001-100,000 5,066 - |
100,001 and over 271 5 |
15,425 5

Substantlal shareholders

Fully paid ordinary shares Percent of Issued Capital

Qrdinary shareholders Number Pearcent
HSEBC CUSTODY NOMNEES (AUSTRAUA) LIMTED 296,893,475 19.8%
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 291,586,030 19.4%
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMTED 209,134,418 13.9%
CIMCORP NOMINEES PTY LMITED 106,242,678 7.1%
ANZ NOMNEES LIMTED 68,538,520 4.6%
QUEBNSLAND INVESTMENT CORFORATION 45,315,698 3.0%
COGENT NOMINEES PTY LMTED 23,249,581 1.5%
HSBC CUSTODY NOMNEES (AUSTRALA) LIMTED-GSI ECSA 22,928,607 1.5%
HSBC CUSTODY NOMNEES (AUSTRALA) LIMTED - A/C 2 14,228,225 0.9%
ANMP LFE LMTED 12,980,971 0.9%
HSBC CUSTODY NOMNEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMTED - A/C3 12,816,624 0.9%
LUBS NOMINEES PTY LTD 9,473,462 0.6%
CMCORP NOMINEES PTY LMITED 8,862,892 0.6%
COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMTED 8,832,403 0.6%
UBS WEALTH MANAGEMENT AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LTD 7.488,723 0.5%
RBC DEXiA INVESTOR SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMNEES PTY LIMTED 5,735,809 0.4%
IAG NOMNEES PTY LMTED 5,320,743 0.4%
BOND STREET CUSTODIANS LIMTED 4,743,818 0.3%
ECAFTAL NOMNEES PTY LIMTED 4 598,088 0.3%
RBC DEXIA NVESTOR SERVICES 4,411,457 0.3%

1,163,482,323 77.4%
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION {CONTINUED)

Company Secretary
Fabrizio Rasetti
Ouncan Glasgow

Registered office
919 - 929 Marion Road
Michell Park SA 5043
Australia

Tel +61 (8) 8375 8375

Share registry

Link Market Services Limited
Level 12

680 George Street

Sydney NSW Austrafia 2000
Tel: +61 (2) 8280 7111

Principal administratiot
2640 West 1700 South
Satt Lake City, Utah 84104
United States of America
Tat +1 (801) 972 6430
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NOTICE OF 2008 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Boart Longyear Limited ABN 49 123 052 728

Notice is given that the first Annual General Meeting (Meeting) of Shareholders of Boart Longyear
Limited (the Company) will be held at the Museum of Sydney, located at the corner of Bridge and Phillip
Streets, Sydney NSW 2000 on Monday, 28 April 2008, commencing at 3.00pm (Sydney time).

BUSINESS OF THE MEETING

A. Consideration of Reports

To receive and consider the Financial Report, the Directors’ Report and the Independent Audit Report
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 (the Reports).

All shareholders may view the Reports at www.boartlongyear.com by selecting “Investors” and then
“Prospectus/Annual Reports.”

B. Questions and Comments

Following the consideration of the Reports, the Chairman will give shareholders a reasonable
opportunity to ask questions about, or comment on, the performance and affairs of the Company.

The Company’s auditor will attend the meeting and will be available to answer questions relevant to:
{(a) the conduct of the audit;
{b) the preparation and content of the Independent Audit Report;
(¢) the accounting policies adopted by the Company in relation to the preparation of the
financial statements; and
{d) the independence of the Auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

The Auditor will answer any written questions relevant to the content of the Independent Audit Report
or the conduct of the audit submitted by shareholders.

C. ltems for Approval

1. Election of Graham Bradley
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That Mr. Graham Bradley, being a director of the Company appointed in accordance with clause
44{(d) of the Constitution of the Company, and having offered himself for election and being eligible,
is hereby elected as a director of the Company in accordance with ASX Listing Rufe 14.4.

2. Election of Bruce Brook
To conslider and, if thought {it, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That Mr. Bruce Brook, being a director of the Company appointed in accordance with clause 44(d)
of the Constitution of the Company, and having offered himself for election and being eligible, is
heraby elected as a director of the Company in accordance with ASX Listing Rule 14.4."

3. Election of Geoff Handley
To consider and, i thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That Mr. Geoff Handley, being a director of the Company appointed in accordance with clause
44(d) of the Constitution of the Company, and having offered himself for election and being eligible,
is hereby elected as a director of the Company in accordance with ASX Listing Rule 14.4."

- << Notice ef Annual General Meeting 2008 @ EOHGYIAI 1 ]



BOART LONGYEAR >>
Notice of Annual General Meoting 2008

4. Election of David McLemore
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That Mr. David McLemore, being a director of the Company appointed in accordance with clause
44(d) of the Constitution of the Company, and having offered himself for election and being eligible,
is hereby elected as a director of the Company in accordance with ASX Listing Rule 14.4.”

5. Election of Peter St. George
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That Mr. Peter St. George, being a director of the Company appointed in accordance with clause
44(a) of the Constitution of the Company, and having offered himself for election and being efigible,
is hereby elected as a director of the Company in accordance with ASX Listing Rule 14.4."

6. Appointment of Auditor |
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an ordinary resclution of the Company:

|

|

\

*That, for the purpeses of section 3278(1)(a) of the Corporations Act, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
appointed as the Auditor of the Company.”

7. Adoption of Remuneration Report
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an advisory resolution of the Company: |

“That the Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 {set out in the
Directors' Report) be adopted.”

8. Approval of Boart Longyear Long Term Incentive Plan
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resclution of the Company:
“That, for the purposes of section 260C(4) of the Corporations Act, and for all other purposes,
approval is hereby given for all Rights granted under the “Boart Longyear Long Term Incentive
Plan,” which is constituted and administered in accordance with the Rules of the Boart Longyear
Long Term Incentive Plan.” ‘

Voting Excluslon Statement

The Company will disregard any votes cast on Resolution 8 by a member of Company management
who may receive shares under the Boart Longyear Long Term Incentive Plan and any assoclate of
such member of management.

However, the Company need not disregard a vote if:

(a) itls cast by a persen as proxy for a person who s entitled to vote In accordance with the
directions on the proxy form; or

(b} itis cast by the person chairing the meeting as proxy for a person who is entitled to vote In

accordance with the direction on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides

9. Ratification of shares issued
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That, for the purposes of ASX Listing Ruls 7.4, and for all other purposes, the Company ratify
the issue of the 13,473,087 ordinary fufly paid shares, which were issued as described in the
Explanatory Statement forming part of this Notice of Meeting to satisfy equity arrangements with
management of the Company”

Voting Exclusion Statement

In accordance with ASX Listing Rule 14.11.1, the Company will disregard any votes cast on Resolution 9 by any
of the members of Company management whe received the shares that are the subject of the Resolution as well
as any votes cast by any associate of any such member of management.
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However, the Company need not disregard a vote if:

(a) itis cast by a person as proxy for a person who is entitled to vote In accordance with the
directions on the proxy form; or

{b) itis cast by the person chairing the meeting as proxy for a person who Is entitled to vote In
accordance with the direction on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides.

By order of the Board

B 2

Fabrizio Rasetti - Company Secretary
Dated, 28 March 2008

Entitlement to attend and vote

In accordance with Reg 7.11.37 of the Corporations Regulations 2001, the Board has determined that persons who are
registered holders of shares of the Company as at 7.00pm (Sydney time) on Saturday, 26 Aprit 2008, will be entitled to
attend and vote at the Meeting as a shareholder.

Voting by proxy

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote may appoint an Individual or a body corporate as a proxy. If a body
corporate [s appointed as a proxy, that body corporate must ensure that it appoints a corporate representative in
accordance with section 2500 of the Corporatlons Act to exercise Its powers as proxy at the Mesting.

A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

A shareholder may appoint up to two proxies and specify the proportion or number of votes each proxy may exercise.
If the shareholder does not specify the proportion or number of votes to be exercised, each proxy may exercise half of
the shareholder’s votes.

To be effective, the proxy must be recelved at the share registry of the Company no later than 3.00pm (Sydney time)
on 26 April 2008. Proxies must be received before that time by one of the following methods:

By Post Link Market Services Limited
Locked Bag At4
Sydney South NSW 1235 Australia

By Facsimlle In Austrafia (02) 9287 0309
From Outside Australia +61 2 9287 0309

By Delivery Link Market Services
Leve! 12, 680 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

Voting by Attorney

A proxy form and the original power of attorney, if any, under which the proxy form is signed {or a certified copy of
that power of attorney or other authority) must be received by the Company no later than 3.00pm (Sydney time) on 26
Aprll 2008, being 48 hours before the Mesting,

Corporate Representatives

A body corporate that is a shareholder, or that has been appointed as a proxy, is entitled to appoint any person to act
as its representative at the Meeting. The appointment of the representative must comply with the requirements under
section 250D of the Corporations Act 2001. The representative should bring to the Maeting a properly executed letter
or other document confirming its authority to act as the company's representative.

<< Notice of Annual General Meeting 2008

Q LSNGTEAR 3]



BOART LONGYEAR >>
Notice of Annual General Meeting 2008

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The purpose of this Explanatory Statement is to provide sharehalders with infermation they may
reasonably require to decide how to vote upon the resolutions to be considered at the Company’s 2008
Annual General Meeting. The Directors recommend that sharehclders read this Explanatory Statement
carefully before determining whether or not to support the resolutions.

All resolutions are ordinary resoclutions. An ordinary resolution requires a simple majority of votes cast
by shareholders entitled to vote on the resolution in persan or by valid proxy.

Ordinary Business

Resolution t: Election of Graham Bradley

Graham Bradley was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 21 February 2007.
In accordance with Clause 44(d) of the Constitution and ASX Listing Rule 14.4, Mr. Bradley retires
and, being eligible, offers himself for election.

Mr, Bradley is currently Chairman of the Board. He is also Chairman of Stockland Corporation Limited
and Po Valley Energy Limited, and a director of Singapore Telecommunications Limited. Me chairs Film
Finance Corporation Australia Limited and is also chairman of the unlisted Australian subsidiaries of
HSBC plc and Anglo American plc. In addition, Mr. Bradley is a director of a number

of non-profit philanthropic organisations.

From 1995 to 2003, Mr. Bradley was the Chief Executive Officer of the listed Investment management
group Perpetual Limited. He also spent four years as the Chief Executive Officer of the law firm Blake
Dawson. Previously, Mr. Bradley spent 12 years at McKinsey & Company, an international firm of
management consultants.

Mr Bradley is a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

The Directors, with Mr. Bradley abstaining, unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour
of this resolution.

Resolution 2: Election of Bruce Brook

Bruce Brook was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 21 February 2007. In
accordance with Clause 44(d) of the Constitution and ASX Listing Rule 14.4, Mr. Brook retires and,
being eligible, offers himself for election.

Mr. Brook is currently a director and chairman of the Audit Committees of Lihir Gold Limited and Snowy
Hydro Limited.

Mr. Brook was the Chief Financial Officer of WMC Rescurces Limited from 2002 to 2005 and has
approximately 30 years' experience in various financial roles, including Deputy Chief Financial Officer

of ANZ Banking Group Limited, Group Chief Accountant of Pacific Dunlop Limited, General Manager,
Group Accounting at CRA Limited and General Manager, Accounting and Services at Pasminco Limited.

Mr. Brook gained his B.Comm and B.Accounting at the University of Witwatersrand and is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

Mr Brook is the chairman of the Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee and a member of the
Environmental Health and Safety Committee.

The Directors, with Mr. Brook abstaining, unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour
of this resolution.
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Resoclution 3: Election of Geoff Handley

Geoff Handley was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 21 February 2007. In
accordance with Clause 44(d) of the Constitution and ASX Listing Rule 14.4, Mr. Handley retires and,
being eligible, offers himself for election.

Mr. Handley is currently a director of Endeavour Silver Corporation, Eldorado Gold Corporation {both
listed on the Toronto and American Stock Exchanges), Pan Australian Resources Limited (listed on the
ASX) and the unlisted Oryx Mining and Expioration Limited.

Mr. Handley has over 30 years of technical and financial experience in the mining industry, having
worked most recently as Executive Vice President, Strategic Development with Placer Dome Inc., where
he was responsible for global exploration, acquisitions, research & development and strategic planning.

Mr. Handley received a BSc (Hons) (Geology and Chemistry) from James Cook University of North
Queensland.

Mr. Handley s the chairman of the Environmental Health and Safety Committee and a member of the
Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee.

The Directors, with Mr. Handley abstaining, unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour
of this resolution.

Resolution 4: Election of David McLemore

David McLemore was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 21 February 2007. In
accordance with Clause 44(d) of the Constitution and ASX Listing Rule 14.4, Mr. McLemore retires and,
being eligible, offers himself for election.

Mr McLemore has 35 years of broad industrial and operational experience. He has been involved with
Advent International for eight years on investments including Advent International’s acquisition of the
Boart Longyear group from Anglo American in 2005.

Mr McLemore acted as Chairman and then Deputy Chairman of Boart Longyear during Advent
International and Bain Capital's ownership and remained as Deputy Chairman of Beart Longyear upon
introduction in October 2006 of the Macquarie-led consortium of investors. Mr McLemcre also served in
various capacities for General Electric from 1985 to 1997, including as a General Manager.

Mr McLemore received his BS from Oklahoma State University

Mr McLemore is a member of the Environmental Health and Safety and the Remuneration and |
Nomination Committees. |

The Directors, with Mr. McLemore abstaining, unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour |
of this resolution. 1

Resolution 5: Election of Peter St. George

Peter St. George was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 21 February 2007, In
accordance with Clause 44(d) of the Constitution and ASX Listing Rule 14.4, Mr. St. George retires and,
being eligible, offers himself for election.

Mr. St. George Is currently a director of First Quantum Minerals Limited {listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange and London Stock Exchange), a director of Spark Infrastructure Group, Powercer Australia Ltd
and Citipower Pty Limited as well as Chairman of accounting and financial services firm, Walter Turnbull.

Mr. St. George also was a director of SFE Corporation Limited from 2000 until its merger with ASX Limited
in July 2006 and served as Chief Executive/Co-Chief Executive of Salomon Smith Bamey Australia/
NatWest Markets Australia from 19935 to 2001. [n addition, Mr. St. George has more than 20 years
experience in senior corporate advisory roles with NatWest Markets and Hill Samuel & Co in Londoen.
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Mr. St. George qualifled as a Chartered Accountant in South Africa and received an MBA from the
University of Cape Town.

Mr. St George is chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit,
Compliance and Risk Committee.

The Directors, with Mr. St George abstaining, unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour
of this resolution.

Resolution 6: Appointment of Auditor
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed Auditor of the Company in accordance with section 327A(1} of
the Corporations Act and holds office until the Company’s first Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with section 3278(1) of the Corporations Act, the Company now seeks shareholder
approval to appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditor of the Company. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
has not withdrawn its consent to act as Auditor.

The Directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of the appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as Auditor.

Resolution 7: Adoption of Remuneration Report

As sst out in the Remuneration Report, the Company’s remuneration philosophy and practices aim to
set board and executive compensation at levels which are fair and reasonable and competitive with
relevant market benchmarks and which assist the company to recruit, retain and motivate skilled and
talented people across the Company’s operations. Wherever possible, the Company’s remuneration
practices and governance are consistent with best practice for Australian listed companies, adapted
where necessary to the needs of a multinational company operating In some 35 countries worldwide.
These policies and practices are overseen by the board's Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

The Remuneration Report is set out in the Director's Report in the Company's Annual Report which can
be viewed at www.boartlongyear.com by selecting the "Investors™ tab and then the “Prospectus/Annual
Reports” tab.

The Directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of this advisory resolution.

Resolution 8: Approval of the Boart Longyear Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company seeks Shareholder approval for the Boart Longyear Long Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP),
which is intended to attract, motivate and retain employees (including executive directors) and reward
superior performance by the Company. Under the LTIP, the board at its discretion may offer employees
conditional rights to ordinary shares of the Company (Rights). The Rights are granted at no cost to the
employees.

The LTIP Rules and the current terms and conditions of the LTIP are available at www boartlongyearcom
by selecting the “Investors” tab and then the “Corporate Governance” tab. A summary of the LTIP Rules
is set out in Schedule 1 and the Remuneration Report contains a summary of the terms and conditions
applicable to the grant made in 2007 and those proposed for 2008.

Relevant Legislative Requirements

The Company will purchase shares on the ASX equal to the number of Rights granted under the LTIR.
The price paid by the Company to acquire the shares will be the prevaiting markst price at the time they
are acquired, and the acquisition date of the underlying shares will vary according to the jurisdiction in
which the employees receiving grants are located. More specifically, for grant recipients domiciled in the
United States, the Company will acquire shares underlying the Rights only at the time the rights vest.
For all other grant recipients, the Company will acquire shares at the time Rights are granted.

Under section 260A(1) of the Corperations Act 2001, a company may not financially assist a person
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to acquire shares in the company unless certain exceptions apply. One such exception is pursuant

to section 260C(4)(a), which provides that financial assistance may be given if it is provided under

an employee share plan that has been approved by a resolution passed at a general meeting of the
company. Shareholder approval of the LTIP is therefore sought for the purposes of section 260C(4)(a).

A Voting Exclusion Statement is set out under the resclution in the Notice of Meeting.

The Directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of this resolution.

Resolution 9: Ratification of Shares Issued

Under ASX Listing Rule 7.1, a company must obtain shareholder approval if it wants to issue more than
15 percent ot its equity securities outstanding in the 12 month period prior to the date of issue. ASX
Listing Rule 7.4.2 provides that shareholders may approve an issue of securities after the fact so that the
securities issued are regarded as having been made with approval for the purpose of Listing Rule 7.1.

Resolution 9 seeks ratification of the issue of 13,473,087 ordinary fully paid shares that were issued as

a result of the equity arrangements between management and the shareholders of the Company prior to
the Company’s Initial Public Offering. The details of these equity arrangements with management were
disclosed in section 3.11 of the Prospectus dated 8 March 2007. The relevant section of the Prospectus
is as follows.

“In accordance with these arrangements, cash proceeds from the Offer, otherwise payable to

the Vendors, will be set aside to fund the Shares to be issued under the equity arrangements
between October and December 2007 once the vesting period for the equity arrangements has
begn satisfied. Upon vesting, the Shares will be issued by the Company at the Final Price

{being the IPO price}. The number of Shares being issued upon vesting increase with the Final
Price determined under the Offer. Assuming all equity arrangements vest, the number of Shares
to be issued will range between 15 million and 20 million based on the Indicative Price Range and
will result in the Company receiving between A$26.4 million and A$42.0 miflion in cash during the
last quarter of FY2007.

Each of the Management Invesiors has agreed to an escrow arrangement with the Company under
which they will be restricted from dealing with all the shares they hold until the later of twelve
months after the settlement {11 Aprit 2007} of the offer and three business days following the
announcement of Boart Longyear's FY2007 results.”

At the date of the Annual General Meeting the restrictions on the shares issued to management pursuant
to these pre-offering equity arrangements will have lapsed.

The issue of the shares the subject of Resolution 9 was within the 15% limit permitted by ASX Listing

" Rule 7.1, but the Company nonetheless requests that shareholders ratify the issue of these shares for the
purpose of ASX Listing Rule 7.4 so that the Company will have the flexibility to issue further securities
under ASX Listing Rule 7.1 if the need or opportunity arises.

For the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 7.5, the following information is provided with respect to the issued
shares to which this Resolution 8 applies:
s 13,473,087 ordinary fully paid shares were issued in total;
* the shares were Issued at A$1.85;
» the shares were issued to management to satisfy equity arrangements with management as
described in Section 3.11 of the Prospectus dated 9 March 2007;
* no funds were raised on the grant of any of these shares as they were issued to management to
partly satisfy equity arrangements with Management; and
+ aVoling Exclusion Statement is set out under the resolution in the Notice of Meeting.

The Directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of this resolution.
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SCHEDULE 1

Summary of LTIP Rules

The LTIP is intended to assist with the retention of key executives and encourage superior performance
on a sustained basis. Under the LTIP, the Board may designate certain senior executives and key
employees to receive rights over fully paid shares in the Company as an incentive, subject to certain
specified restrictions and performance criteria.

Eligibility
In its discretion, the Board may, from time to time, invite any full-time or part-time employee, including
an executive director, to participate in, and be granted rights under the LTIP. Grants of rights would
be subject to the LTiP Rules but otherwise would be on such terms and conditions as the Board
determines.

Invitation to participate

Designated employees are sent an invitation letter to participate in the LTIP. The invitation must specify
the terms and conditions applicable to the rights, particularly any performance conditions and disposal
restrictions determined by the Board.

Trust

The Company will establish a trust and arrange for the trustes to subscribe for or purchase shares to
be held on trust for present and future employees of the Company. The terms of the trust will include
provisions for the treatment of dividends, and voting arrangements, in respect of shares heid by the
trustee.

Vesting

On the successful achievement of the performance conditicns, rights will vest and fully paid shares will
be transferred to the employee, or the employee will receive cash in lieu of shares if the employee is not
able to receive shares. Unless the Board determines otherwise, unvested rights lapse.

The Board may determine that vesting of some or all of the rights is accelerated in certain
circumstances, including if the ernployment ceases by reason of death or total and permanent
disablement, or in the event of a change in control of the Company, or delisting of the Company on
ASX or other special circumstances.

Once rights vest, the shares issued to the employee will rank equally in all respects with the existing fully
paid shares of the Company.

Restrictions
Employees may only participate in new issues of shares if rights have vested and the relevant shares
have been transferred to the employee.

An employee must not grant any security interest in or over or otherwise dispose of or deal with any
rights (including by way of hedging activities) until the relevant shares are transferred to that employee
on vesting of rights.
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APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

Please return your Proxy forms to:
Link Market Services Limited

Leve! 12, 680 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000
Locked Bag A14, Sydney South NSW 1235 Australia

Telephone {within Australia); 1800 781 633

Telephone {outside Australia); +61 2 8280 7488

If you would like to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, please
bring this form with you. This will assist in registering your attendance.

1/We being a member(s) of Boart Longyear Limited and entitled to attend and vote hereby appoint

the Chairman
n of the Meating
(mark box)

OR it you are NOT appointing the Chairman of the
Mecting as your proxy, please write tha name of the
person or body corporate (excluding the registarad
securityholder) you are appointing as your proxy

Facsimile: {02) 9287 0309
ASX Code: BLY
Website: www.inkmarketservices.com.au

You can also lodge your vote on-line at
www.linkmarketservices.com.au

AT AR

X99999999999

or failing the persan/body corporate named, or if no person/body corporate is named, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our praxy to act generally at
the meeting on my/our behalf and to vote in accordance with the following instructions {or if no directions have been given, as the proxy sees fit) at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 3:00pm on Monday, 28 April 2008, at the Museum of Sydney, located at the corner of Bridge and
Phillip Streets, Sydney NSW and at any adjournment of that meeting,

Where mare than one proxy is to be appeinted or where voting intentions cannot be adequately expressed using this form an additional form of proxy is
available on request from the share registry. Praxies will only be valid and accepted by the Company if they are signed and received no later than 48 hours
before the meeting, The Chairman of the Meeting intends to vote undirected praxies in favour of all items of business.

E To direct your proxy how to vote on any resolution please Insert zl in the appropriate box below.

Resolution 1
Election of Graham Bradley

Resolution 2
Election of Bruce Brock

Resolution 3
Election of Geoff Handley

Resolution 4
Election of David McLemore

Resolution 3
Etection of Peter St. George

For

Against  Abstain®

Resolution 6
Appointment of Auditor

Resolution 7

Adoption of Remuneration Report

Resolution 8

Approval of Boart Longyear Limited

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Resolution 9
Ratification of shares issued

For  Against Abstain*

* if you mark the Abstain box for a particular Ttem, you are directing your proxy not to vote on your behalf on a show of hands or on a poll and your votes wili not be counted in

computing the required majority on a poll.

SIGNATURE OF SECURITYHOLDERS — THIS MUST BE COMPLETED
Securityholder 1 (individual) Joint Securityholder 2 (Individual) Joint Securityholder 3 (Individual)
Sole Director and Sole Company Secretary  DirectorfCompany Secretary (Delete one) Director

This form should be signed by the securityholder. If a joint holding, either securityholder may sign. If signed by the securityholder’s attorney, the power of attorney must have
been previgusty noted by the registry or a certified copy attached to this form. If executed by a company, the form must be executed in accordance with the securityhoider's

constitution and the Corporations Act 2007 {Cwith).

Link Market Services Limited advises that Chapter 2C of the Corporations Act 2007 requires information about you as a securityholder (including your name, address and
details of the securities you hold) to be included in the public register of the entity In which you hold securities. Information is collected to administer your securityhokling and
if some or all of the information is not collected then it might not ba possible to administer your securityhalding. Your personal information may be disclosed to the entity in
which you hold securities. You can obtain access to your personal information by centacting us at the address or telephone number shawn on this form. Qur privacy policy is
available on our website {www.linkmarketservices.com.au).

BLY PRX841




How to complete this Proxy Form

1 Your Name and Address

This is your name and address as it appears on the company's share register. If this information is incorrect, piease make the correction
on the form. Shareholders spansored by a broker should advise their broker of any changes. Please note: you cannot change ownership
of your shares using this form.

2 Appointment of a Proxy

If you wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy, mark the box In section A. If the person you wish to appaint as your proxy
is someone other than the Chairman of the Meeting please write the name of that persan in section A. If you leave this section blank, or
your named proxy does not attend the meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting will be your proxy. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
company. A proxy may be an individual or a body corporate.

3 Votes on Items of Business

You should direct your proxy how to vote by placing a mark in one of the boxes opposite each item of business. All your shares will be voted
In accordance with such a direction unless you indicate only a portion of voting rights are to be voted on any item by inserting the percentage
or number of shares you wish to vote in the apprapriate box or boxes. If you do not mark any of the boxes an the items of business, your
proxy may vote as he or she chooses. If you mark more than cne box on an item your vote on that item will be invalid.

4 Appointment of a Second Proxy

You zre entitled to appoint up to two persons as proxies to attend the meeting and vote on a poll. If you wish to appaint a second proxy, an
additional Proxy Form may be obtained by telephoning the company's share registry or you may copy this form.

To appoint a second proxy you must:

(a) on each of the first Proxy Form and thé second Proxy Form state the percentage of your voting rights or number of shares applicable
to thatform. If the appointments do not specify the percentage or number of votes that each proxy may exercise, each proxy may exercise
half your votes. Fractions of votes will be disregarded.

(b} retum both forms together.
5 Signing Instructions
You must sign this form as follows in the spaces provided:
Individuak: where the holding is in one name, the holder must sign.

Joint Holding: where the holding is in more than one name, either securityholder may sign.

Power of Attorney: to sign under Power of Attorney, you must have already lodged the Power of Attorney with the registry. If you have not
previously lodged this document for notation, please attach a certified photocopy of the Power of Attomey to this form
when you retum it.

Companies: where the company has a Sole Director who is also the Sole Company Secretary, this form must be signed by that
person. if the company (pursuant to section 204A of the Corporafions Act 20071} does not have a Company Secretary,
a Sole Director can also sign alone. Otherwise this form must be signed by a Directer jointly with either another Director
or a2 Company Secretary. Please indicate the office held by signing in the appropriate place.

if a representative of the corporation is te attend the meeting the appropriate “Certificate of Appointment of Corporate Representative” should
be produced prior to admission. A form of the certificate may be abtained from the company's share registry.

Lodgement of a Proxy

This Proxy Form {and any Power of Attorney under which it is signed) must be received at an address given below by 3:.00pm on Saturday,
26 April 2008, being not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. Any Proxy Form received after that ime will not be
valid for the scheduled meeting.

Proxy forms may be lodged using the reply paid envelope or:

- by posting, delivery or facsimile to Boart Longyear Limited's share reqgistry as follows:
Boart Longyear Limited
C/- Link Market Services Limited
Locked Bag A14
Sydney South NSW 1235
Facsimile: (02} 9287 0309

~ lodging it online at Link's website (www.linkmarketservices.com.au) in accerdance with the instructions given there (you will be taken to

have signed your proxy form if you lodge it in accordance with the instructions given on the website);

- defivering it to Level 12, 680 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000.



